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Dear shareholder,

Fiscal 2009 was a year in which we and the world faced many economic chal-
lenges. However, we met those challenges, made strong growth in our business at
the end of Fiscal 2009, and carried this momentum info Fiscal 2010. Our strength
during this downturn was anchored by our value proposition of being stronger in
product offerings today than ever. In these times, new computing paradigms such
as the Cloud and Virtualization have emerged and our new technologies have
been developed with new quad core, six-core processors architecture, GPU com-
puting, 10Gb Ethernet and 40Gb QDR InfiniBand networking, and higher density
blade solutions to encompass the shifting of computing paradigms.

In 2009, we continue to develop and deliver the most power efficient, highest
density and highest performance per watt and dollar server solutions with the latest
technologies, which have been the bedrock of our value proposition to our cus-
tomer and partners. While most competitors have cut back during the downturn, we
further strengthened our infrastructure and invested in our R&D. We expanded 1U
Twin™ architecture, the technology platforms we pioneered to produce a 2U Twin?2
server solution, which offers even higher efficiency, serviceability and capacity with
lower cost. In addition, we integrated our Twin technology to our blade platforms
and developed the TwinBlade™ product. This blade system offers the highest den-
sity of DP server solution in the industry. Moreover, it is equipped with our industry
leading Platinum-level (94%-+) power supplies providing the best performance per
watt, per dollar, and the lowest TCO to customers.

In the storage arena, we have further expanded the flexibility of the UIO solutions
we introduced 3 years ago, and we introduced our SBB (Storage Bridge Bay) solu-
tion which enables a modular approach for customers to build a highly redundant,
customizable multi /O convergence in a single storage enclosure, providing maxi-
mum uptime, flexibility and large data capacity for the datacenter managers.

While we have further expanded out product platforms, we have also added new offerings utilizing the latest in technology. The GPU solu-
tion which we released in September 2009 has seen good traction. It has been called the fastest 1U server on the planet. These solutions
are ideal for parallel processing applications such as graphics rendering used in oil and gas or medical applications, financial simulations
used in financial and educations institutions, or any scientific and engineering computation.

We have also introduced our switch products to address the needs of our customers. Recently, PRACE in Europe was looking for the best
server solution utilizing standard X86 architecture to serve their HPC requirement. We won this competition utilizing a six-core blade solution
armed with our 40Gb QBR B switch. This combination of technologies illustrate how Supermicro utilized the latest technology coupled with
our building block solutions approach and in-house design teams to set itself apart from others to deliver the highest quality, efficiency and
performance solutions to our customer first.

We also believe it is time to further accelerate our global expansion. In Fiscal 2009, we had 36% of our revenue coming out of Asia and
Europe. We also have most of our CM’s manufacturing our designs in Asia. However, we had virtually all of our final integration and test
capabilities in the US. We believe that there are great opportunities to improve the efficiency of how we deliver products to our customers
outside the US, thus we have established an EMEA integration service facility in the Netherlands that will provide us with substantial growth
potential. In addition, we have been presented with the potential to lower our corporate taxes as we make investment oversea which we
are actively working on.

All of the above emphasize the focus of the company toward building for the future. So, while Fiscal 2009 was a challenging time, where
we saw most competitors in our market downsize, we chose not to. We had no layoffs but chose to focus on other areas in order to maintain
the innovative strength of the company and be in a great position to take advantage of the recovery when it occurred. This vision toward
the future has allowed us to gather momentum as we exit Fiscal 2009 and enter Fiscal 2010. We have continued to expand our foundation
of products and strengthen the infrastructure to further take advantage of the host of opportunities which have presented themselves to us
during the time of recovery and expansion.

There is an old staying that “The Strong get Stronger during difficult times”. | believe that through the support of our partners, customers,
shareholders, employees and their families, we have made ourselves stronger than we have ever been before during the past year and our
strong results compared to the rest the market have shown that we have carried that strength into Fiscal 2010.With your continued support
and dedication, | am confident that we will be able to take advantage of the many opportunities which lay ahead of us.

Charles Liang
Chairman of the Board, President, CEO and Founder
Dec. 28, 2009



Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 001-33383
Super Micro Computer, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)
Delaware 77-035393¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
980 Rock Avenue
San Jose, CA 95131
(Address of principal executive offices, includingip code)
(408) 503-8000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per shai The Nasdag Stock Market, Inc.
Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) tfie Act:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a walbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e06#turities Act.  Yed No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act.  YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastgs. YeskX No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pumsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8229.405 of dtiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEb No OO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiiilerrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorKS8229.405 of this chapter) is not contai
herein, and will not be contained, to the bestgistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements incorporated by reference
in Part 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgtForm 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated filel] Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filerd (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b of the Exgleafsct) Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the registrant’'s Com8tock held by non-affiliates, based upon thsiolp price of the Common Stock
on December 31, 2008, as reported by the NasddmpGltarket, was approximately $149,571,000. Shafé@ommon Stock held by each
executive officer and director and by each persbo awns 5% or more of the outstanding Common Stieaked on filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, have been excluded siltepersons may be deemed affiliates. This detextioim of affiliate status is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for otheppses.

As of August 18, 2009 there were 34,814,988 shafrése registrant’'s common stock, $0.001 par vatwgstanding, which is the only
class of common stock of the registrant issued.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE



None




Table of Contents

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART |
Item 1. Business 1
Item 1A. Risk Factors 15
Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen 34
Item 2. Properties 34
Item 3. Legal Proceeding 34
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holc 34
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrars Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securit 35
Item 6. Selected Financial Da 37
Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults of Operatior 38
ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaiRisk 53
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary [ b5
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @odaing and Financial Disclosu 90
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedur 9C
Item 9B.  Other Informatior 91
PART Il
Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govane 92
ltem 11. Executive Compensatic 98
ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dmhagement and Related Stockholder Mai 10¢
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactionarattor Independenc 11C
Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servi 112
PART IV
Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Sched! 112
Signature: 114

This section and other parts of this Form 10-K eimtforward-looking statements” within the meaniofjSection 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Bxghaict of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) thahiavisks and uncertainties. The
statements relate to future events or our futunaricial performance. In some cases, you can idefaifvard-looking statements by
terminology including “would,” “could,” “may,” “wil I,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “anticipa te,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“predict,” “potential,” or “continue,” the negative of these terms or other comparable terminologyevaluating these statements, you should
specifically consider various factors, includingthsks described under “Risk Factors” below andbther parts of this Form 10-K as well as
in our other filings with the SEC. These factorsymause our actual results to differ materiallyrfrahose anticipated or implied in the
forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligatiopuiolicly update or revise any forward-looking staents, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. We camuatrantee future results, levels of activity, parfance or achievement
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PART I

ltem 1. Business
Overview

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applinaifatimized, high performance server solutions téasean innovative, modular and
open-standard x86 architecture. Our solutions thela range of complete rackmount and blade seygéeras as well as components. We offer
our clients a high degree of flexibility and custeation by providing what we believe to be the istiy’'s broadest array of server components,
which are interoperable and can be configuredeatercomplete server systems. Our server systeinsoamponents are architected to provide
high levels of reliability, quality and scalabiljtthereby enabling benefits in the areas of peréore, thermal management, power efficiency
and total cost of ownership. We base our solut@nspen standard components, such as processorsrtel and AMD and our solutions can
run on the Linux and Windows operating systems.

We perform the majority of our research and devalept efforts in-house, which increases the comnatioic and collaboration between
design teams, streamlines the development proocgsseduces time-to-market. We have developed af sksign principles which allow us to
aggregate individual industry standard materialdeteelop proprietary components, such as servedbpehassis, power supplies and
networking / storage devices. This building blopp@ach allows us to provide a broad range of SKidd,enables us to build and deliver
application-optimized solutions based upon custsireggplication requirements. As of June 30, 2008 offered over 4,800 SKUs, including
SKUs for server systems, serverboards, chassip@amndr supplies and other system accessories.

We sell our server systems and components primtiigugh distributors, which include value addesktiers and system integrators, and
to a lesser extent to original equipment manufactufOEMSs) as well as through our direct salessfoburing fiscal year 2009, our products
were purchased by over 500 customers, most of wdrnetdistributors in approximately 76 countries. ¥denmenced operations in 1993 and
have been profitable every year since inception fisoal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, our net satge $505.6 million, $540.5 million and
$420.4 million, respectively and our net income W&6.1 million, $25.4 million and $19.3 million,geectively.

Industry Background
Increasing Demand for Computing Capaci

As businesses of all sizes process larger quantfidata to communicate, transact and collabotfagdr, business processes are becoming
more complex and their requirements for computigecity are growing rapidly. Businesses are usimjtional networked environments,
such as local area networks, or LANs, as well edriternet, to host a wide range of applicatiomduiding databases, Intranets and email.
Businesses are also using external functions, asictata centers, e-commerce storefronts and etdraoenable growth of their operations.
The infrastructure and computing model to supgusé businesses are often referred as “Cloud Cangguall of these factors and business’
needs are fueling the demand for increased congpptimer and storage capacity.

Evolution of Open Systems and Sc-out Computing

Computing architectures are continuing to evolveneet this rapidly growing demand for computingasafy. As businesses increasingly
require solutions that provide flexibility and salaility in a cost effective manner, they are movawgay from traditional proprietary computing
solutions toward open system servers with x86 basehitectures using either Linux or Windows opegsystems. Businesses are building
upon this modular and open system concept to cveadt are commonly referred to as scale-out comgurchitectures. These scale-out
architectures typically consist of open standamhponents that are assembled into modular
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computing systems and organized into clusteredadmount server configurations. These systemsesigiled to comply with a set of indus
standard specifications that are referred to agegs&ystem Infrastructure, or SSI. SSl is alsonglustry standard organization, which defines
server specification standards. We actively pauéit2 in the SSI organization and have a represemtan the board directors. Our development
methodology for servers is not only to comply witle SSI standards but also to focus on the supeir&s$I (which we call SupesSsl), in orde
that our products accommodate our own proprietasygh as well as comply with SSI standards. Scatesomputing enables businesses to
computing capacity incrementally as their needseaniithout significantly disrupting existing systemproviding greater flexibility and
scalability and improving total cost of ownershigeoearlier generations of server systems.

Increasing Need for Rapidly Deployable, Highly Optized Server Solution

Scale-out server architectures provide signifidaarefits for many businesses. However, there angl@range of circumstances in which
businesses need more than just the incrementalworgpcapacity that can be obtained by adding myereeral purpose servers as part of a
scale-out deployment. In these circumstances, dhe of the underlying computing architecture dbates meaningfully to the competitive
advantage of the business. We refer to the sokitioese businesses seek as “application optimgadtions, as these businesses typically
need customized server configurations which proejoémal levels of processing, I/O or memory. Thei$egations include, among others:

» Large scalable server farmData centers of online service providers and GI@B80 companies, as well as supercomputing
clusters of large research organizations, wanptorze industry standard components by architgctirsystem platform that
enables higher performance through enhanced piingessl/O, more efficient memory bandwidth andagex capacity

* Businesses that have complex computing requirerrCertain businesses, such as financial services aoieq oil exploration
companies and entertainment production studiosiimegystems that have optimized processing andafiabilities in order to
maximize information and image capture and proogs

» OEMs:Certain OEMs, including vendors of networking haadgvand medical imaging equipment, seek to difteatntheir enc
products by requiring a broad selection of highfqgranance and rapidly deployable server solutioas ¢n be optimized for
specific applications for their end custome

In all of these situations, server vendors arecsetebased on several key criteria:

Rapidly deployable server solutionslany businesses desire the most advanced serverdlegy as soon as it becomes commercially
available. For instance, given the rapid produeetipment cycles of new technologies in the netivgrkardware market, vendors of
networking equipment increasingly seek to partoeccértain aspects of their solutions, such asese¢echnology, because it enables them to
deliver a high performance solution to their custosrmore quickly. Similarly, online service provigienust continue to deploy the latest se
technology as soon as it becomes available sircalihity to cost-effectively deliver a high degm&feservice is critical to their business.
Because traditional server vendors typically usa tharty component suppliers, they must deal withtime, complexity and sometimes
conflicting interests of coordinating with multipdeippliers throughout the product design and marufiag process. This lengthens the time
required to incorporate new technology into nextegation systems. As a result, when building oraging their computing capability,
businesses must either wait to deploy the latextymts or accept solutions that do not incorpattagebenefits of the latest technology.

Increased optimization for specific business ne&tsvers are deployed to address widely differingiegtions with very different
system requirements. An online gaming companyinf&tance, may require a server architecture thables optimal graphic processing, while
a scientific research organization may requireraesearchitecture that maximizes computing poweeither case, the business will seek to
deploy server systems that are optimized to itsiipaeeds to maximize performance while minimgicosts. Traditional server vendors
typically offer only a limited number of standalogerver models. Given this lack of flexibility
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and choice, building an application optimized ses@ution with traditional server components carchallenging. In order to meet their
performance requirements, businesses must oftemase more computing functionality, including pai&ly more memory, greater

processing power or more efficient power suppliean would be otherwise necessary had the systemdyetimized for a specific business
need. This increases not only the initial purchasee, but also the total cost of ownership overukeful life of the servers. Alternatively,
businesses that seek a customized server solutiontfaditional server vendors face limited choiaed often must accept considerable delays.

Superior price-to-performance per wath addition to the need for rapidly available amghty optimized server solutions, businesses
with application optimized server needs face graysnalability challenges. Many application optindzeerver deployments constitute
increasingly larger server systems, particularlgdale-out configurations, and can involve hund@dsven thousands of servers. Deployments
of this magnitude can present numerous performapaee, energy and maintenance challenges. Fiestggregation of large numbers of
computing systems leads to escalating energy remeints. As a result, businesses require scalesaybuting systems that not only perform
well but also minimize power consumption. Secohd,ihcreasing need for computing capacity has texih the need for higher density
solutions to optimize the use of valuable flooregand to minimize operating costs. Third, the tdghsity of the equipment, together with
increasing power consumption per CPU, are creaisignificant challenge for businesses attemptinganage heat dissipation, including the
cost of owning and operating computer room air d@ioming, or CRAC, units to effectively to prevesystem failure.

The Super Micro Solution

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applicaifitimized, high performance server solutions ag®n an innovative, modular ¢
open-standard x86 architecture. Our primary cortipetadvantages arise from how we use our intedriaternal research and development
organization to develop the intellectual propersgdi in our server solutions. These have enabléal dsvelop a set of design principles and
performance specifications that we refer to as 58 that meet industry standard SSI requiremamtisalso incorporate advanced
functionality and capabilities. Super SSI provideswith greater flexibility to quickly and efficilg develop new server solutions that are
optimized for our customers’ specific applicati@guirements. Our modular architectural approachaliagied us to offer our customers
interoperable designs across all of our componé@ihtis. modular approach, in turn, enables us toigdeowhat we believe to be the industry’s
largest array of server systems and components.

Flexible and Customizable Server Solutions

We provide flexible and customizable server sohgito address the specific application needs otostomers. Our design principles
allow us to aggregate industry standard materiatiet/elop proprietary components, such as servetbpehassis and power supplies to del
a broad range of products with superior featurashEeomponent is built to be backward compatible.Blieve this building block approach
allows us to provide a broad range of SKUs. Asunfe]30, 2009, we offered over 4,800 SKUs, includigJs for rackmount and blade server
systems, serverboards, chassis and power suppliestlher system accessories.

Rapid Time-to-Market

We are able to significantly reduce the designdeklopment time required to incorporate the laexdtnologies and to deliver the next
generation application optimized server solutigdst in-house design competencies and control ofléisggn of many of the components used
within our server systems enable us to rapidly tgveuild and test server systems and componeithisunique configurations. As a result,
when new products are brought to market we arergyable to quickly design, integrate and assenselrver solutions with little need to re-
engineer other portions of our solution. Our eéfitidesign capabilities allow us to offer our castos server solutions incorporating the latest
technology with a superior price-to-performancéocatve
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work closely with the leading microprocessor versdorcoordinate the design of our new products thigir product release schedules, thereby
enhancing our ability to rapidly introduce new puots incorporating the latest technology.

Improved Power Efficiency and Thermal Manageme

Our server solutions include many design innovatimnoptimize power consumption and manage hesipaison. We have designed
flexible power management systems which customizdiminate components in an effort to reduce oN@@ver consumption. We have
proprietary power supplies that can be integratedss a wide range of server system form factolisiwtan significantly enhance power
efficiency. For example, our recently developed W2ts power supply has been the first certifiedddavel 1U single output power supply
the industry. We have also developed technologiatsare specifically designed to reduce the effetteat dissipation from our servers. Our
thermal management technology allows our productghieve a superior price-to-performance ratideMminimizing energy costs and
reducing the risk of server malfunction caused bgrbeating.

High Density Server:

Our servers and components are designed to enadtiencers to maximize computing power while minimgthe physical space utilize
We offer server systems with twice the densityaiventional solutions, which allows our customersfficiently deploy our server systems in
scale-out configurations. Through our propriet&ghinology, we can offer significantly more memong &xpansion slots than traditional
server systems with a comparable server form fabtaddition, we offer systems in a 1U configusativith features and capabilities generally
offered by competitors only in a server with roaon fivo racks or shelves, or a 2U server, configonat-or example, our “1U Twin™” system
contains two full feature dual processor, or DPyeboards in a 1U chassis. We also offer systenasaU configuration with features and
capabilities generally offered by competitors oimlya server with room for four racks or shelvesa@U server, configuration. For example,
“2U Twin 2" system contains four full feature DP seb@ards in a 2U chassis.

Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading provider of édlon optimized, high performance server soliaorldwide. Key elements of our
strategy include:

Maintain Our Time-to-Market Advantage

We believe one of our major competitive advantagesir ability to rapidly incorporate the lateshgouting innovations into our
products. We intend to maintain our time-to-maretantage by continuing our investment in our neseand development efforts to rapidly
develop new proprietary server solutions baseddustry standard components. We plan to continwetdé closely with Intel and AMD,
among others, to develop products that are compatiith the latest generation of industry standahnologies. We believe these efforts will
allow us to continue to offer products that leagbiice for performance as each generation of coimginnovations becomes available.

Expand Our Product Offerings

We plan to increase the number of products we offeur customers. Our product portfolio will cante to include additional solutions
based on the latest Intel and AMD technologies.plde to enhance our ability to deliver improved pownd thermal management capabili
as well as servers and components that can operatereasingly dense environments. We also plasotidinue developing and in the future
offer additional management software capabilitieg tire integrated with our server products antfwilher enable our customers to simplify
and automate the deployment, configuration and tadng of our servers.
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Further Develop Existing Markets and Expand Into MeMarkets

We intend to strengthen our relationships with taxiscustomers and add new distributors and OENhpas. We will continue to target
specific industry segments that require applicatiptimized server solutions including data centesi®nments, financial services, oil and gas
exploration, biotechnology, entertainment and endbedapplications. We plan to expand our reach ggdueally, particularly in the Asia
Pacific region and Europe.

Strengthen Our Relationships with Suppliers and Mafiacturers

Our efficient supply chain and outsourced manuféguallow us to build systems to order that arstemized, while minimizing costs.
We plan to continue leveraging our relationshipthwuppliers and contract manufacturers in ordenaintain and improve our cost structure
as we benefit from economies of scale. We internzbtdinue to source non-core products from extesappliers. We also believe that as our
solutions continue to gain greater market acceptane will generate growing and recurring busirfes®ur suppliers and contract
manufacturers. We believe this increased volumkenible us to receive better pricing and achieghdr margins. We believe that a highly
disciplined approach to cost control is criticaktacess in our industry. For example, we conttougaintain our warehousing capacity in Asia
through our relationship with Ablecom Technologys.I(“Ablecom”), one of our major contract manufaetrs and a related party, so that we
continue to deliver products to our customers iraAsd elsewhere more quickly and in higher volumes

Advanced Blade Server Technolo

To meet the emerging demand for blade servers,ave tieveloped and continued to improve our higliepeance blade server
solutions, called SuperBlades. Our SuperBladesl@sgned to share a common computing infrastructieeeby saving additional space and
power. Our SuperBlades are self-contained senesigded to achieve industry leading density an@sapperformance per square foot at a
lower total cost of ownership. The SuperBlade’'s@sure provides power, cooling, networking, variinterconnects and system-level
management and supports both Intel Xeon and AMBe@ptprocessors. By creating a range of uniqueekdadver offerings, we provide our
customers with solutions that can be customizd tbeir needs. In addition, the SuperBlade posugoplies provide up to 93% efficiency,
which is currently considered the highest AC posuguply efficiency providing extreme electricity ¢saving. We believe that our SuperBlade
server system provides industry leading densitynorg expandability, reliability, price-to-performea per square foot and energy saving. We
expect to begin selling our new generation Supet&léo be called TwinBlade™, in the quarter enddegember 31, 2009. TwinBlade will
include two dual processor blades into one sloé TwinBlade™ with the most current Infiniband quiada rate (QDR) connection will enable
the new SuperBlade to achieve even higher perfacmadensity and efficiency.
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Products

We offer a broad range of application optimizedreesolutions, including complete rackmount andiblaerver systems and components
which customers can use to build complete sena&esys. The diagram below depicts how end custotypisally deploy Supermicro servers
within their networks. Our servers are deployedéneral configurations within two areas of an gise network:
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HeadquartersEnterprises build large scalable server farmseetiterprise gateway to run many of the most demgrapplications and
to provide basic computational infrastructure. Eprises typically deploy our rackmount serversiides to save floor space and enable rapid
deployment of additional server capacity as conmgutiemands increase. Enterprises may also choasploy our tower servers in a clustered
configuration, which combines the processing cdjgloif multiple standalone, or tower servers stitéit they act like a single, large computer
in order to accomplish computationally intensivekiin a more cost-effective manner.

Branch: Within branch office data rooms, servers are degddy rackmount configurations, in order to simptiie upgrade of servers or
to swap out faulty servers, minimizing network dowre and making the management of the server iméretsire easier to maintain for branch
offices with less specialized IT staffs. Also, vitithbranch office workgroups, enterprises typicalgploy our tower servers to accomplish basic
office functions such as centralizing printing jobsrving files and running local e-mail and othessaging applications.

Server System

We sell server systems in rackmount, standalonertawd blade form factors. We currently offer a ptete range of server options with
single, dual and quad CPU capability supportingliRentium and Xeon multi-core architectures in 2U, 3U, 4U, tower and blade form
factors. We also offer complete server systemstaseAMD dual and quad Opteron in 1U, 2U, 4U aratelform factors. As of June 30,
2009, we offered over 750 different server systdros.each system, we offer multiple chassis desagnaspower supply options to best suit
customer requirements. We also offer multiple aunfations based on our latest generation systethsmast comprehensive selections of
chassis and serverboards. A majority of our mostraon systems are also available in minimum 1U 2rd&fpth form factors which are
approximately one half of the size of standard&sizEkmount servers.
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The figure below depicts a typical rackmount seard the different components that we typicallyiroj#e for our customers. The layout

presented is for illustrative purposes only andsduoa represent the typical layout of all our sesve

© 0w >
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Chassis:Industry standard 1U rackmount chassis that perseitger interoperability while efficiently housikgy server componen
Power Supply: Cost effective, high efficiency AC/DC energy savipgwer supply
Memory: Scalable 18 slot memory expansion capability. Rtesiup to 144GB memory capabil

Supermicro Intelligent Management Card: Monitors onboard instrumentation for server heaht allows remote management and
KVM over LAN for the entire network via a singleWsoard, monitor and mou:

CPU: Programmable computer processing units that perédkserver instruction and logic processing. Saopero servers support up to
four Single, Dual Core, Quad Core or multi Coregassors from both Intel and AM

Expansion Modules:Allows increased functionality, /O customizatiomdsflexibility. Super SSI features enable four Exgian 1/0
cards in a 1U server allowing 2U capability in a fbtm factor

Thermal Management: PWM Counter rotating and redundant fans contrayjge optimum cooling and energy saving and disgpa
of server component he

Hard Disk Drives: Storage medium for operating system, applicationsdata. We offe” powe-on” hot-swappable capabilit
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Below is a table that summarizes the most commoreseonfigurations purchased by our customers.al§e design and build other
customized systems using these and other buildouk® to meet specific customer requirements.

Server System Mode CPU Memory Drive Bays Form Factor SKUs
5000 Serie: Core 2 Duo, Core 2 Qua Unbuffered DDRZ 1 to 4 drives 1U, Mid-tower 93 models
Xeon, Core ii

6000 Serie: Dual Xeon (Dual/Quad Cor¢ FB-DIMM DDR2, ECC 1to 16 drives 1U, 2U, 3U 237 models
Registered DDR:

7000 Series Dual Xeon (Dual/Quad Core) FB-DIMM DDR2, ECC 1 to 8 drives 4U, Tower 44 models
Registered DDR:

8000 Series Quad Xeon (Quad/Six Core) FB-DIMM DDR2, ECC 1 to 6 drives 1U, 2U, 4U, 13 models
Registered DDR: Tower

1000 Series Dual/Quad Opteron ECC Registered DDR/DDR2, 1 to 8 drives U 101 models

(Dual/Quad Core/Six Core), DDR3, FB-DIMM DDR2
Dual Xeon (Dual/Quad Cort

2000 Series Dual Opteron (Dual/Quad ECC Registered DDR 1 to 6 drives 2U 15 models
Core/Six Core

4000 Series Dual/Quad Opteron ECC Registered DDR 1 to 8 drives 4U, Tower, Mid- 56 models
(Dual/Quad Core/Six Cor¢ tower

SuperBlade Dual Xeon (Quad Core), FB-DIMM DDR2, ECC 1 to 6 drives Blade 13 models
Dual/Quad Registered DDR2

Opteron (Quad Core/ Six Cot

We offer a variety of server storage options dependpon the system, with disk drive alternativeduding small computer system
interface, serial advanced technology attachmer8Ad A, SATAII, or SAS and SASI|, Intelligent DrivElectronics, or IDE, and serial
attached SCSI.

In addition to our server systems, we also offgge3micro Intelligent Management, or SIM, card siolug which are sold as part of our
server systems. Our SIM card implements the ingustémdard Intelligent Platform Management Intezfaar IPMI 2.0 to provide remote
access, system monitoring and administration fonetity for our server platforms. Our SIM card igdés key capabilities such as remote
hardware status, failure notification, as welltaes ability to power-cycle non-responsive serverd tarmanage the system through out-of-band
network or KVM (keyboard, video and mouse) functility over LAN. Our SIM solutions enable server adistrators to view a server’s
hardware status remotely, receive an alarm autcaibtivhen a failure occurs, and power cycle aaysthat is non-responsive. Our Intelligent
Management module monitors onboard instrumentaimi as temperature sensors, power status, volagefan speed, and provides remote
power control capabilities to reboot and resetsirwer. It also includes remote access to the Bagig/Output System, or BIOS, configuration
and operating system console information. The rooniy and control functions work independently lod ©PU because the SIM card is a
completely separate processor. Data center admaitdss can gain full remote access to control tH@3 utilities, operating systems and
software applications. In summary, our SIM solusiémclude the following key features:

» embedded processor to provide in or out of band Kd&dabilities thereby extending the use of a sikgligdoard, monitor an
mouse to the entire netwol
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» enhanced authentication support to establish seeuarete sessions and authenticate u:

* enhanced encryption support to allow secure repassword configuration and protect sensitive systata when it is transferre
over the network

» Power management for the remote power on/off;
» Virtual Media for booting from Virtual C-ROM, floppy over LAN, etc

Server Component

We believe we offer the largest array of modulaveecomponents or building blocks in the indushgt are sold off the shelf or built-to-
order to provide our customers with greater flditjpi These components are the foundation of otwwesesolutions and span product offerings
from the entry-level single and dual processoreesegment to the high-end multi-processor mafket. majority of the components we sell
individually are optimized to work together and alémately integrated into complete server systems

Serverboards

We design our serverboards with the latest chipsdtnetworking technologies. Each serverboarddgyded and optimized to adhere to
specific physical, electrical and design requiretsém order to work with certain combinations ofshis and power supplies and achieve
maximum functionality. For our rackmount serverteyss, we not only adhere to SSI specificationsgowtSuper SSI specifications provide
advanced set of features that increase the furattiprand flexibility of our products. The followintable displays our serverboard offerings for
X8 (Intel's new generation of QPI, Dual and QuadeC¥eon 5500/3500 series), X7 (Ingefeneration of Dual and Quad Core Xeon 5000/
series), X6 (Intel's 800Mhz Front Side Bus generatf Dual and Quad Xeon solutions), X5 (Intel’'888z Front Side Bus generation of
Dual Xeon solutions) and H8 (AMD’s Six Core, DuablaQuad Core Opteron 200 and 800 series). As &f 30n2009, we offered more than
400 SKUs for serverboards.

Below is a table that summarizes the most commoredgoard configurations purchased by our customers

Serverboard Model CPU System Bus Form Factor Memory SKUs
X8 Series Dual Xeon (Dual/Qua QPlupto 6.4 GT/ Twin/UIO/Extended ATX DDR3 63 models
Core) UP Xeon (Dual/Quad (EATX)
Core)
X7 Series Dual Xeon (Dual/Qua 1333/1066/667 MH. Advanced Technolog Fully 135 models
Core) MP Xeon (Dual/Quad Extended (ATX)/EATX/ Buffered-
Core) Atom Flex ATX (FATX) DIMM
DDR2
X6 Series Dual/Quad Xeon 800 MHz ATX/EATX ECC 52 models
Registered
DDR2
X5 Series Dual Xeon 533 MHz ATX/EATX DDR 7 models
PD, P8, C2 Serie Pentium D (Dual/Qua 1333/1066/800/533 MH ATX/ Micro Advanced Unbuffered 87 models
Core) Technology Extended DDR2
(MATX)
H8 Series Dual/Quad Opteron (Dual/ Hypertransport/HT3 Twin/UIO/ATX/EATX ECC 67 models
Quad/ Six Core) Registered
DDR/
DDR2
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Chassis and Power Supplies

Our chassis are designed to efficiently house ewvess while maintaining interoperability, adhertogndustry standards and increasing
output efficiency through power supply design. Védidve that our latest generation of power sup@Eseves the maximum power efficiency
available in the industry. In addition, we have @leped a remote management system that offersitity &0 stagger the start up of systems
and reduce the aggregate power draw at systemtdatiow customers to increase the number of systettached to a power circuit. We
design DC power solutions to be compatible withadagnters that have AC, DC or AC and DC based pdigéibution infrastructures. We
believe our unique power design technology redpoeger consumption by increasing power efficiencytaf3%, which we believe is among
the most efficient available in the industry. Oangr chassis come with hot-plug, heavy-duty féns speed control and an advanced air
shroud design to maximize airflow redundancy.

The table below depicts some of our chassis prooffietings including the 500-series (front I/O apts and space constrained
environments), 800-series (most widely used foglsindual and quad processor servers and storatenss), 700-series (Tower, 4U rackmount
servers and workstations), 900-series (for highsiteistorage applications) and 100/200-seriesZfdt hard disk drives server and storage)
chassis products. These chassis solutions offendzht power, cold swap power supply, redundanirapéan options and high efficiency AC
and DC power combinations. As of June 30, 2009offered more than 650 SKUs for chassis and powgpl&s.

Below is a table that summarizes the most commassibk configurations purchased by our customers.

Chassis Model CPU Support Expansions Drive Bays Power Supply Form Factor SKUs

SC100 Serie Xeon, Pentium D, Pentiur 1to 3 FL 4 to 8 drives 360W, 560W 650\~ 1U, Mini- 31 models
4, Opteror (2.£" HDD) redundant, 700V 1uU

SC200 Series  Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 7 LP or 4FH 8 to 24 drives 720W-redundant 2U 25 models
4, Opteror &3LP (2.£" HDD) 900W-redundan

SC500 Series  Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 1 FH 2 internal drive  200W-520W Mini-1U 52 models
4, Atom Low cost 200\

SC700 Serie Xeon, Pentium D, Pentiui  Up to 11 7 to 8 drives 300W to 1400V-redundan  4U, Tower, 87 models
4, Opteror FHFL Mid-tower

SC800 Serie Xeon, Pentium D, Pentiui  various 2 to 24 drives 260W-1400W- 1U, 2U, 3U 288 model
4, Opteron, Quad Proces configuration: redundant

4U

SC900 Series  Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 6to 7 FL 16 drives 650W 3U, 4U, 23 models

4, Opteror 900W-redundan Tower

Other System Accessories

As part of our server component offerings, we alffer other system accessories that our customaysreguire or that we use to build
our server solutions. These other products incladeng others, microprocessors, memory and diseslthat generally are third party
developed and manufactured products that we redtbibut modification. As of June 30, 2009, we offermore than 3,000 SKUs for other
system accessories.

Technology

We are focused on providing leading edge, highgoaerance products for our customers. We have degdlaplesign process to rapidly
deliver products with superior features. The tedbgy incorporated in our
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products is designed to provide high levels ofatality, quality, security and scalability. Our m@slvanced technology is developed in-house,
which allows us to efficiently implement advancegbabilities into our server solutions. We work allaboration with our key customers and
suppliers to constantly improve upon our desigeduce complexity and improve reliability.

Our rackmount and tower server solutions are basaslr Super SSI architecture, which incorporatepnietary 1/0 expansion, thermal
and cooling design features as well as hefficiency power supplies. For example, our 1U ses\now offer up to 5 I/O expansion slots with
to 18 DIMM slots to accommodate up to 144GB of mgmuwhich, prior to Super SSI, was only possibl@iBU chassis. We also achieved
higher memory densities by designing customizedesbpards to include 16 memory slots without saiiniff /O expansion capability. The
result is what we believe to be a superior senambdesign that provides our customers with ina@edexibility for their new and legacy add-
on card support and the ability to keep up withgh®mving memory requirements needed to maintaitesyperformance requirements.

Our latest chassis designs include advanced coolgahanisms such as proprietary air shrouds todediper cool air directly to the
hottest components of the system resulting in imgdacooling efficiency and consequently increagestiesn reliability. Our newest generation
of power supplies incorporates advanced designifeathat provide what we believe to be the higleest of efficiency in the industry and
therefore reduce overall power consumption. Oueaded power supply solutions include volume shigmehthe industry’s first and only
currently available 1U chassis and servers withou@3% power efficiency.

Our 1U Twin™ and 2U Twird product lines optimized &ensity, performance and efficiency, and havenlvepidly adopted by
customers and other manufacturers.

Research and Development

We have over 16 years of research and developmpetience in server component design and in regesars, have devoted additional
resources to the design of server systems. Ouneedng staff is responsible for the design, dguelent, quality, documentation and releas
our products. We continuously seek ways to optiraizeé improve the performance of our existing proghactfolio and introduce new produ
to address market opportunities. We perform theoritgjof our research and development efforts ind® increasing the communication and
collaboration between design teams to streamlieeldvelopment process and reducing time-to-mavietare determined to continue to
reduce our design and manufacturing costs and wegtee performance, cost effectiveness and theanthikpace efficiency of our solutions.

Over the years, our research and development taarfobused on the development of new and enhamoedgis that can support
emerging protocols while continuing to accommodetgacy technologies. Much of our research and dgweént activity is focused on the n
product cycles of leading chipset vendors. We wabokely with Intel and AMD, among others, to deyepiroducts that are compatible with
latest generation of industry standard technologieter development. Our collaborative approach thighchipset vendors allows us to
coordinate the design of our new products withrtheaduct release schedules, thereby enhancinghilitly to rapidly introduce new products
incorporating the latest technology. We work clgseith their development teams to optimize chipfpenance and reduce system level iss
We also work with companies such as Adaptec ormgtsolutions. Similarly, we work very closely withr customers to identify their needs
and develop our new product plans accordingly.

We believe that the combination of our focus oerinal research and development activities, oureclosrking relationships with chipset
vendors and our modular design approach allow usitémize time-to-market. Since January 2005, wieelse we were the first to introduce
the following new technologies to the market:

* amult-core Xeon architecture with 144 GB main memory béjtg;

» server solutions with a 1U configuration with hidénsity 1/0O capability typically found in a 2U cagiiration, as wellas a 5 I/
with PC-E Gen2 expansion card in a 1U configurati
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» configuration server solutions with a serial atetI$CSI storage option capability with SCSI endleservices, or SES2, f
alerting users to drive temperature and fan faglL

e 1U Twin™ design, including two DP boards configuieé 1U chassis which increases the density ashaces the power
consumption

» The industr’s first 1U multipl-output silve-level certified power supply supporting our” HDD server / storage solutions; a

e 2U Twin2design, including four DP boards configuied 2U chassis with hot-plug servers and redunpawer which increases
the density and reduces the power consump

As of June 30, 2009, we had 325 employees and ihering consultants dedicated to research andaf@went. Our total research and
development expenses were $34.5 million, $30.5anithind $21.2 million for fiscal years 2009, 200®1 2007, respectively.

Sales, Marketing and Customer Service

To execute our strategy, we have developed a aatbsmarketing program which is primarily focusedmuatirect sales channels. As of
June 30, 2009, our sales and marketing organizatioeisted of 98 employees and 18 independent sgdessentatives in 17 locations
worldwide.

We work with distributors, including resellers asystem integrators, and OEMs to market and setbauiged solutions to their end
customers. We provide sales and marketing assestamt training to our distributors and OEMs, wheuim provide service and support to end
customers. We intend to leverage our relationshigis key distributors and OEMs to penetrate seledtistry segments where our products
provide a superior alternative to existing solusioRor a more limited group of customers who donusmally purchase through distributors or
OEMs, we have implemented a direct sales approach.

We maintain close contact with our distributors and customers. We often collaborate during thesgatocess with our distributors and
the customer’s technical point of contact to hedgedmine the optimal system configuration for tostomer’s needs. Our interaction with
distributors and end customers allows us to momiistomer requirements and develop new produdistter meet end customer needs.

International Sale:

Product fulfillment and first level support for oimternational customers are provided by our distars and OEMs. Our international
sales efforts are supported both by our internatioffices in the Netherlands and Taiwan as webysur U.S. sales organization. Sales to
customers located outside of the U.S. represeries¥@ 39.6% and 40.8% of net sales in fiscal y2ae9, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Marketing

Our marketing programs are designed to inform exjsind potential customers, the trade press,hligtrs and OEMs about the
capabilities and benefits of using our products swidtions. Our marketing efforts support the sadd distribution of our products through our
distribution channels. We rely on a variety of maig vehicles, including advertising, public réats, participation in industry trade shows
and conferences to help gain market acceptanceal$@erovide funds for cooperative marketing to d@istributors. These funds reimburse our
distributors for promotional spending they may dobehalf of promoting Supermicro products. Prommispending by distributors is subject
to our pre-approval and includes items such asdilmideo for television, magazine or newspapeesaisements, trade show promotions and
sales force promotions. The amount available th eiétributor is based on its amount of purchadésalso work closely with leading
microprocessor vendors in cooperative marketinganms and benefit from market development fundsttiey make available. These
programs are similar to the programs we make adail@ our distributors in that we are reimbursedexpenses incurred related to promoting
the vendor’s product.
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Customer Service

We provide customer support for our blade and ramkmserver systems through our website and 24-¢mntinuous direct phone based
support. For strategic direct and OEM customersalse have higher levels of customer service aplg|ancluding, in some cases, on site
service and support.

Customers

For fiscal year 2009, our products were purchageaMer 500 customers, most of which are distribaitorapproximately 76 countries.
None of our customers accounted for 10% or mor@uohet sales in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2BAd.users of our products span a br
range of industries.

Case studies of ongoing and successfully comphptbyments of Supermicro server solutions inclingefollowing:

Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL) Sdiéo Research Center (USA)arge scientific research organizations requirdnlyi
optimized CPU and memory performance capabilitiehigected as supercomputing server clusters. Tigpéete the highly complex scientific
research conducted at LLNL, the laboratory requiest-effective and higher efficient computing powebe delivered to their scientific
community. Supermicro server building blocks (sdveards, chassis, power supplies) were selected fdL’s high performance computing
clusters because of their feature optimizationabdity and efficiency and price-to-performancevadtages.

CERN (Switzerland) As one of the world’s largest research labs, CERbse our SuperBlade servers for part of a sianifi upgrade of
its computing capacity for the new LHC (Large Hadf@ollider) project in Geneva. High computationaffprmance, excellent scalability,
superior energy efficiency and a competitive ppegformance ratio were key factors in the prestigiselection process. With the blade server
platforms, CERN has realized a significant incréassomputational power while minimizing its opecatal costs.

Juniper Networks (USAYuniper Networks, an OEM customer, operates irhitjlely competitive and dynamic telecom industry and
seeks differentiation in their end products. Junipetworks required a turnkey appliance soluti@mfran original server design company with
a broad selection of rapidly deployable and flexibérver modules that can be optimized for speafgications and markets. They also
needed local service and post sales support fommaw agility. We provided Juniper Networks with hig customizable server building
blocks and highly integrated turnkey solutions teettheir customer requirements and achieve Jusipesiness objectives.

Dawning (China):One of the largest local China server OEMs, Dawmiegded stable and highly efficient (from perforeeaand power
consumption standpoints) server building block 8ohs to address the growing market in China wiimpetitive server products. Dawning
deployed our dual processor server solutions mighhighly efficient power supplies coupled with tygsce-to-performance to differentiate
their product offerings for the Chinese market amde able to win large server projects in Chinajsidly growing telecom industry.

Siemens (USA/Germanyit order to achieve competitive advantage, Siemereslical imaging systems division needed a seletion
that minimized the amount of time between imagedwapand transmission for CT, MRI and PET scanesyst We implemented a custom
serverboard architecture for Siemens which enailedhighest available 1/0 expansion and system it capabilities for dual processor
systems. This enabled Siemens to achieve maximamemications throughput for their medical imagingducts.

Intellectual Property

We seek to protect our intellectual property righith a combination of trademark, copyright, trageret laws and disclosure restrictic
We rely primarily on trade secrets, technical knoew and other unpatented proprietary informatidatieg to our design and product
development activities. We have issued patents and
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pending patent applications in the U.S. We alserento confidentiality and proprietary rights agmeents with our employees, consultants and
other third parties and control access to our aesigocumentation and other proprietary informat@ur registered trademarks include
SUPERMICRO, our company logo SERVER BUILDING BLOGOLUTION, BUILDING BLOCK SOLUTIONS, SUPERO,
SUPERBOARD, SUPERDOCTOR, A+ MOTHERBOARD, and SUPERBE. Our pending trademark applications includé8XADE
SERVER, PERSONALBLADE, OFFICEBLADE, WE KEEP IT GREEDATACENTERBLADE, X-BLADE SERVER, SUPERSERVER,
TWINZ, and 2U TWIN2. If a claim is asserted that nave infringed the intellectual property of a thjarty, we may be required to seek
licenses to that technology. In addition, we lieettsrd party technologies that are incorporatéd some elements of our services. Third
parties may infringe or misappropriate our propuigtrights.

Manufacturing and Quality Control

We use several third party suppliers and contraotufacturers for materials and sub-assemblies, asiskerverboards, chassis, disk
drives, power supplies, fans and computer proces¥ée believe that selectively using outsourcedufeanturing services allows us to focus on
our core competencies in product design and deredapand increases our operational flexibility. @uanufacturing strategy allows us to
quickly adjust manufacturing capacity in resporsehtanges in customer demand and to rapidly inteaew products to the market. We use
Ablecom, a related party, for contract design amehufiacturing coordination support. We work with &éxm to optimize modular designs for
our chassis and certain of our other componentieodin coordinates the manufacturing of chassisi$otn addition to providing a larger
volume of contract manufacturing services for uslegom continues to warehouse for us a numbermpooments and subassemblies
manufactured by multiple suppliers prior to shipitrenour facilities in the U.S. and Europe.

For server systems, assembly, test and qualityacamte completed at our wholly-owned manufactuffeglity in San Jose, California
which has been ISO-9001 certified since 2001. Tduddity has been certified ISO-9001:2000 complisimce August 2003. We continue to
expand our manufacturing, assembly and test cafiabiin Asia and Europe to be closer to our kegrmational customers and to reduce costs
of shipping our products to our customers. In agance with ISO-9001 requirements, quality contral amventory management is extended
through our suppliers and contract manufacturetis @ontinuous reporting and ongoing qualificatisngrams. The assembly of our server
system products involves integrating supplied niaeand manufactured sub-assemblies into finadyets, which are configured and tested
before being delivered to our customers.

We maintain sufficient inventory such that mosbaf orders can be filled within 14 days. We mondar inventory on a continuous be
in order to be able to meet customer orders amagaa inventory obsolescence. Due to our modulaigies, our inventory can generally be
used with multiple different products, further rethg the risk of inventory write-downs.

Competition

The market for our products is highly competitikapidly evolving and subject to new technologicadelopments, changing customer
needs and new product introductions. We competrapify with large vendors of x86 general purposeees and components. In addition, we
also compete with a number of smaller vendors vgeziglize in the sale of server components anaBystWe believe our principal
competitors include:

» Global technology vendors such as Dell Inc., Het-Packard Company, International Business Machinepdzation and Intel
» Specialized server vendors, such as Silicon Graghiernational (formerly, Rackable Systems, Inan]
» Original Design Manufacturers, or ODMs, such asi@a&omputer, Inc
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The principal competitive factors in our marketlude the following:
» first to market with new emerging technologi
» flexible and customizable products to fit custor’ objectives;
» high product performance and reliabili
» early identification of emerging opportunitie
» cos-effectiveness
* interoperability of products
» scalability; anc
* localized and responsive customer support on adwadk basis
We believe that we compete favorably with respeehost of these factors. However, most of our cditgge have longer operating
histories, significantly greater resources and tgre@ame recognition. They may be able to devatatgr resources to the development,

promotion and sale of their products than we cdrclvcould allow them to respond more quickly tevrtechnologies and changes in custo
needs.

Employees

As of June 30, 2009, we employed 843 full time eypes and 22 consultants, consisting of 325 empkiyeresearch and development,
98 employees in sales and marketing, 85 employegsrieral and administrative and 335 employeesainufacturing. Of these employees,
employees are based in our San Jose facility. Wisider our highly qualified and motivated employ&ebe a key factor in our business
success. Our employees are not represented byoHlagtive bargaining organization and we have nexgerienced a work stoppage. We
believe that our relations with our employees aredy

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reporid@rm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and ameardsnto reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(dh@fecurities Exchange Act are available free afgd, on or through our website at
Www.supermicro.comas soon as reasonably practicable after we efactlly file such reports with, or furnish thosports to, the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Information containedwnaeebsite is not incorporated by reference innpade part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K or our other filings with or reports fished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Iltem 1A.  Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
Our operating results may be adversely affected bg continuation of the downturn in the global econorit environment

Our results of operations for the fiscal year 20@%e adversely impacted by reduced informationrietdigy spending in light of the
economic downturn. Although we cannot predict theel of such reductions or the impact on our bissine future periods, such continued
reduced economic activity could lead to:

* Reduced demand for our products as a result ofraged constraints on IT-related capital spending) lanitations on available
financing;

* Increased price competition for our produi
* Risk of excess and obsolete inventor
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Excess facilities and manufacturing capac
Higher overhead costs as a percentage of reverlbigher interest expense; 8
Risk of uncollectible accounts receiva

Our operating results may also be affected by gaiteor changing economic conditions relating tecfic geographical or product
market segments. If global economic and market itiond, or economic conditions in the United Staiesther key markets, remain uncertain
or persist, spread, or deteriorate further, we mgerience material negative impacts on our busjregeerating results, and financial conditi

Our significant growth makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects and maincrease the risk of your
investment.

Although we have been operating since 1993, ounifségnt growth in revenues over time makes itidifft to evaluate our current
business and future prospects. You must considebuginess and prospects in light of the risksdiffitulties we encounter as a rapidly
growing technology company in a very competitiverket These risks and difficulties include, but aa limited to, the risks identified in this
section and in particular the following factors:

our focus on a single market, the market for appilim optimized server systems and compon:
our increasing focus on the sales of server systemt®mpared to componer

the success of our blade server systems, which fiveténtroduced in September 20(

the difficulties we face in managing rapid growthpiersonnel and operatior

the timing and success of new products and newt#abies introduced by us and our competit
our ability to build brand awareness in a highlynpetitive market; an

our ability to market new and existing productsoom own and with our partner

We may not be able to successfully address anyesktrisks or others. Failure to do so adequatelidesseriously harm our business and
cause our operating results to suffer.

Our quarterly operating results will likely fluctua te in the future, which could cause rapid declinei our stock price.

As our business continues to grow, we believedbhatjuarterly operating results will be subjecgteater fluctuation due to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Becthat may affect quarterly operating result§afuture include:

our ability to attract new customers, retain ergttustomers and increase sales to such custa

unpredictability of the timing and size of custoroeders, since most of our customers purchaserogiupts on a purchase order
basis rather than pursuant to a long term cont

fluctuations in availability and costs associataéthwnaterials needed to satisfy customer requirgs)

variability of our margins based on the mix of s#rgystems and components we ¢

variability of operating expenses as a percentdgetosales

the timing of the introduction of new products kading microprocessor vendors and other supp

our ability to introduce new and innovative serselutions that appeal to our custom:

our ability to address technology issues as thisgaimprove our produc functionality and expand our product offerin
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» changes in our product pricing policies, includithgse made in response to new product announcemeasricing changes of o
competitors

» mix of whether customer purchases are of full syster components and whether made directly or ttrandirect sales channe
» fluctuations based upon seasonal

» the rate of expansion, domestically and internatign

» the effectiveness of our sales force and the effoirbur distributors

» the effect of mergers and acquisitions among ouarpaditors, suppliers or partne

» general economic conditions in our geographic ntarkend

» impact of regulatory changes on our cost of doingjitess

Accordingly, it is difficult for us to accuratelpfecast our growth and results of operations onaatgrly basis. If we fail to meet
expectations of investors or analysts, our stoaepnay fall rapidly and without notice. Furtherrapthe fluctuation of quarterly operating
results may render less meaningful period-to-pecmaparisons of our operating results, and you Ishoot rely upon them as an indication of
future performance.

If the demand for application optimized server soltions does not continue to develop as we anticipatgemand for our server solutions
may not grow as we expect.

The success of our business depends on the codtadoption of application optimized server solusidny businesses for running their
critical business applications. The market for agblon optimized server solutions has begun tetgyvin recent years. As the market for
general purpose servers has grown and maturedndegeneral purpose server vendors have focusguamiding a limited range of models
that could be mass produced, thereby creating paramity for the development of a market focusadmre application optimized servers.
This new market has been marked by frequent intoalus of new technologies and products. Many e$éhtechnologies and products have
not yet gained, and may not gain, significant corgtoacceptance. We expect to devote significaoiress to identifying new market trends
and developing products to meet anticipated custal@mand for application optimized server solutidsiéimately, however, customers may
not purchase application optimized server solutems instead select general purpose lower-coseéseand components. We are also part of a
broader market for server solutions and demanthise server solutions may decline or fail to gemmve expect. Accordingly, we can not
assure you that demand for the type of serverisoitve offer and plan to offer will continue toveééop as we anticipate, or at all.

Our future financial performance will depend on thetimely introduction and widespread acceptance of ew server solutions and
increased functionality of our existing server soltions.

Our future financial performance will depend on ability to meet customer specifications and regmuients by enhancing our current
server solutions and developing server solutiorik néw and better functionality. The success of features and new server solutions dep
on several factors, including their timely introtioo and market acceptance. We may not be sucdéssfaveloping enhancements or new
server solutions, or in timely bringing them to ketr Customers may also defer purchases of outirxigroducts pending the introduction of
anticipated new products. For example, we expeg@mtstomer order delays in advance of Intel's Mghanicroprocessor release at the end
of the quarter ended March 31, 2009. If our newesesolutions are not competitive with solutionfecdéd by other vendors, we may not be
perceived as a technology leader and could miskehapportunities. If we are unable to enhancéduhetionality of our server solutions or
introduce new server solutions which achieve widesgp market acceptance, our reputation will be dghathe value of our brand will
diminish, and our business will suffer. In additiemcertainties about the timing and nature of features and products could result in
increases in our research and development expwiitbeso assurance of future sales.
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We may not be able to successfully manage our plaed growth and expansion.

Although we have reduced our spending in lighthef tecent economic downturn, over time we expecbtdinue to pursue new
customers and expand our product offerings to grombusiness rapidly. In connection with this growte expect that our annual operating
expenses will increase significantly as the econanproves as we invest in sales and marketingareseand development, manufacturing
production infrastructure, and strengthen custogaerice and support resources for our customensfailure to expand operational and
financial systems timely or efficiently could resu additional operating inefficiencies, which ¢dincrease our costs and expenses more than
we had planned and prevent us from successfullguixgy our business plan. We may not be able twetthe costs of operation expansion by
leveraging the economies of scale from our growthegotiations with our suppliers and contract nf@acturers. Additionally, if we do increa
our operating expenses in anticipation of the ghosftour business and this growth does not meeeppectations, our financial results will be
negatively impacted.

If our business grows, we will have to manage aalu#l product design projects, materials procurempescesses, and sales efforts and
marketing for an increasing number of SKUs, as agléxpand the number and scope of our relatiosistith suppliers, distributors and end
customers. If we fail to manage these additionspoasibilities and relationships successfully, wayimcur significant costs, which may
negatively impact our operating results.

Additionally, in our efforts to be first to markefith new products with innovative functionality afehtures, we may devote significant
research and development resources to productgraddct features for which a market does not dgvglgckly, or at all. If we are not able to
predict market trends accurately, we may not befrefin such research and development activitied,cm results of operations may suffer.

The market in which we participate is highly compeitive, and if we do not compete effectively, we maryot be able to increase our
market penetration, grow our net sales or improve or gross margins.

The market for server solutions is intensely cortipetand rapidly changing. Barriers to entry irr ovarket are relatively low and we
expect increased challenges from existing as vgefleav competitors. Some of our principal compeditaffer server solutions at a lower price,
which has resulted in pricing pressures on salesipgerver solutions. We expect further downwaicing pressure from our competitors and
expect that we will have to price some of our sesadutions aggressively to increase our marketestth respect to those products. If we are
unable to maintain the margins on our server smhgti our operating results could be negatively ictgzh In addition, if we do not develop n
innovative server solutions, or enhance the rditgbperformance, efficiency and other feature®of existing server solutions, our customers
may turn to our competitors for alternatives. lali&idn, pricing pressures and increased competiiemerally may also result in reduced sales,
lower margins or the failure of our products toiagk or maintain widespread market acceptancepmhich could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

Our principal competitors include global technolagympanies such as Dell, Inc., Hewlett-Packard Goypinternational Business
Machines Corporation and Intel. In addition, weoatempete with a number of smaller vendors who sddloapplication optimized servers,
such as Silicon Graphics International (formerlackable Systems, Inc.), and original design marnufecs, or ODMs, such as Quanta
Computer Incorporated. ODMs sell server solutioaskated or sold under a third party brand.

Many of our competitors enjoy substantial competitadvantages, such as:

» greater name recognition and deeper market peiuety
» longer operating historie
» larger sales and marketing organizations and relseard development teams and budc

* more established relationships with customers,rachtnanufacturers and suppliers and better chanaeeach larger custom
bases
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» larger customer service and support organizatiatisgveater geographic scoy
» abroader and more diversified array of products services; an
» substantially greater financial, technical and ptlesources

As a result, our competitors may be able to respoack quickly and effectively than we can to neveloanging opportunities,
technologies, standards or customer requiremeninp@titors may seek to copy our innovations andcoseadvantages from greater size to
compete aggressively with us on price. Certainausts are also current or prospective competitodsas a result, assistance that we provide
to them as customers may ultimately result in iaseel competitive pressure against us. Furtherrheoause of these advantages, even if our
application optimized server solutions are moreaffe than the products that our competitors offetential customers might accept
competitive products in lieu of purchasing our prog. The challenges we face from larger compstitoll become even greater if
consolidation or collaboration between or amongammpetitors occurs in our industry. For all ofgbeeasons, we may not be able to compete
successfully against our current or future competjtand if we do not compete effectively, ourifpto increase our net sales may be impa

As we increasingly target larger customers, our cuemer base may become less diversified, our costsdles may increase, and our sales
may be less predictable.

We expect that as our business continues to gremyil be increasingly dependent upon larger sedesew customer to maintain our
rate of growth and that selling our server solwitmlarger customers will create new challengesvéver, if certain customers buy our
products in greater volumes, and their busineserhes a larger percentage of our net sales, we noayigcreasingly dependent on those
customers to maintain our growth. If our largesttomers do not purchase our products at the levefsthe timeframes that we expect, our
ability to maintain or grow our net sales will bdvarsely affected.

Additionally, as we and our distribution partnessus increasingly on selling to larger customes atracting larger orders, we expect
greater costs of sales. Our sales cycle may betmmer and more expensive, as larger customersalpispend more time negotiating
contracts than smaller customers. In addition daoyistomers often seek to gain greater pricingessions, as well as greater levels of support
in the implementation and use of our server sahstid@ hese factors can result in lower margins €orpyoducts.

Increased sales to larger companies may also dagseations in results of operations. A largertouser may seek to fulfill all or
substantially all of its requirements in a singtdey, and not make another purchase for a signifipariod of time. Accordingly, a significant
increase in revenue during the period in which @egnize the revenue from the sale may be follomyed period of time during which the
customer purchases none or few of our productsgrifcant decline in net sales in periods follogia significant order could adversely affect
our stock price.

We must work closely with our suppliers to make tinely new product introductions.

We rely on our close working relationships with guppliers, including Intel and AMD, to anticipated deliver new products on a
timely basis when new generation materials and congponents are made available. Intel and AMD faeeonly suppliers of the
Microprocessors we use in our server systems. Hreeot able to maintain our relationships with swppliers or continue to leverage their
research and development capabilities to develepteehnologies desired by our customers, our glbitquickly offer advanced technology
and product innovations to our customers wouldnygaired. We have no long term agreements thatateligur suppliers to continue to work
with us or to supply us with products.
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Our suppliers’ failure to improve the functionality and performance of materials and core component®f our products may impair or
delay our ability to deliver innovative products toour customers.

We need our material and core component supp$acd) as Intel and AMD, to provide us with core comgnts that are innovative,
reliable and attractive to our customers. Due éoghce of innovation in our industry, many of oustomers may delay or reduce purchase
decisions until they believe that they are recejuiest of breed products that will not be rendetesblete by an impending technological
development. Accordingly, demand for new servetesyis that incorporate new products and featursigiigficantly impacted by our suppliers’
new product introduction schedules and the funelion performance and reliability of those new gwots. If our materials and core
component suppliers fail to deliver new and impbweaterials and core components for our produatsmay not be able to satisfy customer
demand for our products in a timely manner, oflatfaour suppliers’ components do not functioroperly, we may incur additional costs and
our relationships with our customers may be adWeedféected.

Our time to market advantage is dependent upon ousuppliers’ ability to continue to introduce improved components for our products.

We are dependent upon our material and core conmpsoepliers, such as Intel and AMD, to continuétooduce improved products
with additional features that our customers wilkfiattractive. If the pace of innovation from ouppliers slows, our products may face
increased competition if our competitors are ablmtroduce products that use the latest technobtdfgyed by other suppliers in the industry.
This price competition could lead to reduced magind could adversely affect our results of openati

As our business grows and if the economy does natprove, we expect that we may be exposed to greamurstomer credit risks.

Historically, we have offered limited credit tertesour customers. As our customer base expandsjragders increase in size, and a:
obtain more direct customers, we expect to offerdased credit terms and flexible payment progranasir customers. Doing so may subject
us to increased credit risk, higher accounts retsé/with longer days outstanding, and increaseblanges or reserves, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultpefations and financial condition. Likewise, ttomtinuing economic downturn exposes us to
greater credit risk.

Our ability to develop our brand is critical to our ability to grow.

We believe that acceptance of our server solutigrsn expanding customer base depends in larg@pantreasing awareness of the
Supermicro brand and that brand recognition wilelsen more important as competition in our marlketedbps. In particular, we expect an
increasing proportion of our sales to come fronesalf server systems, the sales of which we betigase be particularly impacted by brand
strength. Successful promotion of our brand wipeled largely on the effectiveness of our markegfigrts and on our ability to develop
reliable and useful products at competitive pridesdate, we have not devoted significant resout@ésiilding our brand, and have limited
experience in increasing customer awareness dbraund. Our future brand promotion activities, irtihg any expansion of our cooperative
marketing programs with strategic partners, maplve significant expense and may not generate elb$éwvels of increased revenue, and even
if such activities generate some increased revesugh increased revenue may not offset the expevis@scurred in endeavoring to build our
brand. If we fail to successfully promote and maiimtour brand, or incur substantial expenses inattempts to promote and maintain our
brand, we may fail to attract enough new custoroeretain our existing customers to the extent sgmey to realize a sufficient return on our
brand-building efforts, and as a result our opagatesults and financial condition could suffer.
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We principally rely on indirect sales channels foithe sale and distribution of our products and any @ruption in these channels could
adversely affect our sales.

Historically, a substantial majority of our revesuwave resulted from sales of our products thrahigt party distributors and resellers,
which sales accounted for approximately 64.9%, %9a9d 66.8% of our net sales in fiscal years 28008 and 2007, respectively. We dep
on our distributors to assist us in promoting magazeptance of our products and anticipate thaajarity of our revenues will continue to
result from sales through indirect channels. Toma@n and potentially increase our revenue andtatufity, we will have to successfully
preserve and expand our existing distribution i@tehips as well as develop new distribution relahips. Our distributors also sell products
offered by our competitors and may elect to fotwesrtefforts on these sales. If our competitorgoffur distributors more favorable terms or
have more products available to meet the needseafdcustomers, or utilize the leverage of brogeduct lines sold through the distributors,
those distributors may de-emphasize or declinetoyour products. In addition, our distributorsder decisiormaking process is complex &
involves several factors, including end customenaled, warehouse allocation and marketing resoundgish can make it difficult to
accurately predict total sales for the quarterl lai in the quarter. We also do not control thieipg or discounts offered by distributors to end
customers. To maintain our participation in digitdrs’ marketing programs, in the past we have iplex¥ cooperative marketing arrangements
or made short-term pricing concessions. The discoation of cooperative marketing arrangementsriming concessions could have a
negative effect on our business. Our distributorda also modify their business practices, suchasnent terms, inventory levels or order
patterns. If we are unable to maintain successfationships with distributors or expand our dimition channels or we experience unexpected
changes in payment terms, inventory levels or gtihactices by our distributors, our business wiffer.

We may be unable to accurately predict future salethrough our distributors, which could harm our ability to efficiently manage our
resources to match market demand.

Since a significant portion of our sales are méweugh domestic and international distributors, financial results, quarterly product
sales, trends and comparisons are affected by#tions in the buying patterns of end customersoamdlistributors, and by the changes in
inventory levels of our products held by theseritistors. We generally record revenue based ugselain” model which means that we
generally record revenue upon shipment to ouriligiors. For more information regarding our reveneognition policies, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations—Critical Acctinm Policies.” While we attempt to
assist our distributors in maintaining targeteakitag level of our products, we may not consisteb# accurate or successful. This process
involves the exercise of judgment and use of assionmgpas to future uncertainties including end eotr demand. Our distributors also have
various rights to return products which could, agother things, result in our having to repurchasentory which has declined in value or is
obsolete. Consequently, actual results could diffem our estimates. Inventory levels of our pradueeld by our distributors may exceed or
fall below the levels we consider desirable on mgdorward basis. This could adversely affect distributors or our ability to efficiently
manage or invest in internal resources, such asifaeturing and shipping capacity, to meet the deshfanour products.

If we are required to change the timing of our revaue recognition, our net sales and net income couttecrease.

We currently record revenue based upon a “sellxiotlel with revenues generally recorded upon shipmiproducts to our distributors.
This is in contrast to a “sell-through” model puaatito which revenues are generally recognized gpteof products by distributors to their
customers. This requires that we maintain a resereever the estimated costs of any returns orogses of stock rotation rights, which we
estimate primarily based on our historical expergerif facts and circumstances change such thatteeof returns of our products exceeds our
historical experience, we may have to increaseaeagrve, which, in turn, would cause our revenudetdine. Similarly, if facts and
circumstances change such that we are no longeit@lbletermine reasonable estimates of our salashise we would be required to defer our
revenue recognition until the point of
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sale from the distributors to their customers. Angh change may negatively impact our net salegtincome for particular periods and ca
a decline in our stock price. For additional infation regarding our revenue recognition policieg Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-ti€al Accounting Policies.”

The average selling prices for our existing servesolutions are subject to decline if customers do heontinue to purchase our latest
generation products, which could harm our results boperations.

As with most electronics based products, averalljeg@rices of servers typically are highest a thme of introduction of new products,
which utilize the latest technology, and tend tordase over time as such products become comnextiizd are ultimately replaced by even
newer generation products. Although we have not lipacted by this phenomenon to any material éxtedate, we experienced greater
pricing pressure in the quarter ended March 31920@nticipation of the release of new productoiporating Intel’s Nehalem
microprocessor. However, as our business contittuggow, we may increasingly be subject to thisustdy risk. We cannot predict the timing
or amount of any decline in the average sellinggwiof our server solutions that we may experiémtige future. In some instances, our
agreements with our distributors limit our abilityreduce prices unless we make such price redigctivailable to them, or price protect their
inventory. If we are unable to decrease per unitufeecturing costs faster than the rate at whichane selling prices continue to decline, our
business, financial condition and results of openatwill be harmed.

Our cost structure and ability to deliver server sdutions to customers in a timely manner may be advsely affected by volatility of the
market for core components and materials for our poducts.

Prices of materials and core components utilizetiénmanufacture of our server solutions, sucteagegboards, chassis, central
processing units, or CPUs, memory and hard drigpeesent a significant portion of our cost of sal#e generally do not enter into long-term
supply contracts for these materials and core compis, but instead purchase these materials andarents on a purchase order basis. Prices
of these core components and materials are vglatilé, as a result, it is difficult to predict erge levels and operating results. In addition, if
our business growth renders it necessary or apiptedo transition to longer term contracts withtenzls and core component suppliers, our
costs may increase and our gross margins couldsmondingly decrease.

Because we often acquire materials and core corm®oe an as needed basis, we may be limited ialaility to effectively and
efficiently respond to customer orders becausé@then-current availability or the terms and mgcof materials and core components. Our
industry has experienced materials shortages diddedelays in the past, and we may experiencetabes or delays of critical materials in
the future. From time to time, we have been fortedelay the introduction of certain of our produoct the fulfillment of customer orders as a
result of shortages of materials and core companérghortages or delays arise, the prices ofetiesterials and core components may
increase or the materials and core components widyenavailable at all. In addition, in the evehsloortages, some of our larger competitors
may have greater abilities to obtain materials @ré components due to their larger purchasing powe may not be able to secure enough
core components or materials at reasonable pricesazceptable quality to build new products teetmaustomer demand, which could
adversely affect our business and financial results

We may lose sales or incur unexpected expenses tilg to insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory.

As a result of our strategy to provide greater ch@nd customization of our products to our custemee are required to maintain a high
level of inventory. If we fail to maintain suffiai¢ inventory, we may not be able to meet demanadomproducts on a timely basis, and our
sales may suffer. If we overestimate customer denfiamour products, we could experience excessnitorg of our products and be unable to
sell those products at a reasonable price, ot.aksk result, we may need to record higher inegnteserves. If we are
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later able to sell such products at a profit, iyrmecrease the quarterly variances in our operatesglts. Additionally, the rapid pace of
innovation in our industry could render significgartions of our existing inventory obsolete. Cieraf our distributors and OEMs have rights
to return products, limited to purchases over &ifipd period of time, generally within 60 to 90ydeof the purchase, or to products in the
distributor’'s or OEM’s inventory at certain timesich as termination of the agreement or produatlebsence. Any returns under these
arrangements could result in additional obsoleteniory. In addition, server systems and comportbatishave been customized and later
returned by those of our customers and partnershakie return rights or stock rotation rights mayubasable for other purposes or may
require reformation at additional cost to be maaaly for sale to other customers. Excess or oleswleentory levels for these or other reasons
could result in unexpected expenses or increasagrireserves against potential future chargestwivimuld adversely affect our business and
financial results. For example, during fiscal ye2089, 2008 and 2007, we recorded inventory writests charged to cost of sales of

$1.5 million, $6.9 million and $5.6 million, resgaely, for excess and obsolete inventory. For &ddal information regarding customer ret
rights, see “Management’s Discussion and AnalyERimancial Condition and Results of Operations—ti€ai Accounting Policies—Revenue
Recognition.”

Our focus on internal development and customizablserver solutions could delay our introduction of ne/ products and result in
increased costs.

Our strategy is to rely to a significant degredrdaarnally developed components, even when thirtypamponents may be available.
believe this allows us to develop products withreager range of features and functionality andwadlas to develop solutions that are more
customized to customer needs. However, if not ptgpeanaged, this reliance on internally developethponents may be more costly than
of third party components, thereby making our prtslless price competitive or reducing our mardingddition, our reliance on internal
development may lead to delays in the introduatibnew products and impair our ability to introdygreducts rapidly to market. We may also
experience increases in our inventory costs andletesinventory, thereby reducing our margins.

Our research and development expenditures, as a pEntage of our net sales, are considerably highendan many of our competitors anc
our earnings will depend upon maintaining revenueand margins that offset these expenditures.

Our strategy is to focus on being consistentlydapimarket with flexible and customizable serwestems that take advantage of our
own internal development and the latest technotogftered by microprocessor manufacturers and athiponent vendors. Consistent with
this strategy, we spend higher amounts, as a pagenf revenues, on research and developmenttbastsnany of our competitors. If we can
not sell our products in sufficient volume and wattequate gross margins to compensate for sucktmeat in research and development, our
earnings may be materially and adversely affected.

If our limited number of contract manufacturers or suppliers of materials and core components fail tmeet our requirements, we may
be unable to meet customer demand for our productsyhich could decrease our revenues and earnings.

We purchase many sophisticated materials and aon@anents from one or a limited number of qualiegpliers and rely on a limited
number of contract manufacturers to provide vallged design, manufacturing, assembly and testcger\iVe generally do not have lomegm
agreements with these vendors, and instead obeégimlaterials and services through purchase ordengements. We have no contractual
assurances from any contract manufacturer thatiedegapacity will be available to us to meet fetdemand for our products.

Consequently, we are vulnerable to any disruptinrssipply with respect to the materials and comamonents provided by limitesburce
suppliers, and we are at risk of being harmed bgdlitinuations of design, manufacturing, assembtesiing services from our contract
manufacturers. We have occasionally experiencedetgldelays from our suppliers and contract maciwfieers because of high industry
demand or
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because of inability to meet our quality or delivezquirements. For example, in the quarter endgude®nber 30, 2006, we experienced delays
in the delivery of printed circuit board material@aresult of the loss of two of our five printécait board vendors. One of the vendors filed
bankruptcy and the other changed its business namdkteased supplying us. The delays in delivetii@Mmaterials resulted in a reduction of
net sales for the quarter of approximately twdhr@e million dollars. If our relationships with osuppliers and contract manufactures are
negatively impacted by late payments or other isswe may not receive timely delivery of materiatsl core components. If we were to lose
any of our current supply or contract manufacturielgtionships, the process of identifying and dyialg a new supplier or contract
manufacturer who will meet our quality and deliveeguirements, and who will appropriately safeguardintellectual property, may require
significant investment of time and resources, askigraffecting our ability to satisfy customer puase orders and delaying our ability to
rapidly introduce new products to market. Similaifyany of our suppliers were to cancel or matirishange contracts or commitments to us
or fail to meet the quality or delivery requirementeded to satisfy customer demand for our predoat reputation and relationships with
customers could be damaged. We could lose ordensnable to develop or sell some products effsietively or on a timely basis, if at all, a
have significantly decreased revenues, marginseamings, which would have a material adverse effe®ur business.

Our failure to deliver high quality server solutions could damage our reputation and diminish demandofr our products.

Our server solutions are critical to our custombrssiness operations. Our customers require ouessolutions to perform at a high
level, contain valuable features and be extrenmalglile. The design of our server solutions is s&tfgfated and complex, and the process for
manufacturing, assembling and testing our servetisas is challenging. Occasionally, our desigm@anufacturing processes may fail to
deliver products of the quality that our customerguire. For example, in 2000, a vendor provideditls a defective capacitor that failed un
certain heavy use applications. As a result, oadpct needed to be repaired. Though the vendoeddoepay for a large percentage of the
costs of the repairs, we incurred costs in conanatiith the recall and diverted resources from iogtejects.

New flaws or limitations in our server solutionsyrse detected in the future. Part of our strategy ibring new products to market
quickly, and first-generation products may haveghér likelihood of containing undetected flawsolfr customers discover defects or other
performance problems with our products, our custshimisinesses, and our reputation, may be dam&yedomers may elect to delay or
withhold payment for defective or underperformimg\gr solutions, request remedial action, termigatéracts for untimely delivery, or elect
not to order additional server solutions, whichldaesult in an increase in our provision for ddub&accounts, an increase in collection cycles
for accounts receivable or subject us to the ex@ans risk of litigation. We may incur expenseenalling, refurbishing or repairing defective
server solutions. If we do not properly addresdarasr concerns about our products, our reputatighrelationships with our customers may
be harmed. For all of these reasons, customertidifsszion with the quality of our products coulabstantially impair our ability to grow our
business.

Conflicts of interest may arise between us and Abb®m Technology Inc., one of our major contract manfacturers, and those conflicts
may adversely affect our operations.

We use Ablecom, a related party, for contract deaigd manufacturing coordination support. We woitk viiblecom to optimize
modular designs for our chassis and certain ofratbmponents. Our purchases from Ablecom repredeproximately 22.1%, 24.3% and
27.7% of our cost of sales for fiscal years 20@@8&and 2007, respectively. Ablecom’s sales toamstitute a substantial majority of
Ablecom’s net sales. Ablecom is a privately-heldia-based company.

Steve Liang, Ablecom’s Chief Executive Officer datyest shareholder, is the brother of Charlesd.iaur President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board. Charles Liang] his spouse, Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang, our \Reesident of Operations, Treasurer and
director, jointly own approximately 30.7% of
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Ablecom’s outstanding common stock. Charles Liang serveddasector of Ablecom during our fiscal 2006, itot currently serving in su
capacity. In addition, Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw, ouice President of International Sales and Secretargt a director, and his wife jointly own
approximately 5.2% of Ablecom’s outstanding commstock, and collectively, Mr. Charles Liang, Ms. hig Mr. Liaw, Mr. Steve Liang and
relatives of these individuals own over 80% of Ald’s outstanding common stock. Mr. and Mrs. Clsaldiang, as directors, officers and
significant stockholders, and Mr. Liaw, as an dficdirector and significant stockholder, of then@any, have considerable influence over the
management of our business relationships. Accolglimge may be disadvantaged by their economic éstsras stockholders of Ablecom and
their personal relationship with Ablecom’s Chiefdextive Officer. We may not negotiate or enforcetractual terms as aggressively with
Ablecom as we might with an unrelated party, ardabmmercial terms of our agreements may be lessdhle than we might obtain in
negotiations with third parties. If our businessliegs with Ablecom are not as favorable to usrassadength transactions, our results of
operations may be harmed.

In addition, our relationships with Ablecom coule &dversely affected by declines in our stock poicdivestments by Ablecom of its
shares of our common stock. Steve Liang, Ablecddinief Executive Officer, held approximately 2.5%anir outstanding common stock as of
June 30, 2009. If the value of the shares thateStéang holds should decline, by decrease in amaksprice or by disposition of the shares, if
Steve Liang ceases to have significant influenax éblecom, or if those of our stockholders whodhsthares of Ablecom cease to hold a
majority of the outstanding shares of Ablecom,tdrens and conditions of our agreements with Ablecoay not be as favorable as those ir
existing contracts. As a result, our costs coutdgéase and adversely affect our margins and resiutigerations.

Our relationship with Ablecom may allow us to benet from favorable pricing which may result in reported results more favorable thar
we might report in the absence of our relationship.

Although we generally re-negotiate the price ofdurcts that we purchase from Ablecom on a quartssis, pursuant to our agreements
with Ablecom either party may re-negotiate the @i products for each order. As a result of olatienship with Ablecom, it is possible that
Ablecom may in the future sell products to us ptiee lower than we could obtain from an unrelatecd party supplier. This may result in
future reporting of gross profit as a percentageatfsales that is less than or in excess of wikathight have obtained absent our relationship
with Ablecom.

Our reliance on Ablecom could be subject to risksssociated with our reliance on a limited source afontract manufacturing services
and inventory warehousing.

We continue to maintain our manufacturing relatfopsvith Ablecom in Asia. In order to provide adar volume of contract
manufacturing services for us, Ablecom will congrto warehouse for us an increasing number of coents and subassemblies manufact
by multiple suppliers prior to shipment to our féigs in the U.S. and Europe. We also anticiphtg tve will continue to lease office space
from Ablecom in Taiwan to support the research denelopment efforts we are undertaking.

If we or Ablecom fail to manage the contract maxtiang services and warehouse operations in Aganay experience delays in our
ability to fulfill customer orders. Similarly, if Blecom’s facility in Asia is subject to damage, tdestion or other disruptions, our inventory
may be damaged or destroyed, and we may be urafiteltadequate alternative providers of contraahuafacturing services in the time that
we or our customers require. We could lose ordedshe unable to develop or sell some products effsttively or on a timely basis, if at all.

Currently, we purchase contract manufacturing ses/primarily for our chassis and power supply potsl from Ablecom. If our
commercial relationship with Ablecom were to dedeate or terminate, establishing direct relatiopshiith those entities supplying Ablecom
with key materials for our products or identifyingd negotiating agreements with alternative pragidé warehouse and contract
manufacturing services might take a considerableustof time and require a significant investmetesources. Pursuant to our agreements
with
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Ablecom and subject to certain exceptions, Ablebam the exclusive right to be our supplier of thecific products developed under such
agreements. As a result, if we are unable to olstadh products from Ablecom on terms acceptabiesiave may need to identify a new
supplier, change our design and acquire new toodilh@f which could result in delays in our protiawailability and increased costs. If we
need to use other suppliers, we may not be aldstablish business arrangements that are, indilydorain the aggregate, as favorable as the
terms and conditions we have established with Alstedf any of these things should occur, our nissanargins and earnings could
significantly decrease, which would have a matextblerse effect on our business.

We are increasing our operations in Taiwan, China ad the Netherlands and could be subject to risks afoing business in the region.

We intend to increase our business operations infdeuand Asia, and particularly in the Netherlafidgyan and China. As a result, our
exposure to the business risks presented by theetes and regulatory environments of Asia willrgase. For example, the validity,
enforceability and scope of protection of inteliedtproperty is uncertain and evolving in the Netrals, Taiwan and China, and our
intellectual property rights may not be protecteder the laws of the Netherlands, Taiwan and Ctdrthe same extent as under laws of the
United States. If our intellectual property is npipeopriated, we may experience unfair competitiod declining sales or be forced to incur
increased costs of enforcing our intellectual progpeghts, both of which would adversely affectr met sales, gross margins and results of
operations.

Our growth into markets outside the United Statesgoses us to risks inherent in international busings operations.

We market and sell our systems and componentsduaottestically and outside the United States. Wenohte expand our international
sales efforts, especially into Asia, but our inggional expansion efforts may not be successfut.i@arnational operations expose us to risks
and challenges that we would otherwise not fageeitonducted our business only in the United Statash as:

» heightened price sensitivity from customers in egimey markets

« our ability to establish local manufacturing, sug@nd service functions, and to form channel i@teships with resellers in n-
U.S. markets

» localization of our systems and components, incigdianslation into foreign languages and the aasstexpense:

» compliance with multiple, conflicting and changiggvernmental laws and regulatiol

» foreign currency fluctuation:

» limited visibility into sales of our products by rodistributors;

» laws favoring local competitor.

» weaker legal protections of intellectual propefghts and mechanisms for enforcing those rig

» market disruptions created by public health criseggions outside the U.S., such as Avian flu, SAdRd other disease¢

« difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opéwoas, including challenges presented by relatigopsstvith workers’ councils and
labor unions; an

» changing regional economic and political conditic
These factors could limit our future internatioeales or otherwise adversely impact our operations.
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We have in the past entered into plea and settlemeagreements with the government relating to violdbns of export control and relatec
laws; if we fail to comply with laws and regulatiors restricting dealings with sanctioned countries, @ may be subject to future civil or
criminal penalties, which may have a material advese effect on our business or ability to do businessitside the U.S.

In 2006, we entered into certain plea and settl¢rmgreement with government agencies relating pmexcontrol and related law
violations for activities that occurred in the 20012003 timeframe. We believe we are currentlgampliance in all material respects with
applicable export related laws and regulations. ek, if our export compliance program is not gffe; or if we are subject to any future
claims regarding violation of export control an@eomic sanctions laws, we could be subject to civiriminal penalties, which could lead to
a material fine or other sanctions, including loEsxport privileges, that may have a material aseffect on our business, financial
condition, results of operation and future prospelet addition, these plea and settlement agreenagnt any future violations could have an
adverse impact on our ability to sell our produott).S. federal, state and local government aratedlentities.

Any failure to protect our intellectual property ri ghts, trade secrets and technical know-how could ipair our brand and our
competitiveness.

Our ability to prevent competitors from gaining @ss to our technology is essential to our sucties® fail to protect our intellectual
property rights adequately, we may lose an impoddmantage in the markets in which we competedd@maark, patent, copyright and trade
secret laws in the United States and other juriitis as well as our internal confidentiality prdaees and contractual provisions are the core
of our efforts to protect our proprietary techngl@nd our brand. Our patents and other intellegivgberty rights may be challenged by others
or invalidated through administrative process tigdition, and we may initiate claims or litigatiagainst third parties for infringement of our
proprietary rights. Such administrative proceediagd litigation are inherently uncertain and divegources that could be put towards other
business priorities. We may not be able to obtdavarable outcome and may spend considerable res®in our efforts to defend and protect
our intellectual property.

Furthermore, legal standards relating to the vigljdinforceability and scope of protection of iteetual property rights are uncertain.
Effective patent, trademark, copyright and tradeeteprotection may not be available to us in ewsyntry in which our products are availa
The laws of some foreign countries may not be ateptive of intellectual property rights as thaséhe United States, and mechanisms for
enforcement of intellectual property rights mayitedequate.

Accordingly, despite our efforts, we may be undblerevent third parties from infringing upon orsappropriating our intellectual
property and using our technology for their conmtpeatiadvantage. Any such infringement or misapgedjam could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

Resolution of claims that we have violated or mayiwlate the intellectual property rights of others ould require us to indemnify our
customers, resellers or vendors, redesign our prodts, or pay significant royalties to third parties,and materially harm our business.

Our industry is marked by a large number of patesdpyrights, trade secrets and trademarks andelgyént litigation based on
allegations of infringement or other violation afellectual property rights. Third-parties havehie past sent us correspondence regarding thei
intellectual property and in the future we may reeelaims that our products infringe or violatérdhparties’ intellectual property rights. For
example, we were subject to a lawsuit filed in 2099Rackable Systems, Inc. In May 2007, we settiecclaims on terms which had no
adverse effect on our business, financial condigiod result of operations. In addition, increasimgin-operating companies are purchasing
patents and bringing claims against technology @nigs. We are currently subject to two such claBugcessful intellectual property claims
against us from others could result in significéamancial liability or prevent us from operatingrdasiness or portions of our business as we
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currently conduct it or as we may later condudhitaddition, resolution of claims may require asédesign our technology, to obtain licenses
to use intellectual property belonging to thirdtjees, which we may not be able to obtain on reaslen@rms, to cease using the technology
covered by those rights, and to indemnify our anstis, resellers or vendors. Any claim, regardlésts anerits, could be expensive and time
consuming to defend against, and divert the atiardf our technical and management resources.

If we lose Charles Liang, our President, Chief Exadive Officer and Chairman, or any other key employe or are unable to attract
additional key employees, we may not be able to ingment our business strategy in a timely manner.

Our future success depends in large part uponahentied service of our executive management teahother key employees. In
particular, Charles Liang, our President, Chiefdxize Officer and Chairman of the Board, is cétito the overall management of our
company as well as to the development of our ceiléund our strategic direction. Mr. Liang co-founded company and has been our Chief
Executive Officer since our inception. His expedern running our business and his personal invoér in key relationships with suppliers,
customers and strategic partners are extremelyakbduo our company. We currently do not have aassion plan for the replacement of
Mr. Liang if it were to become necessary. Additityave are particularly dependent on the contingervice of our existing research and
development personnel because of the complexibuoproducts and technologies. Our employment gements with our executives and
employees do not require them to provide servigastfor any specific length of time, and they teominate their employment with us at any
time, with or without notice, without penalty. Thess of services of any of these executives omefa@r more other key members of our team
could seriously harm our business.

To execute our growth plan, we must attract ada#idighly qualified personnel, including additibeagineers and executive staff.
Competition for qualified personnel is intense,exsally in San Jose, where we are headquarterechale experienced in the past and may
continue to experience difficulty in hiring andaiting highly skilled employees with appropriatelfications. In particular, we are currently
working to add personnel in our finance, accounéind general administration departments, which ésterically had limited budgets and
staffing. If we are unable to attract and integeadditional key employees in a manner that enaldes scale our business and operations
effectively, or if we do not maintain competitiveropensation policies to retain our employees, bilityato operate effectively and efficiently
could be limited.

Any failure to adequately expand our sales force Wiimpede our growth.

Though we expect to continue to rely primarily bird party distributors to sell our server soluspwe expect that, over time, our direct
sales force will grow. Competition for direct safErsonnel with the advanced sales skills and teahknowledge we need is intense. Our
ability to grow our revenue in the future will deygk in large part, on our success in recruitingining, retaining and successfully managing
sufficient qualified direct sales personnel. Nevegirequire significant training and may take sonitihs or longer before they reach full
productivity. Our recent hires and planned hirey mat become as productive as we would like, ananag be unable to hire sufficient
numbers of qualified individuals in the future retmarkets where we do business. If we are unaliize and develop sufficient numbers of
productive sales personnel, sales of our servetienk will suffer.

Our direct sales efforts may create confusion forar end customers and harm our relationships with oudistributors and OEMs.

Though our direct sales efforts have historicatheib limited and focused on customers who typiaddiyot buy from distributors or
OEMs, we expect our direct sales force to growwasasiness grows. As our direct sales force besdarger, our direct sales efforts may lead
to conflicts with our distributors and OEMs, whoynaew our direct sales efforts as underminingrtledforts to sell our products. If a
distributor or OEM deems our direct sales effootbé inappropriate, the distributor or OEM may efféctively market our products, may
emphasize alternative products from competitorsnay seek to terminate our business relationshgruptions
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in our distribution channels could cause our reesrno decrease or fail to grow as expected. Oluréaio implement an effective direct sales
strategy that maintains and expands our relatipssiiith our distributors and OEMs could lead tcealohe in sales and adversely affect our
results of operations.

Backlog does not provide a substantial portion of ur net sales in any quarter.

Our net sales are difficult to forecast becaus@@aot have sufficient backlog of unfilled ordepstieet our quarterly net sales targets at
the beginning of a quarter. Rather, a majority wf et sales in any quarter depend upon custorder®that we receive and fulfill in that
guarter. Because our expense levels are basedtiarpaur expectations as to future net sales amdarge extent are fixed in the short term,
we might be unable to adjust spending in time tmpensate for any shortfall in net sales. Accordinghy significant shortfall of revenues in
relation to our expectations would harm our opatatesults.

If the market for modular, open standard-based prodicts does not continue to grow, opportunities to eour products will be scarcer
and our ability to grow would suffer.

The success of our business requires companiesnmit to a modular, open standard-based serveitectire instead of traditional
proprietary and RISC/UNIX based servers. If enfegs do not adopt this open standard-based appritecmarket for our products may not
grow as we anticipate and our revenues would beradly affected. Many prospective customers hawesied significant financial and human
resources in their existing systems, many of whihcritical to their operations, and they maydt&ent to overhaul their systems. Moreover,
many of the server systems that we sell currentyan the Linux operating system, and are subjettte GNU General Public License.
Pending litigation involving Linux and the GNU GeakPublic License could be resolved in a mannat &ldversely affects Linux adoption in
our industry and could materially harm our abititysell our products based on the Linux operatyggesn and the GNU General Public
License. If the market for open standard-based taodecchnologies does not continue to develop figrr@ason, our ability to grow our
business will be adversely affected.

Our business and operations are especially subjett the risks of earthquakes other natural catastropic events.

Our corporate headquarters, including our mostifsogimt research and development and manufactunrggations, are located in the
Silicon Valley area of Northern California, a regiknown for seismic activity. We do not currentive a comprehensive disaster recovery
program and as a result, a significant naturalstiésasuch as an earthquake, could have a mageralse impact on our business, operating
results, and financial condition. Although we ardlie process of preparing such a program, there @ssurance that it will be effective in the
event of such a disaster.

Market demand for our products may decrease as a gellt of changes in general economic conditions, a&ll as incidents of terrorism,
war and other social and political instability.

Our net sales and gross profit depend largely oreigé economic conditions and, in particular, ttnergyth of demand for our server
solutions in the markets in which we are doing bess. From time to time, customers and potentistocuers have elected not to make
purchases of our products due to reduced budgdtaraertainty about the future, and, in the casgisifibutors, declining demand from their
customers for their solutions in which they intégraur products. Similarly, from time to time, aofg¢errorism, in particular in the United
States, have had a negative impact on informaéiohrtology spending. High fuel prices and turmothie Middle East and elsewhere have
increased uncertainty in the United States andbther markets. Should the current conflicts inMiddle East and in other parts of the world
suppress economic activity in the United Stateglaally, our customers may delay or reduce theicpases on information technology,
which would result in lower demand for our produaisl adversely affect our results of operations.
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If we acquire any companies or technologies in thieiture, they could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute
stockholder value and adversely affect our operatig results.

In the future, we may acquire or make investmemtimpanies, assets or technologies that we bedieveomplementary or strategic.
We have not made any acquisitions or investmentste, and therefore our ability as an organizatiomake acquisitions or investments is
unproven. If we decide to make an acquisition gesiment, we face numerous risks, including:

« difficulties in integrating operations, technologji@roducts and personn
» diversion of financial and managerial resourcemfexisting operation
» risk of overpaying for or misjudging the stratefjimf an acquired company, asset or technol

» problems or liabilities stemming from defects ofaguired product or intellectual property litigatithat may result from offerir
the acquired product in our marke

» challenges in retaining employees key to maxinmizevalue of the acquisition or investme
* inability to generate sufficient return on investtj

* incurrence of significant o-time write-offs; and

» delays in customer purchases due to uncerte

If we proceed with an acquisition or investment,may be required to use a considerable amountrodash or to finance the transaction
through debt or equity securities offerings, whiclly decrease our financial liquidity or dilute stwckholders and affect the market price of
our stock. As a result, if we fail to properly evate and execute acquisitions or investments, esinbss and prospects may be harmed.

We invest in auction rate securities that are subje to market risk and the recent problems in the financial markets could adversely
affect the value and liquidity of our assets.

As of June 30, 2009, we held approximately $14 lianiof auction rate securities, net of unrealizesses, representing our interest in
auction rate preferred shares in a closed end rhiuio@ invested in municipal securities and auctiate student loans guaranteed by the
Federal Family Education Loan Program; such auctia securities were rated AAA or BBB at JuneZm9. These auction rate preferred
shares have no stated maturity date and the stegdity dates for these auction rate student loange from 2010 to 2040.

During February 2008, the auctions for these anatibe securities began to fail to obtain suffitieids to establish a clearing rate and
were not saleable in the auction, thereby losimgsthiort-term liquidity previously provided by thection process. As a result, as of June 30,
2009, $14.3 million of these auction rate secwitiave been classified as long-term available-dte-mvestments. The remaining $0.3 million
of auction rate student loans was classified dsd-g¢erm available-for-sale investment becausestated maturity for this security occurs in
June 2010.

Based on our assessment of fair value for the gieded June 30, 2009, we have recorded an accuchulatealized loss of $801,000, net
of deferred income taxes, on both long-term andtdleom auction rate securities. The unrealized loss deemed to be temporary and has
recorded as a component of accumulated other cdrapsése loss.

Although we have determined that we will not likély required to sell the securities before theficgrated recovery and we have the
intent to hold our investments until successfultmns occur, these investments are not currerglyidi and in the event we need to access these
funds, we will not be able to do so without a lo§grincipal. There can be no assurances that hesstments will be settled in the short term
or that they will not become other-than-temporairifypaired subsequent to June 30, 2009, as the tfarkiese investments is presently
uncertain. In any event, we do not have a presesd to access these funds for
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operational purposes. We will continue to monitod &valuate these investments as there is no asguaa to when the market for these
investments will allow us to liquidate them. We nimgy/required to record impairment charges in psrgatsequent to June 30, 2009 with
respect to these securities and, if a liquid madkets not develop for these investments, we coaliquired to hold them to maturity. In July
and August 2009, approximately $3.2 million of thesiction rate securities were redeemed at par.

If we are unable to favorably assess the effectivess of our internal control over financial reporting, or if our independent auditors are
unable to provide an unqualified attestation reporton our internal control over financial reporting, our stock price could be adversely
affected.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, or Section 404, our management is requoedport on the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting inrannual reports. In addition, our independent uslimust attest to and report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting. The rules governing the standards tinagt be met for management to assess our
internal control over financial reporting are compland require significant documentation, teséind possible remediation. As a result, our
efforts to comply with Section 404 have requireel tommitment of significant managerial and finahigources. As we are committed to
maintaining high standards of public disclosure, &ftorts to comply with Section 404 are ongoingg ave are continuously in the process of
reviewing, documenting and testing our internaltoarover financial reporting, which will result rontinued commitment of significant
financial and managerial resources.

During fiscal year 2008, as part of its evaluatdrour internal control over financial reportingjrananagement determined that we had a
material weakness in the operation of controlsglesi to ensure that changes in classification afuants, or classifications of amounts
associated with new transactions, between casts ffoyn operating activities, investing activitiegddinancing activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows are appropriate. We coedulat the material weakness had been remediatelJane 30, 2008. As defined in Pul
Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Stawddo. 5, a material weakness is a deficiency, @vrabination of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting, suchtttizere is a reasonable possibility that a mateniastatement of the company’s annual or
interim financial statements will not be preventedletected on a timely basis. We strive to mamngdiective internal controls over financial
reporting in order to prevent and detect materigbtatements in our annual and quarterly finarsteements and prevent fraud. We cannot
assure, however, that such efforts will be effexti¥ we fail to maintain effective internal conson future periods, our operating results,
financial position and stock price could be advigraéfected.

Our operations involve the use of hazardous and tax materials, and we must comply with environmentalaws and regulations, which
can be expensive, and may affect our business angevating results.

We are subject to federal, state and local reguriatrelating to the use, handling, storage, did@shhuman exposure to hazardous and
toxic materials. If we were to violate or beconable under environmental laws in the future assalt@f our inability to obtain permits, hurr
error, accident, equipment failure or other causescould be subject to fines, costs, or civil Bminal sanctions, face third party property
damage or personal injury claims or be requireiddar substantial investigation or remediation spgthich could be material, or experience
disruptions in our operations, any of which couddvdér a material adverse effect on our businesdditian, environmental laws could become
more stringent over time imposing greater compkagasts and increasing risks and penalties asedaidth violations, which could harm our
business.

We also face increasing complexity in our prodwegign as we adjust to new and future requiremetatimg to the materials composit
of our products, including the restrictions on e other hazardous substances applicable tdfiggeelectronic products placed on the
market in the European Union (Restriction on the bsHazardous Substances Directive 2002/95/EG kadewn as the RoHS Directive). We
are also subject to laws and regulations such &®@éa’s “Proposition 65” which requires that eleand reasonable warnings be given to
consumers who are exposed to certain chemicalsetebgnthe State of California to be
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dangerous, such as lead. In June 2007, we entged settlement agreement regarding this clair tla@ terms thereof had no adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resubhédrations. We expect that our operations will tiected by other new environmental laws
regulations on an ongoing basis. Although we capnedict the ultimate impact of any such new lawd gegulations, they will likely result in
additional costs, and could require that we chahgelesign and/or manufacturing of our productg,afrwhich could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

Risks Related to Owning Our Stock

The trading price of our common stock is likely tobe volatile, and you might not be able to sell youshares at or above the price at
which you purchased the shares.

The trading prices of technology company securitiggeneral have been highly volatile. Accordinghg trading price of our common
stock is likely to be subject to wide fluctuatioRsctors, in addition to those outlined elsewharthis prospectus, that may affect the trading
price of our common stock include:

» actual or anticipated variations in our operatiegutts;

» announcements of technological innovations, newlyets or product enhancements, strategic alliaocemgnificant agreements |
us or by our competitor:

» changes in recommendations by any securities asdlyat elect to follow our common stot

» the financial projections we may provide to the lmytany changes in these projections or our failormeet these projectior
» theloss of a key custome

» the loss of key personn

» technological advancements rendering our prodests Valuable

» lawsuits filed against u:

» changes in operating performance and stock magtaations of other companies that sell similar piais;

» price and volume fluctuations in the overall stocérket;

» market conditions in our industry, the industriéswor customers and the economy as a whole:

» other events or factors, including those resulfingh war, incidents of terrorism or responses &sthevents

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders clouicause our stock price to decline.

Attempts by existing stockholders to sell substr@tmounts of our common stock in the public madeetld cause the trading price of
our common stock to decline significantly. As oh@u0, 2009, we had approximately 34.8 million seaf common stock outstanding, net of
treasury stock. All of these shares are eligibtestde in the public market, including approximate0.9 million shares held by directors,
executive officers and other affiliates, which aubject to volume limitations under Rule 144 unither Securities Act. In addition,
approximately 0.9 million shares subject to outdiag options and reserved for future issuance uadestock option plans are eligible for s
in the public market to the extent permitted by phevisions of various vesting agreements and Rlddsand 701 under the Securities Act. If
these additional shares are sold, or if it is peeckthat they will be sold in the public markétettrading price of our common stock could
decline.
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If securities analysts do not publish research oraports about our business or if they downgrade oustock, the price of our stock could
decline.

The research and reports that industry or finaramalysts publish about us or our business likalyehan effect on the trading price of |
common stock. If an industry analyst decides naoieer our company, or if an industry analyst desitb cease covering our company at some
point in the future, we could lose visibility inghmarket, which in turn could cause our stock piiceecline. If an industry analyst downgrades
our stock, our stock price would likely decline idip in response.

The concentration of our capital stock ownership wth insiders will likely limit your ability to influ ence corporate matters.

As of August 18, 2009, our executive officers, diogs, current five percent or greater stockhol@ma affiliated entities together
beneficially owned approximately 38.3 percent of common stock outstanding, net of treasury st@ska result, these stockholders, acting
together, will have significant influence over rlatters that require approval by our stockholderduding the election of directors and
approval of significant corporate transactions.g@oate action might be taken even if other stodadéis, including those who purchase shares
in this offering, oppose them. This concentratibownership might also have the effect of delayingpreventing a change of control of our
company that other stockholders may view as beiaéfic

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andbylaws and Delaware law might discourage, delay grevent a change of control of
our company or changes in our management and, asrasult, depress the trading price of our common sitk.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contaiovisions that could discourage, delay or preeectiange in control of our company
or changes in our management that the stockhotdexsr company may deem advantageous. These osisi

» establish a classified board of directors so tleaal members of our board are elected at one;t
e require supe-majority voting to amend some provisions in outtifieate of incorporation and bylaw

» authorize the issuance of “blank chegke&ferred stock that our board could issue to emeehe number of outstanding shares a
discourage a takeover attem

» limit the ability of our stockholders to call spactmeetings of stockholder

» prohibit stockholder action by written consent, ghhirequires all stockholder actions to be takesnmeeting of our stockholdel

» provide that the board of directors is expressthatized to adopt, or to alter or repeal our bylaavsl

» establish advance notice requirements for nominatior election to our board or for proposing matthat can be acted upon by
stockholders at stockholder meetin

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of tletalvare General Corporation Law, which, subjectame exceptions, prohibits
“business combinations” between a Delaware corporand an “interested stockholder,” which is gafigrdefined as a stockholder who
becomes a beneficial owner of 15% or more of a Wata corporation’s voting stock for a three-yeaiquefollowing the date that the
stockholder became an interested stockholder.@e263 could have the effect of delaying, deferangreventing a change in control that our
stockholders might consider to be in their bestriests.

These anti-takeover defenses could discouragey delarevent a transaction involving a change intc of our company. These
provisions could also discourage proxy contestsraakle it more difficult for you and other stockhetd to elect directors of your choosing and
cause us to take corporate actions other than fmseesire.
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We do not expect to pay any cash dividends for tHereseeable future.

We do not anticipate that we will pay any cashavids to holders of our common stock in the foralsiefuture. Accordingly, investors
must rely on sales of their common stock aftergpappreciation, which may never occur, as the wmaly to realize any future gains on their
investment. Investors seeking cash dividends irfdreseeable future should not purchase our constamk.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
Not applicable.

ltem 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices, research and dgwelent center and production operations are lodat8an Jose, California where we
own approximately 352,000 square feet of office arahufacturing space subject to existing mortgagdsapproximately $10.0 million
remaining outstanding as of June 30, 2009. In doty August 2009, we paid off the remaining outstamdhortgages totaling $10.2 million
including a pre-payment penalty of $0.2 million.diibnally, in fiscal year 2008, we began leasipgraximately 246,000 square feet of
warehouse in Fremont, California under a leaseekpires in 2015. Our European headquarters fessald customer support is located in
Denbosch, Netherlands where we lease approxima®000 square feet of office space under four dse of which expire in 2011 and two
expire in 2016. In Asia, our research and develogroperations are located in an approximately ZBg&fluare feet facility in Taipei County,
Taiwan under a lease that expires in 2010.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are subject to a suit brought by Digitechni@,. Svhich was filed in the Bobigny Commercial CoirrtParis, in 1999. The claims
involve allegations of damages stemming from alidgdefective products. In September 2003, the BopiCommercial Court awarded
damages of approximately $1.2 million against ng=ébruary 2005, the Paris Court of Appeals revktise trial court’s ruling, dismissed all of
Digitechnic’s claims and awarded costs to us. Biihic appealed the decision to the French Sup€ouet and asked for $2.4 million for
damages. On February 13, 2007, the French Supreme @versed the decision of the Paris Court giégds, ordering a new hearing before a
different panel of the Paris Court of Appeals. largh 2008, we posted a bond in the amount of $8lbbmrequired by the court. The bond
was collateralized by an irrevocable standby latferedit totaling $1.5 million. A new hearing wesnducted on June 15, 2009. We expect
that the decision of the Court of Appeals will eadered in the quarter ending December 31, 20GBoAdgh we cannot predict with certainty
the final outcome of this litigation, we believestblaim to be without merit and intend to contino@efend it vigorously.

In addition to the above, from time to time, we nigyinvolved in various legal proceedings arisirgf the normal course of business
activities. In our opinion, resolution of these @hd above matters is not expected to have a rab&atverse impact on our consolidated results
of operations, cash flows or our financial positiblowever, depending on the amount and timing,rdauorable resolution of a matter could
materially affect our future results of operatiooash flows or financial position in a particulariod.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢
No matters were submitted to a vote of our sectnitgers during the quarter ended June 30, 2009.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Market Information

Our common stock has been traded on The Nasdaq@Wdrket under the symbol “SMCI” since our initi@blic offering on March 28,
2007. The following table sets forth for the pesaddicated the high and low sale prices of ourmam stock as reported by The Nasdaq
Global Market.

High Low
Fiscal Year 2008:
First Quartel $10.4: $ 8.3t
Second Quarte $10.1¢ $ 7.6
Third Quartel $ 9.5¢ $ 8.0¢
Fourth Quarte $ 9.52 $ 6.7¢
High Low
Fiscal Year 2009:
First Quarte! $10.7¢ $ 7.52
Second Quarte $ 9.0¢ $ 3.8t
Third Quartel $ 7.0¢ $ 4.3¢
Fourth Quarte $ 8.32 $ 5.0¢

Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid cash dividends ooapital stock and do not expect to pay any divitiein the foreseeable future.

Holders

There were approximately 58 registered stockholdérscord of our common stock on August 18, 2@¥cause most of our shares are
held by brokers and other institutions on behaltotkholders, we are unable to estimate the totaber of beneficial stockholders
represented by these record holders.

Equity Compensation Plan
Please see Part lll, Item 12 of this report focldisure relating to our equity compensation plans.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares our cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock between M2&H007 (the date of our
initial public offering) and June 30, 2009 with themulative return of the Nasdaq Computer IndextaedNasdaq Composite Index, which
both include our common stock, for the comparaleléogl.

The graph reflects an investment of $100 in ourmmom stock, the Nasdaq Computer Index and the NaSdatposite Index, on
March 29, 2007, and a reinvestment of dividendanif. The stockholder return shown on the grapbvioéd not necessarily indicative of future
performance, and we do not make or endorse anycpitets as to future stockholder returns.

Comparison of March 29, 2007 to June 30, 2009 Curnative Total Return Among Super Micro Computer, Naséq Computer Index and
Nasdaqg Composite

§130.00
FEnoa |
110,00
§100.00
58000
=000 |
E70.00 |
8000
w50.00
Ma -7 Jun-07 Sap-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 dun-0E Sap-08 Dac-0d Mar-03 Jun-03
—a— Sypar Mizro Computar, ing —a— Mazdag Composite Index —a— Masdag Computar indax
3/29/200° 6/29/200° 9/28/200° 12/31/200° 3/31/200¢ 6/30/200¢ 9/30/200¢ 12/31/200i 3/31/200¢ 6/30/200!
Super Micro Computer, In 100.0( 113.11 110.2¢ 86.67 94 3¢ 83.3¢ 101.8: TiLEE 5515¢ 86.5¢
Nasdag Composite Inde 100.0¢ 107.0: 111.0¢ 109.04 93.6¢ 94.2¢ 86.0( 64.8: 62.8¢ 75.4¢
Nasdag Computer Inde 100.0¢ 110.2: 116.0¢ 122.6¢ 97.9¢ 102.7¢ 86.7¢ 65.4( 68.5¢ 85.0¢

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected consolidated financial datgqualified by reference to, and should be reacbimunction with, our Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto in Pdiet) 8 and “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiBin&ncial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Part Il, Item 7, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K. Our historical results are notessarily indicative of the results to be

expected in any future period.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data: (]
Net sales
Cost of sale:
Gross profil
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Sales and marketir
General and administrati
Provision for (reversal of) litigation lo¢
Total operating expens:
Income from operation
Interest and other incon
Interest expens
Income before income tax provisi
Income tax provisiol
Net income

Net income per shal
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in per share calcula
Basic
Diluted

(1) Includes charges for st-based compensatio
Cost of sale:
Research and developmt
Sales and marketir
General and administrati\

Consolidated Balance Sheet Date

Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital

Total asset

Long-term obligations, net of current portioni
Total stockholder equity

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
$505,60¢  $540,50. $420,39. $302,54: $211,76:
416,89¢ 436,95( 345,38 242,23t 178,29:
88,71( 103,55 75,00¢ 60,30¢ 33,47(
34,51« 30,537 21,171 15,81« 10,60¢
17,11¢ 18,191 12,58¢ 9,36: 7,19
13,82« 14,55¢ 11,467 6,931 5,38(
- - (120 57& (1,179
65,45’ 63,28: 45,10¢ 32,68: 22,00¢
23,25: 40,271 29,90¢ 27,62 11,46:
47¢€ 1,55¢ 765 25€ 134
(930) (1,025 (1,332 (1,257) (867)
22,79¢ 40,80¢ 29,33¢ 26,62: 10,72¢
6,69: 15,38¢ 9,99¢ 9,67¢ 3,63¢
$ 16,107 $2541¢ $19,33¢ $ 16,947 $ 7,09(
$ 047 $ 081 $ 08 $ 077 $ 03¢
$ 041 $ 06t $ 057 $ 055 $ 0.2¢
34,21¢ 31,35¢ 24,15 22,01( 21,91«
39,15¢ 38,84: 33,94¢ 31,84¢ 29,44
$ 57¢ % 52 $ 30C % 10z % 40
2,60¢ 1,81 1,05¢ 441 18C
82¢€ 641 362 23€ 63
1,64¢ 1,18: 71C 317 142
As of June 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

$70,29F $5148! $5086¢ $16,50¢ $ 11,17«
130,98’ 102,39: 95,08¢ 37,02¢ 22,92:
283,13t 264,38t 205,58¢ 131,00: 89,66:
15,48: 15,02 11,291 18,68¢ 12,57
178,62: 151,87: 115,87: 47,761 29,12]

(2)  $9.7 million, $10.0 million, $11.3 million, $1@million and $12.5 million of our long-term obditions, net of current portion were

building loans at June 30, 2009, 2008, 2007, 20@62005, respectivel
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operation

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith the consolidated financial statements egldted notes which appear
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Tgsussion contains forward-looking statements tinablve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from thosetigipated in these forward-looking statements assalt of various factors, including those
discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual RepoRorm 10-K, particularly under the heading “RiBkctors.”

Overview

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applicaiftimized, high performance server solutions éasean innovative, modular and
open-standard x86 architecture. Our solutions bhela range of complete rackmount and blade seygéeras, as well as components which
can be used by distributors, OEMs and end custotoessemble server systems. To date, we haveajedehe majority of our net sales from
components. Since 2000, we have gradually shiftedazus and resources to designing, developingufieaturing and selling application
optimized server systems. In recent years our dgrawhet sales has been driven by the growth imtheket for application optimized server
systems. For fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007%ales of optimized servers were $196.7 million,%20nillion and $152.5 million,
respectively. In fiscal year 2009, we experiencel@eine in net sales compared with fiscal year8208ich we believe was primarily
attributable to reductions in information technglapending in response to the global economic domant

We commenced operations in 1993 and have beengiiefievery year since inception. For fiscal y&8@9, 2008 and 2007, our net s
were $505.6 million, $540.5 million and $420.4 ioifl, respectively, and our net income was $16.1ionil $25.4 million and $19.3 million,
respectively. Our decline in profitability in fidogear 2009 was primarily attributable to the refilutin our net sales and to a lesser extent
attributable to a reduction in our gross profibgsercentage of net sales as a result of increasicigg pressure, offset in part by cost saving
programs.

We sell our server systems and components primigugh distributors and to a lesser extent to GERIwell as through our direct
sales force. For fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2@@7erived approximately 64.9%, 59.9% and 66.8%peetively, of our net sales from
products sold to distributors, and we derived apipnately 35.1%, 40.1% and 33.2%, respectively, feates to OEMs and to end
customers. None of our customers accounted for dOftore of our net sales in fiscal years 2009, 2808007. For fiscal years 2009, 2008
and 2007, we derived approximately 64.4%, 60.4%%h@d%, respectively, of our net sales from custsnrethe United States. For fiscal
years 2009, 2008 and 2007, we derived approxima&&§%, 39.6% and 40.8%, respectively, of our akssfrom customers outside the Un
States.

We perform the majority of our research and develept efforts in-house. For fiscal years 2009, 2808 2007, research and
development expenses represented approximately, 6.8% and 5.0% of our net sales, respectively.

We use several suppliers and contract manufacttoetssign and manufacture components in accordaitceur specifications, with
most final assembly and testing performed at ounufecturing facility in San Jose, California. Thisangement enables us to maintain our
structure and to benefit from our suppliers’ andtcact manufacturers’ research and developmeneaodomies of scale.

One of our key suppliers is Ablecom, a relatedyparhich supplies us with contract design and mactuiring support. For fiscal years
2009, 2008 and 2007, our purchases from Ablecomesepted approximately 22.1%, 24.3% and 27.7% otost of sales, respectively. The
decrease in percentage of cost of sales was phmalated to higher product mix of server systeamd system accessories which were
purchased from other suppliers. Ablecom’s salasstoonstitute a substantial majority of Ablecomes sales. We continue to maintain our
manufacturing relationship with Ablecom in Asiadn effort to reduce our product costs and do ne¢ faamy current plans to reduce our
reliance on Ablecom product purchases. In addiioproviding a larger
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volume of contract manufacturing services for usle&om continues to warehouse for us a numbermpoments and subassemblies
manufactured by multiple suppliers prior to shipintenour facilities in the U.S. and Europe. We tglly negotiate the price of products that
we purchase from Ablecom on a quarterly basis; lveweeither party may re-negotiate the price ofipiais with each order. As a result of our
relationship with Ablecom, it is possible that Atden may in the future sell products to us at aephigiher or lower than we could obtain from
an unrelated third party supplier. This may resutiur future reporting of gross profit as a petege of net sales that is less than or in exce
what we might have obtained absent our relationsiitip Ablecom.

In order to continue to increase our net salespaofits, we believe that we must continue to depdlexible and customizable server
solutions and be among the first to market with festures and products. We measure our financtaless based on various indicators,
including growth in net sales, gross profit as ecpetage of net sales, operating income as a pageif net sales, levels of inventory, and
days sales outstanding, or DSOs. In connection tivigke efforts, we monitor daily and weekly saled shipment reports. Among the key non-
financial indicators of our success is our abilayrapidly introduce new products and deliver #tes$t application optimized server solutions
this regard, we work closely with microprocessad ather component vendors to take advantage ofteelanologies as they are introduced.
Historically, our ability to introduce new producepidly has allowed us to benefit from the introtion of new microprocessors and as a result
we monitor the introduction cycles of Intel and AMBrefully. This also impacts our research and lkdgweent expenditures. For example, |
recently introduced its Nehalem line of microprames. Our results for the quarter ended March 8Q92vere in part adversely impacted by
customer order delays in anticipation of the intrciibn and research and development expendituiesaary for us to prepare for the
introduction. Subsequently, we benefited from titeoiduction with an increase in sales of these yetadifor the quarter ended June 30, 2009.
We also solicit input from our customers to undendttheir future needs as we design and developroducts.

Other Financial Highlights
The following is a summary of other financial himgfits of fiscal year 2009:

*  We generated cash flows from operations of $21IBomj $18.5 million and $15.0 million in fiscal e 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents, tegetith our investments, were $85.0 million at &émel of fiscal year 2009,
compared with $67.6 million at the end of fiscaay2008.

*  We repurchased 445,028 shares of our common stod2f0 million in fiscal year 200!

» Days sales outstanding in accounts receivé*DSC") at the end of fiscal year 2009 was 34 days, condpaith 28 days at the er
of fiscal year 200¢€

» Our inventory balance was $90.0 million at the ehfiscal year 2009, compared with $85.7 milliortlee end of fiscal year 2008.
Days sales of inventory (“DSI”) at the end of fisgaar 2009 was 76 days, compared with 63 daysea¢nd of fiscal year 2008.
Our purchase commitments with contract manufacsuaad suppliers were $52.1 million at the end sifdi year 2009 and $49.4
million at the end of fiscal year 20C

We believe that our cash position, our balancetsloee visibility into our supply chain and our fincing capabilities provide a key
competitive advantage and position us well to martagough the current economic downturn.

Fiscal Year
Our fiscal year ends on June 30. References talfiggar 2009, for example, refer to the fiscal yeraded June 30, 2009.
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Revenues and Expenses

Net sales.Net sales consist of sales of our server solutimeyding server systems and components. The faators which impact our
net sales are unit volumes shipped and averagegsplices. The prices for server systems rangehyidepending upon the configuration, and
the prices for our components vary based on the ¢ygomponent. As with most electrontzased products, average selling prices typica#
highest at the time of introduction of new produstsich utilize the latest technology and tend tordase over time as such products mature in
the market and are replaced by next generationugted

Cost of salesCost of sales primarily consists of the costs toufiacture our products, including the costs of mal® contract
manufacturing, shipping, personnel and related esg® equipment and facility expenses, warrantis@x inventory excess and obsolete
provisions. The primary factors that impact ourtafssales are the mix of products sold and costaterials, which include raw material co:
shipping costs and salary and benefits relatedddyztion. Cost of sales as a percentage of ne$ sady increase over time if decreases in
average selling prices are not offset by correspandecreases in our costs. Our cost of salespascantage of net sales, is generally lower on
server systems than on components. Because wet #have long-term fixed supply agreements, our obstles is subject to change based on
market conditions.

Research and development expens&ssearch and development expenses consist of tbenpel and related expenses of our research
and development teams, and materials and suppbasulting services, third party testing serviced equipment and facility expenses related
to our research and development activities. Akegsh and development costs are expensed as idcWeeoccasionally receive non-recurring
engineering, or NRE funding from certain suppliansl customers towards our development efforts. Utidse programs, we are reimbursed
for certain research and development costs thamewe as part of the joint development of our pradiand those of our suppliers and
customers. These amounts offset a portion of ta¢e research and development expenses and feeéfdlt of reducing our reported
research and development expenses.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilglafies and commissions for our sales and marketing
personnel, costs for tradeshows, independent egpessentative fees and marketing programs. Froi td time, we receive cooperative
marketing funding from certain suppliers. Understh@rograms, we are reimbursed for certain mareiists that we incur as part of the joint
promotion of our products and those of our suppli€hese amounts offset a portion of the relatg@eses and have the effect of reducing our
reported sales and marketing expenses. Similadyfram time to time offer our distributors coopératmarketing funding which has the effi
of increasing our expenses. The timing, magnitudkestimated usage of our programs and those dfuppliers can result in significant
variations in reported sales and marketing expefisasperiod to period. Spending on cooperativekating, either by us or our suppliers,
typically increases in connection with significamoduct releases by us or our suppliers.

General and administrative expensé&seneral and administrative expenses consist piliynafrgeneral corporate costs, including
personnel expenses, financial reporting, corpayaternance and compliance and outside legal, anditax fees.

Reversal of litigation lossLoss from litigation relates to an action filedirance by Digitechnic, S.A., a former customergitg that
certain products purchased from us were defedtivEeptember 2003, the court found in favor of Bghnic and awarded damages totaling
$1.2 million. In February 2005, the court of apedibmissed the claims. Digitechnic appealed thésidm to the French supreme court and
asked for $2.4 million for damages. On February?D®7, the French Supreme Court reversed the daaiithe Paris Court of Appeals,
ordering a new hearing before a different pane¢hefParis Court of Appeals. A new hearing was cotetiion June 15, 2009. We expect that
the decision of the Court of Appeals will be reratein the quarter ending December 31, 2009. Althoug cannot predict with certainty the
final outcome of this litigation, we believe thairths to be without merit and intend to continuelééend against them vigorously. We believe
that the ultimate resolution of this matter willtmesult in a material adverse impact on our resfloperations, cash flows or financial posit
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We accrued $0.6 million in fiscal year 2006 for feyment of estimated fines related to export @dmiatters arising in prior years. In
fiscal year 2007, we entered into settlement agesgsregarding certain claims relating to the viotaof export control laws.

Interest and other income, ndhterest and other income, net represents thefrmtranterest income on investments or interegease
on the building loans for our owned facilities @ffy interest earned on our cash balances.

Income tax provisionOur income tax provision is based on our taxabtemme generated in the jurisdictions in which weraje
currently primarily the United States and the Ndtrals and to a lesser extent, Taiwan. Our effedax rate differs from the statutory rate
primarily due to releasing of unrecognized taxiligbon research and development credits resulfiog lapsing statues of limitations, tax
benefit of tax exempt interest income, researchdawelopment tax credits and the domestic prodactaivities deduction. A reconciliation
the federal statutory income tax rate to our effectax rate is set forth in Note 12 of Notes ton€alidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial cdoditind results of operations are based upon panfial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principkrsegally accepted in the United States. The préiparaf these financial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affecef@rted amount of assets, liabilities, revenuesexpenses. We evaluate our estimates ¢
on-going basis, including those related to alloveanfor doubtful accounts and sales returns, cotipenmarketing accruals, investment
valuations, inventory valuations, income taxes,reuatyy obligations and stock-based compensationb¥ge our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions théelieve to be reasonable under the circumstatioesesults of which form the basis for
making the judgments we make about the carryingesbf assets and liabilities that are not reafilyarent from other sources. Because these
estimates can vary depending on the situationahotsults may differ from the estimates.

We believe the following are our most critical agoting policies as they require our more signifigadgments in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Revenue recognitioe account for revenue under the provisions off $tafounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104Revenue Recognition
Financial Statemeni. Under the provisions of SAB No. 104, we recogmaeenue from sales of products, when persuasideeree of an
arrangement exists, shipment has occurred andh&tdransferred, the sales price is fixed or d@teble, collection of the resulting receivable
is reasonably assured, and all significant oblayetihave been met. Generally this occurs at the dihshipment when risk of loss and title has
passed to the customer. Our standard arrangem#mburn customers includes a signed purchase ordmntract, free-on-board shipping point
terms, except for a few customers who have frebaard destination terms, and revenue is recognizesh the products arrive at the
destination, 30 to 60 days payment terms, and stomer acceptance provisions. We generally do rasigle for non-warranty rights of return
except for products which have “Out-of-box” failumehere customers could return these productsréatittwithin 30 days of receiving the
items. Certain distributors and OEMs are also pgechito return products in unopened boxes, limitepurchases over a specified period of
time, generally within 60 to 90 days of the purehaw to products in the distributor’'s or OEM’s émtory at certain times (such as the
termination of the agreement or product obsolesgeme addition, we have a sale arrangement witDBM that has limited product return
rights. To estimate reserves for future sales nstuwve regularly review our history of actual resfor each major product line. We also
communicate regularly with our distributors to gatinformation about end customer satisfaction, targdetermine the volume of inventory in
the channel. Reserves for future returns are ajust necessary, based on returns experienceygeixpectations and communication with
distributors.
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Probability of collection is assessed on a custelyetustomer basis. Customers are subjected to a cexittv process that evaluates
customers’ financial position and ability to palyitlis determined from the outset of an arrangentiesit collection is not probable based upon
the review process, the customers are requiredy@ash in advance of shipment. We also make estinedi the uncollectibility of accounts
receivables, analyzing accounts receivable andrigsi bad debts, customer concentrations, custangelit-worthiness, current economic
trends and changes in customer payment terms toagahe adequacy of the allowance for doubtfabaats. On a quarterly basis, we
evaluate aged items in the accounts receivableyagport and provide allowance in an amount we daéeguate for doubtful accounts. If
management were to make different judgments deetdifferent estimates, material differences im dmount of our reported operating
expenses could result. We provide for price pradedb certain distributors. We assess the mardetpetition and product technology
obsolescence, and make price adjustments basear gudgment. Upon each announcement of price réshstthe accrual for price protection
is calculated based on our distributdrs/entory on hand. Such reserves are recordededuation to revenue at the time we reduce theuymt
prices in accordance with Emerging Issues Taskd-msue (“EITF”) No. 01-9Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor {Gustome!
(including a Reseller of the Vendor's Produkt€redits that we issued pursuant to these pavisivere $371,000, $283,000 and $182,000 for
fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.dé/aot commit to future price reductions with arfiypar customers.

We have an immaterial amount of service revenusingl to non-warranty repairs, which is recognimedn shipment of the repaired
units to customers. Service revenue has beenlassl% of net sales for all periods presentedsindt separately disclosed.

Cooperative marketing accrualdVe follow EITF Issue No. 01-%ccounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©wstomer
(including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Producié)e have arrangements with resellers of our prodoatsimburse the resellers for cooperative
marketing costs meeting specified criteria. We aethe cooperative marketing costs based on thiemgg@ments and our estimate for
resellers’ claims for marketing activities. In acdance with EITF Issue No. 01-9, we record markgtiosts meeting such specified criteria
within sales and marketing expenses in the accoyipgueconsolidated statements of operations. Foseghoarketing costs that do not meet the
criteria set forth in EITF Issue No. 01-9, the amiuare recorded as a reduction to sales in thengzanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Impairment of short-term and long-term investmelntgairment of short-term and long-term investmeatates to the unrealized loss on
the carrying value of our investments in auctice ecurities; such securities were rated AAA atdate of purchase. The liquidity and fair
value of these securities has been negatively itefdry the uncertainty in the credit markets anbsure of these securities to the financial
condition of bond insurance companies. We havevedall interest payments due on these instrumeamis timely basis. Each of these
securities has been subject to auction process&ghioh there had been insufficient bidders ongtieeduled rollover dates and the auctions
have subsequently failed. When these securiti¢sHesshort-term liquidity previously provided lyetauction processes, we reclassified these
securities as long-term investments. We have ushscaunted cash flow model to estimate the fdueaf these investments as of June 30,
2009 and 2008. The material factors used in pregdhe discounted cash flow model are 1) the discmte utilized to present value the cash
flows, 2) the time period until redemption and I3 estimated rate of return. Management derivesgtimates by obtaining input from market
data on the applicable discount rate, estimated tomaturity and estimated rate of return. Thengka in fair value have been primarily dut
changes in the estimated rate of return and a ehiantpe estimated period to liquidity. The faifue@of our investment portfolio may change
between 2% to 4% by increasing or decreasing tieeofareturn used by 1% or by increasing or deéngabe term used by 1 year. Changes in
these estimates or in the market conditions fosetievestments are likely in the future based uperthen current market conditions for these
investments and may affect the fair value of thiesestments. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 we hec@rded an accumulative unrealized loss
of $801,000 and $451,000, net of deferred incomestaon the securities, respectively. We deemldlisto be temporary as we determined
we will not likely be required to sell the seclegtibefore their anticipated recovery and we hagénttent to hold our investments until recov
of cost.
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Product warrantiesWe offer product warranties ranging from 15 to 3®nths against any defective product. We accruestmated
returns of defective products at the time revesuecognized, based on historical warranty expeeéemd recent trends. We monitor warranty
obligations and may make revisions to our warraeggerve if actual costs of product repair and iE@pteent are significantly higher or lower
than estimated. Accruals for anticipated futurerasatly costs are charged to cost of sales and iadlidaccrued liabilities. The liability for
product warranties was $3.6 million as of JuneZB®9, compared with $2.9 million as of June 30,820Me provision for warranty reserve
was $6.7 million, $6.6 million and $4.2 million fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.&timates and assumptions used have
historically close to actual. The change in esteddiability for pre-existing warranties was $0.8lion, ($0.1) million and $0 in fiscal years
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As we experigaceincrease in cost of warranty claims in figedr 2009 compared with our historical
experience, the provision for warranty reservedgased $0.1 million compared to fiscal year 2008wasxperienced an increase in cost of
warranty claims and higher unit volume in fiscahly008 compared with our historical experience,grovision for warranty reserve increa
$2.4 million compared to fiscal year 2007. If indte periods, we experience or anticipate an irsee@e decrease in warranty claims as a result
of new product introductions or change in unit vo&s compared with our historical experience, théfcost of servicing warranty claims is
greater or lesser than expected, we intend to edjusestimates appropriately.

Inventory valuationlnventory is valued at the lower of cost or mark@ge evaluate inventory on a quarterly basis fordoaf cost or
market and excess and obsolescence and, as ngcegdardown the valuation of units to lower ofst@r market or for excess and
obsolescence based upon the number of units thairdikely to be sold based upon estimated demanthé following twelve months. This
evaluation takes into account matters includingeegd demand, anticipated sales price, productiedsence and other factors. If actual future
demand for our products is less than currentlydaseed, additional inventory adjustments may baired. Once a reserve is established, it is
maintained until the product to which it relatesddd or scrapped. If a unit that has been writtewn is subsequently sold, the cost associated
with the revenue from this unit is reduced to theeet of the write down, resulting in an increaseioss profit. We monitor the extent to wh
previously written down inventory is sold at amaugteater or less than carrying value, and basehisanalysis, adjust our estimate for
determining future write downs. In fiscal years 20R008 and 2007, the historical analysis of safggeviously written down inventory was
such that we decreased our estimate for reservicgss and obsolete inventory. If in future periads,experience or anticipate a change in
recovery rate compared with our historical exparéggrour gross margin would be affected. Our prowisor inventory was $1.5 million, $6.9
million and $5.6 million in fiscal years 2009, 2088d 2007, respectively.

Accounting for income taxed/e account for income taxes under an asset anititliadpproach. Deferred income taxes reflect th@act
of temporary differences between assets and ligsilfecognized for financial reporting purposed simch amounts recognized for income tax
reporting purposes, net operating loss carry-fodwand other tax credits measured by applying otiyrenacted tax laws. Valuation
allowances are provided when necessary to redUeere@ tax assets to an amount that is more litedy not to be realized.

Effective July 1, 2007, we adopted Financial AcamgqmStandards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No, &&counting for Uncertainties
Income Taxe—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. B3N 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threkhand measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measerg of a tax position taken or expected to bertake tax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on derecognition of tax benefits, clasaifon on the balance sheet, interest and penadiiesunting in interim periods, disclosure,
and transition. As a result of the implementatibRIN 48, we recognize the tax liability for uncart income tax positions on the income tax
return based on the two-step process prescribtgkimterpretation. The first step is to determirfeether it is more likely than not that each
income tax position would be sustained upon aditie second step is to estimate and measure theeteefit as the amount that has a greater
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimsggtlement with the tax authority. Estimating thasounts requires us to determine the
probability of various possible outcomes. We eviduhese uncertain tax positions on a quarterlisbasis evaluation is based on the
consideration of several factors, including changes
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in facts or circumstances, changes in applicabléeta, settlement of issues under audit and nevosxes. If we later determine that our
exposure is lower or that the liability is not sciint to cover our revised expectations, we adjustiability and effect a related change in our
tax provision during the period in which we maketsdetermination. See Note 12 of Notes to our Cltested Financial Statements for the
impact of FIN 48 on our consolidated financial staénts.

Stock-based compensatidtffective July 1, 2006, we adopted the fair valeeognition provisions of Statement of Financial daeting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(Rphare-Based Paymentising the prospective transition method, whidaldshes standards for the accounting
for transactions in which an entity exchangesdpsity instruments for goods or services, primafilgusing on accounting for transactions
where an entity obtains employee services in shased payment transactions. Prior to July 1, 2@@6ccounted for stock-based
compensation awards issued to our employees usinigtrinsic value measurement provisions of Ace¢mgnPrinciples Board Opinion
(*APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to EmployeesOpinion 25. Accordingly, we have recorded cemgation expense for stock
options granted prior to the adoption of SFAS N2B(R) with exercise prices less than the fair valithe underlying common stock at the
option grant date. Amortization of deferred stooknpensation, resulting from such stock options gio employees and directors, when the
exercise price of our stock options was less thardeemed market price of the underlying stockerdiate of the grant, for the years ended
June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, was $0.6 milliorg #tllion and $0.9 million, respectively. SFAS Nk23(R) supersedes our previous
accounting under APB No. 25 for periods beginnimfiscal year 2007. SFAS No. 123(R) requires emisep to measure the cost of employee
services received in exchange for an award of gaustruments, including stock options, based engtant-date fair value of the award. That
cost will be recognized over the period during vishém employee is required to provide services eharge for the award, known as the
requisite service period (usually the vesting pri€ompensation expense under SFAS No. 123(R)ftons granted to employees after
July 1, 2006, was $5.1 million, $3.4 million and %illion for the years ended June 30, 2009, 20882007, respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, the total unrecognized conmgtéenscost, adjusted for estimated forfeituresatesl to unvested stock options grar
since July 1, 2006 to employees and non-employeetdrs, was $12.9 million, which is expected tadmpgnized as an expense over a
weightedaverage period of approximately 2.87 years. See lbtof Notes to our Consolidated Financial Stateémfor additional informatiol

We estimated the fair value of stock options graniging a Black-Scholes option-pricing model arsihgle option award approach. This
model requires us to make estimates and assumptitimsespect to the expected term of the optiba,dxpected volatility of the price of our
common stock and the expected forfeiture rate.faimevalue is then amortized on a straight-lineibaser the requisite service periods of the
awards, which is generally the vesting period.

The expected term represents the period that ook4iased awards are expected to be outstandingasndetermined based on an
analysis of the relevant peer companies’ posttegstination rates and exercise behavior. The ergeablatility is based on a combination of
the implied and historical volatility of our relevapeer group. In addition, SFAS No. 123(R) requiiefeitures of share-based awards to be
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if ag@py, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitaiffer from those estimates. We use historical
data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures mewbrd stock-based compensation expense onlhésetawards that are expected to vest.

Variable interest entitiedVe have analyzed our relationship with Ablecom emdubsidiaries and we have concluded that Ableisoan
variable interest entity as defined by FASB Intetption No. 46 (revised December 2003pnsolidation of Variable Interest Entiti€$-IN
No. 46(R”); however, we are not the primary beneficiandilecom and therefore, we do not consolidate Abtecm performing our
analysis, we considered our explicit arrangemeiitts Ablecom including the supplier and distributsrangements. Also, as a result of the
substantial related party relationship betweertwleecompanies, we considered whether any implicdragements exist that would cause us to
protect those related parties’ interests in Abledmm
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suffering losses. We determined that no impliciaagements exist with Ablecom or its sharehold8ush an arrangement would be
inconsistent with the fiduciary duty that we hage/érds our stockholders who do not own shares ieddm.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our financial results a percentage of net sales for the periodtsatied:

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 82.5 80.¢ 82.2
Gross profil 17.5 19.2 17.¢
Operating expense
Research and developmt 6.8 5.6 5.C
Sales and marketir 34 34 3.C
General and administrati\ 2.7 2.7 2.7
Reversal of litigation los 0.C 0.C (0.0
Total operating expens: 12.¢ 11.7 10.7
Income from operation 4.€ 7.5 7.1
Interest incom 0.1 0.2 0.2
Interest expens 0.2) (0.2) 0.3
Income before income tax provisi 4.t 7.5 7.C
Income tax provisiol 1.3 2.8 2.4
Net income .2% 4.7% 4.6%

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2009 a2®08

Net sales.Net sales decreased by $34.9 million, or 6.5%5@6% million from $540.5 million, for fiscal yea?909 and 2008,
respectively. This was due primarily to a decreéasait volumes. For fiscal year 2009, the appradennumber of units sold decreased 15.4%
to 2.2 million compared to 2.6 million for fiscaégr 2008. The decrease in unit volumes was priynduié to a decrease in unit volumes of
chassis, serverboards and server systems offpattitoy an increase in unit volumes of system améss. For fiscal year 2009, the
approximate number of server system units soldedesad 7.1% to 157,000 compared to 169,000 for fygza 2008. The average selling price
of server system units was approximately $1,250i$oal year 2009 compared to $1,200 for fiscalry@&08. Growth in the average selling
prices of our server systems was principally drilggran increase in average selling prices of OEMmmdled server solutions offset in par
declines in average selling prices of 5000 Sermedigurations of servers, SuperBlades, 7000 Seonefigurations of servers and AMD serve
Sales of server systems decreased by $12.5 milié10% from fiscal year 2008 to fiscal year 2008marily due to lower sales of 6000 and
5000 Series configuration of servers offset in parhigher sales of our OEM and bundled servertgwis utilizing our high efficiency power
supplies and higher sales of SuperBlades. Salgsreér systems represented 38.9% of our net saléisdal year 2009 as compared to 38.7%
of our net sales for fiscal year 2008. We belida the decline in our net sales in fiscal year®2@@s primarily attributable to reductions in
information technology spending in response togleeal economic downturn and to a lesser extentimaacted by delayed customer ordel
anticipation of the release by Intel of its Nehali@me of microprocessors which were launched atth@ of March 31, 2009. For fiscal years
2009 and 2008, we derived approximately 64.9% &n@%, respectively, of our net sales from prodsotd to distributors and we derived
approximately 35.1% and 40.1%, respectively, framesto OEMs and to end customers. For fiscal 688, customers in the United States,
Asia, Germany and the rest of Europe accountedgproximately 64.4%, 11.2%, 5.1% and 16.4%, ofrmirsales, respectively, as compared
to 60.4%, 15.2%, 5.5% and 17.0%, respectivelyfifmal year 2008.
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Cost of salesCost of sales decreased by $20.1 million, or 41828416.9 million from $437.0 million, for fiscakwrs 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Cost of sales as a percentage ofates was 82.5% and 80.8% for fiscal years 2002808, respectively. The decrease in
absolute dollars of cost of sales was primarilyitaitable to the decrease in net sales and a deerdab5.4 million in inventory provision, a
decrease of $3.4 million in freight-in charges effm part by an increase of $0.1 million in preetsfor warranty reserve. The higher cost of
sales as a percentage of net sales was primaelyada decrease in standard gross margin as & of$olver margins across our product lines
due to competitive pricing pressures and our siyate grow market share during the economic downoambined with lower prices for our
maturing product line in advance of the Intel Nelmallaunch. In fiscal year 2009, we recorded a #6llfon expense, or 1.3% of net sales,
related to the provision for warranty reserve asgared to $6.6 million, or 1.2% of net sales, gtél year 2008. The increase in the provision
for warranty reserve was primarily due to highgraie costs in fiscal year 2009. If in future pesosle experience or anticipate an increase or
decrease in warranty claims as a result of newymridtroductions or change in unit volumes comg@awéh our historical experience, or if the
cost of servicing warranty claims is greater osé#shan expected, our gross margin would be &ffie¢nh fiscal year 2009, we recorded a $1.5
million expense, or 0.3% of net sales, relatedhitventory provision as compared to $6.9 million1.3% of net sales, in fiscal year 2008.
The decrease in the inventory provision was prilpalie to the improvement of our inventory manageime reduce excess and slow moving
inventory through product conversion and increasigs efforts. In fiscal year 2009, the historaadlysis of sales of previously written down
inventory was such that we decreased our estimate$erving excess and obsolete inventory. ltitare periods, we experience or anticips
change in recovery rate compared with our histbagperience, our gross margin would be affected.

Research and development expengtssearch and development expenses increased byn#dod, or 13.0%, to $34.5 million from
$30.5 million for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, re$pely. Research and development expenses webe 6f@et sales for fiscal year 2009 and
5.6% of net sales for fiscal year 2008. The ina@dasbsolute dollars and percentage of sales vimsply due to an increase of $4.8 million
compensation and benefits resulting from growtresearch and development personnel, including higtoek-based compensation expense
offset in part by an increase of $0.9 million imaecurring engineering funding from certain supgdiand customers.

Research and development expenses include stoeklbampensation expense of $2.6 million and $11Bomifor fiscal year 2009 and
2008, respectively. The increase in absolute dollas primarily due to the growth in research agnetbpment personnel.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses decreased by $1lidnndl 5.9%, to $17.1 million from $18.2 milliofar
fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. Salesnaantketing expenses were 3.4% of net sales forfisatal years 2009 and 2008. The decre
in absolute dollars was primarily due to a decredskl.1 million in cooperative marketing fundirggdustomers and a decrease of $0.3 million
in compensation and benefits offset in part by @ekese of $0.3 million in cooperative marketingding from vendors.

Sales and marketing expenses include stock-basegessation expense of $0.8 million and $0.6 milfienfiscal years 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

General and administrative expensé&eneral and administrative expenses decreased.Byr#llion, or 5.0%, to $13.8 million from
$14.6 million, for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, exgjvely. General and administrative expenses ®ef# of net sales for both fiscal years
2009 and 2008. The decrease in absolute dollarprimsrily due to a decrease of $1.2 million in soling fees related to Sarbar@sley 404
(SOX) compliance and a decrease of $0.6 millioadorued claims related to a settlement offer @fnlging fees offset in part by an increase of
$0.9 million in compensation and benefits, inclgdimgher stocksased compensation expense and an increase ahiiod in legal expense
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General and administrative expenses include stasked compensation expense of $1.6 million and i®ill@n for fiscal years 2009 and
2008, respectively.

Interest and other expense, neaterest and other expense, net changed by $1lidmito $0.5 million of expense from $0.5 milliaf
income, for fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscalry@@08, respectively, of which $0.9 million and Gillion was interest expense for fiscal
years 2009 and 2008, respectively. The net chamgedwe to lower interest income of $1.1 milliorutésg from lower interest rates. \
expect the interest expenses will decrease inutued as we paid off our outstanding building loam3uly and August 2009.

Provision for income taxe®rovision for income taxes decreased by $8.7 millay 56.5%, to $6.7 million from $15.4 million,rféiscal
years 2009 and 2008, respectively. The effectivedate was 29.4% and 37.7% for fiscal years 20@D2098, respectively. The decrease in
effective tax rate was primarily the result of teenstatement of the federal research and developtae credit and the release of an
unrecognized tax liability on research and develepinecredits of $0.7 million resulting from lapsiagtues of limitations in fiscal year 2009.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2008 a2®07

Net sales.Net sales increased by $120.1 million, or 28.6%$540.5 million from $420.4 million, for fiscal ye2008 and 2007,
respectively. This was due primarily to an increiasenit volumes and average selling prices. Fenthar ended June 30, 2008, the approxi
number of units sold increased 23.8% to 2.6 miliompared to 2.1 million for the year ended June2807. Growth in unit volumes was
primarily due to the growth of X7 and PD series Inesboards and an increase in sales of chassiscaedsmries such as memory and disk
drives offset in part by lower sales of X6 mothextats. For the year ended June 30, 2008, the appatxinumber of server system units sold
increased 27.1% to 169,000 compared to 133,00théyear ended June 30, 2007. The average seliicgy @f server system units sold
increased 9.1% to approximately $1,200 in fiscary@08 compared to approximately $1,100 in figear 2007. Growth in the average sel
prices of our server systems was principally drilsgran increase in sales of our 5000 Series oksaystems, offset in part by declines in
average selling prices of more mature productsesSafl server systems increased by $56.7 millioi7a2% from fiscal year 2007 to fiscal year
2008, primarily due to increase in shipments of@68@ries configurations of servers and shipmen®HEM and end customers. Sales of server
systems represented 38.7% of our net sales fal fygar 2008 as compared to 36.3% of our net $atdscal year 2007. For fiscal years 2008
and 2007, we derived approximately 59.9% and 66r&@%¥pectively, of our net sales from products soldistributors and we derived
approximately 40.1% and 33.2%, respectively, framesto OEMs and to end customers. For fiscal 688, customers in the United States,
Asia, Germany and rest of Europe accounted foraqimately 60.4%, 15.2%, 5.5% and 17.0%, of oursades, respectively, as compared to
59.2%, 15.4%, 6.9% and 16.4%, respectively, faaiyear 2007.

Cost of salesCost of sales increased by $91.6 million, or 26.&%%437.0 million from $345.4 million, for fiscgkars 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Cost of sales as a percentage ofates was 80.8% and 82.2% for fiscal years 2008804, respectively. The increase in
absolute dollars of cost of sales was primarilyilaitable to the increase in net sales, higheripiow for warranty reserve of $2.4 million and
higher inventory write down of $1.2 million. Thewer cost of sales as a percentage of net salepnvaarily due to higher revenue mix of
server systems and newer products. In fiscal y@@82we recorded a $6.6 million expense, or 1.2%etbfsales, related to the provision for
warranty reserve as compared to $4.2 million, 6%4.of net sales, in fiscal year 2007. The incréaske provision for warranty reserve was
primarily due to higher repair costs in fiscal y2@08. In fiscal year 2008, we recorded a $6.9iomlexpense, or 1.3% of net sales, related to
the write down of excess and obsolete inventoryoheenefit from sales of previously written off/entory as compared to $5.6 million, or
1.3% of net sales, in fiscal year 2007. The ina@eaghe inventory write down was primarily for anlder products including AMD DDR1
products.

Research and development expenstssearch and development expenses increased by, or 44.2%, to $30.5 million from
$21.2 million for fiscal years 2008 and 2007, re$pely. Research and development expenses webe &f et sales for fiscal year 2008 and
5.0% of net sales for fiscal year 2007. The inadasabsolute dollars was primarily due to an imaseeof $7.5 million in compensation and
benefits
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resulting from growth in research and developmensgnnel, including higher stock-based compensatipense, and an increase of $0.9
million in development costs associated with nemdpicts and SuperBlades offset in part by an inered$0.8 million in non-recurring
engineering funding from certain suppliers and @ungrs. The increase in personnel was primarilytedito expanded product development
initiatives.

Research and development expenses include stoekl-baspensation expense of $1.8 million and $1llomifor fiscal year 2008 and
2007, respectively. The increase in absolute dolkas primarily due to the growth in research agnetbpment personnel.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses increased by $5i6midr 44.5%, to $18.2 million from $12.6 milliofgr
fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Salesw@atteting expenses were 3.4% and 3.0% of net &aldiscal years 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvasarily due to an increase of $3.0 million in qoemsation and benefits resulting from
growth in sales and marketing personnel, includiiginer stock-based compensation expense and aasenf $0.8 million in marketing ap
funding to customers, an increase of $0.2 millimadvertising and promotion expenses, an incre$@.® million in freight out costs and a
decrease of $0.4 million in marketing co-op fundiram vendors.

Sales and marketing expenses include stock-basegassation expense of $0.6 million and $0.4 milfionfiscal year 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvamarily due to the growth in sales and markefiegsonnel.

General and administrative expenséaeneral and administrative expenses increased Hyrilion, or 26.9%, to $14.6 million from
$11.5 million, for fiscal years 2008 and 2007, exgjvely. General and administrative expenses &t of net sales for both fiscal years
2008 and 2007. The increase in absolute dollarsprasarily due to an increase of $1.9 million imgoensation and benefits, including higher
stock-based compensation expense, an increase(irifilion in consulting fees related to complianeith the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and $0.9 million in professional fees to suppoihge public company, $0.7 million for accrued nlairelated to a settlement offer of licensing
fees offset in part by a decrease of $1.9 milliotegal expenses primarily associated with ourmiegeof certain litigation matters incurred in
fiscal year 2007.

General and administrative expenses include staskd compensation expense of $1.2 million and ®dlion for fiscal year 2008 and
2007, respectively. The increase in absolute dollaas primarily due to the growth in general anchiadstrative personnel.

Reversal of litigation lossLoss from litigation decreased by $0.1 million &ra for fiscal years 2008 compare to same peri@Dov.
The decrease was primarily due to the final settleinof an export control matter at less than thienesed loss amount. See Note 13 of Note
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest and other expense, nétterest and other expense, net changed by $1libmib $0.5 million of income from $0.6 million of
expense, for fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respégtivEwhich $1.0 million and $1.3 million was imeesst expenses for fiscal year 2008 and
2007, respectively. The decrease was due to higtexest income of $0.8 million from higher cashsle equivalent and investment balances
primarily as a result of our initial public offegrin April 2007.

Provision for income taxesProvision for income taxes increased by $5.4 mmillior 53.9%, to $15.4 million from $10.0 milliorgrffiscal
years 2008 and 2007, respectively. The effectivedate was 37.7% and 34.1% for fiscal years 20@B2807, respectively. The increase in
effective tax rate was the result of decreasedfii@fdederal research and development tax creatits foreign income deductions relative to
our higher taxable income.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our growtmarily with funds generated from operations arahfrthe proceeds of our initial
public offering. Our cash and cash equivalentssmdt-term investments were $70.6 million and $5dilion as of June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Operating ActivitiesNet cash provided by operating activities was $24il8on, $18.5 million and $15.0 million for fistgears 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively. Net cash provideduryoperating activities for fiscal year 2009 wamrarily due to our net income of $16.1
million, stock-based compensation expense of $5llilbm an increase in net income taxes payabl$408 million and allowance for sales
returns of $4.2 million which was substantiallys#t by a decrease in accounts payable of $6.%m#ihd an increase in inventory of $5.8
million. Net cash provided by our operating actastfor fiscal year 2008 was primarily due to oat mcome of $25.4 million, an increase in
accounts payable of $18.6 million, provision foventory of $6.9 million, allowance for sales rewiof $5.6 million and stock-based
compensation expense of $4.2 million which was wuttmlly offset by an increase in inventory of $illion and an increase in accounts
receivable of $22.0 million. Net cash provided ly operating activities for fiscal year 2007 wasrarily due to our net income of $19.3
million, an increase in accounts payable of $9.Bianj, provision for inventory of $5.6 million, ancrease in accrued liabilities of $5.2 million
and allowance for sales returns of $4.4 millionabhivas substantially offset by an increase in actoreceivable of $15.8 million and an
increase in inventory of $14.8 million.

The decrease for fiscal year 2009 in sales retwassprimarily due to lower net sales during fisgedr 2009 as a result of reductions in
information technology spending in response togliobal economic downturn and to a lesser extentimasacted by delayed customer ordel
anticipation of the release by Intel of its Nehal@me of microprocessors in the quarter ended M&th2009. The decrease for fiscal year 2
in accounts payable was primarily due to timingpayments to our vendors. The increase for fiscat 2809 in inventory was primarily due to
our increased purchases of X8 Nehalem productshwkére launched at the end of March 31, 2009.

The increases for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 iowaus receivable, sales returns, inventory andwadsgayable were primarily due to
growth in net sales during the periods as a regulew product introductions, increased sales dftieng rackmount and blade server systems
and components and increased purchases from opliensp

Investing activities Net cash used in our investing activities wag $gillion, $19.6 million and $18.1 million for fist years 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. In fiscal year 2009, $3ilian was related to the purchase of propertynplnd equipment offset in part by the
redemption at par of investments in auction rateisgées of $0.9 million. In fiscal year 2008, $32nillion was mainly related to the purchase
of investments in auction rate securities, $16.Hionidue to the purchase of property, plant andigment which included $11.3 million rela
to the purchased land and an office building tgpsupour growth and $1.7 million was mainly relateccertificates of deposits secured for two
irrevocable letters of credit for the bonds relatethe Digitechnic case and a leased buildingetfin part by the proceeds from investments of
$20.6 million. In fiscal year 2007, $15.0 millioresrelated to the purchase of investments in aucéite securities. We have historically ow
our manufacturing facilities and have leased ofirsioffices. The expansion of our manufacturingatéifty has to date not been capital
intensive as our internal manufacturing is limitecassembly and test. We expect to continue to raigksficant capital investments in the
future as we expand our assembly and test capabidihd invest in our infrastructure in order t@iove our controls and procedures in
anticipation of growing our business.

Financing activities Net cash provided by (used in) our financing\aiiéis was ($0.3) million, $1.7 million and $37.5llion for fiscal
years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In figeat 2009, we repurchased 445,028 shares of tyeatmak for $2.0 million and received $:
million related to the proceeds from exercise otkt
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options. In fiscal year 2008, $2.9 million was tethto the proceeds from exercise of stock optibniscal year 2007, $43.4 million was
related to the proceeds from an initial public affg of our common stock, net of offering costs. Wpaid $0.3 million, $1.3 million and $7.7
million in loans for fiscal years 2009, 2008 and20respectively.

We have historically generated cash from our opggatctivities as we have grown. We expect to eepee continued growth in our
working capital requirements as we continue to adpaur business. We intend to fund this continugzhasion though cash generated by
operations. We anticipate that working capital wihstitute a material use of our cash resourcesh&Ve sufficient cash on hand to contint
operate in the next 12 months.

Other factors affecting liquidity and capital resoas

As of June 30, 2009, we had outstanding $10.0aonilin loans relating to the purchase of two faetiin San Jose, California. These
loans were repaid in July and August 2009, inclgdirpre-payment penalty of $0.2 million.

As of June 30, 2009, we had an unused revolvirgdircredit totaling $5.0 million that matures oad@mber 1, 2009 with an interest |
at Prime Rate plus 0.5% per annum. As of June @09,2ve were in compliance with the financial couets associated with the line of credit.

In addition, we have historically paid our contra@nufacturers within 40 to 77 days of invoice &fnlecom between 56 and 113 days
invoice. Ablecom, a Taiwan corporation, is one of major contract manufacturers and a related pagyf June 30, 2009 and 2008 amounts
owed to Ablecom by us were approximately $21.5iorilland $27.7 million, respectively.

In February 2008, we leased an office buildingmdraximately 246,000 square feet in Fremont, Califowith total payment obligations
of approximately $9.9 million over the next 6.1 seas of June 30, 2009. We also obtained an ireblecstandby letter of credit required by
the landlord of the office lease totaling $121,000is amount has been classified as a restricteet as of June 30, 2009.

In March 2008, we posted a bond in the amount df $8llion required by the Paris Court of Appeadtated to the Digitechnic lawsuit
(see Note 13 of Notes to our Consolidated Finargfalements). The bond was collateralized by avacable standby letter of credit totaling
$1.5 million. This amount has been classified esstricted asset as of June 30, 2009.

As of June 30, 2009, we held approximately $14 lianiof auction rate securities, net of unrealizeskses, representing our interest in
auction rate preferred shares in a closed end rhiuio@ invested in municipal securities and auctiate student loans guaranteed by the
Federal Family Education Loan Program; such auctbm securities were rated AAA or BBB at JuneZI9. These auction rate preferred
shares have no stated maturity date and statedityatates for these auction rate student loangedrom 2010 to 2040. During February
2008, the auctions for these auction rate secsititggan to fail to obtain sufficient bids to esitslbh clearing rate and were not saleable in the
auction, thereby losing the short-term liquiditgyiously provided by the auction process. As alteas of June 30, 2009, $14.3 million of
these auction rate securities have been classifiddng-term available-for-sale investments. Timeaiaing $0.3 million of auction rate student
loans was classified as a short-term availableséde-investment because the stated maturity ferseincurity occurs in June 2010. Based on our
assessment of fair value for fiscal year 2009, asehrecorded an accumulated unrealized loss of,8801net of deferred income taxes, on
both long-term and short-term auction rate se@sifi he unrealized loss was deemed to be tempanaras been recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss. Althoughave ldetermined that we will not likely be requitedsell the securities before the
anticipated recovery and we have the intent to Huwde investments until successful
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auctions occur, these investments are not curréqtlid and in the event we need to access thawasfuve will not be able to do so without a
loss of principal. There can be no assurancedhieae investments will be settled in the short terrthat they will not become other-than-
temporarily impaired subsequent to June 30, 209¢h@market for these investments is presentlgmain. In any event, we do not have a
present need to access these funds for operapanabses. We will continue to monitor and evaluhése investments as there is no assurance
as to when the market for these investments wdlnaus to liquidate them. We may be required tmrdémpairment charges in periods
subsequent to June 30, 2009 with respect to theesgises and, if a liqguid market does not devdtmpthese investments, we could be required
to hold them to maturity. In July and August 208pproximately $3.2 million of these auction ratewsdies were redeemed at par.

In November 2008, our Board of Directors approvguagram to repurchase, from time to time, at managnts discretion, shares of ¢
common stock. Under the plan, we were authorizedpgarchase up to 2,000,000 of our outstandingeshafrcommon stock in the open ma
or in private transactions during the period endleme 30, 2009 at prevailing market prices in coamgié with applicable securities laws and
other legal requirements. Repurchases were mada timel program using our own cash resources. Tdregitl not obligate us to acquire any
particular amount of common stock and the plandel suspended or discontinued at any time. Asreé 30, 2009, we had repurchased
445,028 shares of our common stock at a weightethge price of $4.56 per share for approximatel® §#llion.

Our long-term future capital requirements will degen many factors, including our level of revenuks timing and extent of spending
to support our product development efforts, theaasiion of sales and marketing activities, the tgrohour introductions of new products, the
costs to ensure access to adequate manufactupagitaand the continuing market acceptance ofpooducts. We could be required, or could
elect, to seek additional funding through publipdwate equity or debt financing and additionalds may not be available on terms accept
to us or at all.

Contractual Obligations
The following table describes our contractual odigns as of June 30, 2009:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
1to3 3to5
1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
(in thousands)
Operating lease $ 2,311 $ 4,01¢ $ 3,96: $ 2,47¢ $ 12,76¢
Capital leases, including intere 45 54 18 — 117
Building loans, including intere: 953 1,90¢€ 1,90¢ 12,18: 16,94¢
License arrangeme 50C 911 911 22¢ 2,55(
Purchase commitmen 52,11°¢ — — — 52,11t
Total $ 55,92¢ $ 6,88¢ $ 6,79i $ 14,88¢ $ 84,49¢

The table above excludes liabilities for deferredtrof $0.8 million, deferred revenue for warrasgyvices of $0.4 million and
unrecognized tax benefits and related interestpamélties accrual of $4.5 million. We have not jded a detailed estimate of the payment
timing of unrecognized tax benefits due to the utadety of when the related tax settlements are 8ee Note 12 of Notes to our Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-Kdaliscussion of income taxes.

We paid off the building loans in July and AuguB02 totaling $10.2 million including a pre-paymeeialty of $0.2 million. We expect
to fund our remaining contractual obligations froor ongoing operations and existing cash and casivaents on hand.

51



Table of Contents

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
SFAS No. 157

Effective July 1, 2008, we adopted certain provisiof SFAS No. 157Fair Value Measuremen{(§SFAS 157”), which the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued in Seyider 2006. SFAS 157 establishes specific critenidtfe fair value measurement of
financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilitieattare already subject to fair value under curaenbunting rules. SFAS 157 also requires
expanded disclosures related to fair value measmeanin February 2008, the FASB issued Staff RPwos{tFSP”) 157-2, which delayed the
effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assetd nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years begmmafter November 15, 2008, except for
items that are recognized or disclosed at fairezal at least an annual basis. We elected to detagdoption date for the portions of SFAS
157 impacted by FSP 157-2, and, as a result, ptadoa portion of the provisions of SFAS 157. Thetipl adoption of SFAS 157 was
prospective and did not have a significant effecbar consolidated results of operations and firdmondition. We are currently evaluating
the impact of measuring the remaining nonfinanagslets and nonfinancial liabilities under FSP Ni@-2 on our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

EITF 07-3

Effective July 1, 2008, we adopted EITF 07A8counting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments fuod3 or Services Received for Use
in Future Research and Development Activi(l€8TF 07-3"). EITF 07-3 requires that nonrefundalldvance payments for goods or services
that will be used or rendered for future researuhd@evelopment activities be deferred and capédland recognized as an expense as the
goods are delivered or the related services aferpeed. The adoption did not have a material impacour financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 159

Effective July 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. TB® Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities-including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. (85AS 159”), which the FASB issued in February 208FAS 159 expands the use of fair value
accounting but does not affect existing standamtis;ch require assets or liabilities to be carriethir value. Under SFAS 159, an entity may
elect to use fair value to measure certain eligileles. The fair value option may be elected gdlyeoa an instrument-by-instrument basis as
long as it is applied to the instrument in its \etii, even if an entity has similar instruments thalects not to measure based on fair value. We
did not elect to adopt the fair value option omyiblie items under SFAS 159.

FSP 15-3

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB staff posifft-SP”) 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Wilee Market
for That Asset Is Not Activ(*FSP 157-3"). FSP 157-3 clarified the applicatmSFAS 157. FSP 157-3 demonstrated how the féirevaf a
financial asset is determined when the marketHat financial asset is inactive. FSP 157-3 wascffe upon issuance, including prior periods
for which financial statements had not been isstibd.implementation of this standard did not hawesgerial impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

FSP FAS 11-2 / FAS124-2

Effective April 1, 2009, we adopted FSP FAS 11538 &AS 124-2Recognition and Presentation of Other-THEemporary Impairmen
(“FSP FAS 115-2"). FSP FAS 115-2 amends the othanttemporary impairment (“OTTI") guidance in UGAAP to make the guidance
more operational and to improve the presentatianttodr-than-temporary impairments in the finanstatements. Prior to FSP FAS 115-2, if
OTTI was determined to exist, we recognized an OdhEIrge into earnings in an amount equal to tHeraifice
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between the investment’s amortized cost basistarfdir value as of the balance sheet date ofaperting period. Under FSP 115-2, if OTTI
has been incurred, and it is more-likely-than-hat tve will not sell or be required to sell theéstment security before the recovery of its
amortized cost basis, then the OTTI is separated(&@) the amount representing the credit loss(Bjpthe amount related to all other factors.
The amount of the total OTTI related to the créabt is recognized in earnings. The amount ofdked OTTI related to other factors is
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive iec@AOCI"). The total OTTI, which includes both diéand non-credit losses, is
presented gross in our statements of operationssaeduced by the non-credit loss amount of tie ©TTI that is recognized in AOCI. There
was no initial effect of adoption on April 1, 2089 we determined that we will not likely be reqdite sell the securities before their
anticipated recovery and we have the intent to baldinvestments until recovery of cost.

FSP FAS15-4

Effective April 1, 2009, we adopted FSP FAS 15Ddtermining Fair Value When the Volume and Levélaiivity for the Asset or
Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Ideritify Transactions That Are Not Ordel(“FSP FAS 157-4"). FSP FAS 157-4 provides
additional guidance for estimating fair value ic@aaance with SFAS 157 when the volume and leveltifity for an asset or liability have
significantly decreased. FSP FAS 157-4 also indwglédance on identifying circumstances that in@i@atransaction is not orderly. The
adoption of FSP FAS 157-4 did not have an impaatwrfinancial position, results of operations aslt flows.

FSP FAS10-1

Effective April 1, 2009, we adopted FSP FAS 107 Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) 28-hterim Disclosures About Fair
Value of Financial Instrumen{8FSP FAS 107-1"). FSP FAS 107-1 amends SFAS N@, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, to require disclosures about fair value of firahmstruments in interim financial statementsaeedl as in annual financial
statements and also amends APB Opinion Nolr28rim Financial Reporting to require those disclosures in all interim fioiah statements.
The adoption of FSP FAS 107-1 did not have an impa®ur financial position, results of operatiamscash flows. See Note 3 for additional
disclosures included in accordance with FSP FAS1.07

SFAS No.165

Effective April 1, 2009, we adopted FASB Statemidnt 165,Subsequent Event$SFAS 165”). SFAS 165 establishes general stargdard
of accounting for and disclosure of events thatioedter the balance sheet date but before finhat@tgements are issued or are available to be
issued. It requires the disclosure of the dateudnowvhich an entity has evaluated subsequent ewedtshe basis for that date—that is, whether
that date represents the date the financial statismeere issued or were available to be issued distlosure should alert all users of financial
statements that an entity has not evaluated subseguents after that date in the set of finarsti@lements being presented. Adoption of SFAS
165 did not have an impact on our financial positie@sults of operations or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

ltem 7A.  Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About Mark&isk
Interest Rate Risk

The primary objectives of our investment activitéags to preserve principal, provide liquidity andximize income without significantly
increasing the risk. Some of the securities weshireare subject to market risk. This means thatange in prevailing interest rates may cause
the fair value of the investment to fluctuate. Timimize this risk, we maintain our portfolio of ¢daequivalents and short-term investments in
money market
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funds and certificates of deposit. Since our respiltoperations are not dependent on investmdrggjgk associated with fluctuating interest
rates is limited to our investment portfolio, and believe that a 10% change in interest rates woaiddave a significant impact on our results
of operations. As of June 30, 2009, our investmesgt® in money market funds, certificates of defsamnd auction rate securities (see
Liquidity Risk below).

We had $10.0 million of indebtedness under ouritfadilities as of June 30, 2009 and $10.3 millafrindebtedness under our credit
facilities as of June 30, 2008. The annual inter&tst on our credit facilities is based on varimgexes as defined in the loan agreements. At
June 30, 2009, the interest rates ranged from 5{67223%. We paid off the building loans in JuhdaAugust 2009 totaling $10.2 million
including a pre-payment penalty of $0.2 million.

Liquidity Risk

As of June 30, 2009, we held approximately $14 lianiof auction rate securities, net of unrealizeskses, representing our interest in
auction rate preferred shares in a closed end tiutod invested in municipal securities and auctiate student loans guaranteed by the
Federal Family Education Loan Program; such auctdm securities were rated AAA or BBB at JuneZI9. These auction rate preferred
shares have no stated maturity date and the stagdity dates for these auction rate student loange from 2010 to 2040. During February
2008, the auctions for these auction rate secsititggyan to fail to obtain sufficient bids to esttbh clearing rate and were not saleable in the
auction, thereby losing the short-term liquiditgyiously provided by the auction process. As alteas of June 30, 2009, $14.3 million of
these auction rate securities have been classifiddng-term available-for-sale investments. Thmeaiaing $0.3 million of auction rate student
loans was classified as a short-term availablesébe-investment because the stated maturity fersénéurity occurs in June 2010. Based on our
assessment of fair value for fiscal year 2009, asehrecorded an accumulated unrealized loss of,8801net of deferred income taxes, on
both long-term and short-term auction rate se@itihe unrealized loss was deemed to be tempanaas been recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss. In July anglist 2009, approximately $3.2 million of thesetaurcrate securities were redeemed at
par.

Although we have determined that we will not likély required to sell the securities before thecgated recovery and we have the
intent to hold our investments until successfultns occur, these investments are not currerglyidi and in the event we need to access these
funds, we will not be able to do so without a lo§grincipal. There can be no assurances that thesstments will be settled in the short term
or that they will not become other-than-temporairifypaired subsequent to June 30, 2009, as the tfarkiese investments is presently
uncertain. In any event, we do not have a presesd o access these funds for operational purpdgesvill continue to monitor and evaluate
these investments as there is no assurance astotiv market for these investments will allowaiidquidate them. We may be required to
record impairment charges in periods subsequehinie 30, 2009 with respect to these securitiesibadiguid market does not develop for
these investments, we could be required to holch tttematurity.

Foreign Currency Risk

To date, our international customer and suppliee@ments have been denominated solely in U.S.rdpHad accordingly, we have not
been exposed to foreign currency exchange rateufitions from customer agreements, and do notmilyrengage in foreign currency hedg
transactions. However, the functional currencywfaperations in Netherlands and Taiwan is the doBar and our local accounts are
maintained in the local currency in the Netherlaadd Taiwan, respectively, and thus we are subjefttreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations associated with re-measurement to tdo8ars. Such fluctuations have not been signifidastorically. For example, foreign
exchange gain or (loss) for fiscal years 2009, 28982007 were $3,000, $76,000 and ($1,000), r&éspbc
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Super Micro Computer, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Super Micro Computer, Inc. and suosédi (the “Company”) as of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related consdlidgéatements of operations, stockholderlity, and cash flows for each of the three y&e
the period ended June 30, 2009. These consolifiatattial statements are the responsibility of@leenpanys management. Our responsibi
is to express an opinion on the consolidated fiizustatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinarficial position of Super Micro
Computer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 20092008, and the results of their operationstheil cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended June 30, 2009, in conformitynaccounting principles generally accepted inUnéed States of America.

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated firdrstatements, the Company adopted Financial AdoauStandards Board
Interpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of Statement of Financial Accounting 8nds No. 109,
effective July 1, 2007.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated firdrstatements, the Company has significant purehfase and sales to a related party.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of June 30, 2009, based on the criteria estadgliininternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission and our report datedustu31, 2009 express
an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internaitcol over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP
San Jose, California
August 31, 2009
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 70,29 $ 51,48
Shor-term investment 347 57
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,068$h 173 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respecti
(including amounts receivable from a related paft$280 and $792 at June 30, 2009 and 200¢
respectively’ 45,70¢ 49,50:
Inventory, ne 90,04+ 85,68:
Deferred income tax-current 8,64/ 8,66:
Prepaid income taxe 3,25¢ 2,661
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,728 1,837
Total current asse 220,01¢ 199,88:
Long-term investment 14,35t 16,10¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 44,96( 45,60:
Deferred income tax-noncurren 1,917 93¢
Restricted asse 1,76¢ 1,72¢
Other asset 11¢ 127
Total asset $ 283,13! $ 264,38!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (including amounts due to a rdlpty of $21,455 and $27,717 at June 30, 2C
and 2008, respectivel $ 73,53 $ 80,96:
Accrued liabilities 13,91¢ 14,79(
Income taxes payab — 18¢
Advances from receivable financing arrangem 1,22( 1,17:
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 42 57
Current portion of lon-term deb! 31¢ 32C
Total current liabilities 89,03 97,49:
Long-term capital lease obligatic-net of current portiol 66 10¢
Long-term dek-net of current portiol 9,67¢ 9,981
Other lon¢-term liabilities 5,741 4,934
Total liabilities 104,51 112,51
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder equity:
Common stock and additional p-in capital, $0.001 par valt
Authorized shares: 100,000,0
Issued and outstanding shares: 35,218,284 and&2®b6at June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively 81,89: 69,43«
Deferred stoc-based compensatic (110 (675)
Treasury stock (at cost), 445,028 and O sharasnat 30, 2009 and 2008, respectiv (2,030 —
Accumulated other comprehensive I (801) (452)
Retained earning 99,67( 83,56:
Total stockholder equity 178,62: 151,87:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 283,13! $ 264,38

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Years Ended June 30,

2009

Net sales (including related party sales of $6,88593 and $7,320 in fisc

years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectiv $ 505,60
Cost of sales (including related party purchasef9d{954, $105,981 and
$95,673 in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, resdy) 416,89¢

Gross profi 88,71(
Operating expense

Research and developmt 34,51«

Sales and marketir 17,11¢

General and administrati\ 13,82

Reversal of litigation los —
Total operating expens 65,451
Income from operatior 23,25:
Interest incom 47€
Interest expens (930
Income before income tax provisi 22,79¢
Income tax provisiol 6,692
Net income $ 16,10;
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.47

Diluted $ 0.41
Shares used in per share calculat

Basic 34,217,57

Diluted 39,155,72

See accompanying notes to consolidated financistents.
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2008
$ 540,50

436,95(
103,55¢

30,53
18,19;
14,55t
63,28:
40,27

1,55¢
(1,025)
40,80«
15,38t

$  2541¢

$ 0.81
$ 0.6%

31,354,95
38,843,15

$

2007

420,39:

345,38

75,00¢

21,17:
12,58¢
11,46°

(120
45,10¢

29,90¢
765

(1,337

$

$
$

29,33¢
9,99¢

19,33¢

0.8C
0.57

24,152,76
33,946,07
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock and Accumulated
Additional Paid-In Other Total
Capital Deferred Treasury Stock Comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock-Based Retained
Shares Amount Compensatior Shares Amount Loss Earnings Equity
Balance at July 1, 20C 22,174,26 $ 10,53¢ $ (2,569 -  $ — 3 —  $39,79¢ $ 47,76
Exercise of stock optior 1,631,001 1,82 — — — — — 1,82
Issuance of common stock i
connection with initial
public offering, net of
issuance costs of $4,6 6,400,000 42,98 — — — — — 42,98
Stock-based compensatic — 1,531 — — — — — 1,531
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol — — 89¢ — — — — 89¢
Forfeitures of stoc-basec
compensatiol — (164) 164 — — — — —
Tax benefit resulting fror
stock option transactior — 1,532 — — — — — 1,532
Net income — — — — — — 19,33¢ 19,33¢
Balance at June 30, 20 30,205,26.  58,23¢ (1,500 — — — 59,13 115,87:
Cumulative effect upo
adoption of FIN 4¢ — — — — — — (989) (989)
Exercise of stock optior 2,463,46 2,93 — — — — — 2,93
Stoclk-based compensatic — 3,36 — — — — — 3,36
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol — — 801 — — — — 801
Forfeitures of stoc-basec
compensatiol — (24) 24 — — — — —
Tax benefit resulting fror
stock option transactior — 4,92( — — — — — 4,92(
Unrealized loss on
investment: — — — — — (451 — (451
Net income — — — — — — 25,41¢ 25,41¢
Balance at June 30, 20 32,668,73 69,43 (675) — — (451) 83,56: 151,87:
Purchase of treasury sto — — — (445,029 (2,030 — — (2,030
Exercise of stock optior 2,549,55: 2,057 — — — — — 2,05}
Stoclk-based compensatic — 5,09¢ — — — — — 5,09¢
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol — — 562 — — — — 562
Forfeitures of stock-based
compensatiol — 3 3 — — — — —
Tax benefit resulting fror
stock option transactior — 5,30¢ — — — — — 5,30¢
Unrealized loss o
investment: — — — — — (350 — (350
Net income — — — — — — 16,10" 16,10"
Balance at June 30, 20 35,218,28 $ 81,89 $ (11C) (445,02 $ (2,030 $ (80) $ 99,67( $ 178,62.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Reconciliation of net income to net cash providgaperating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Allowance for sales returr
Provision for inventon
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipn
Gain on sho-term investment
Deferred income taxe
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivable, net (including changes integlgarty balances of $512, $61 and

$(543) in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respelg)
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable (including changes in relatedydaatances of $(6,262), $1,623 ¢
$2,602 in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, re&psdyg}
Income taxes payable, r
Accrued litigation los!
Accrued liabilities
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Restricted asse
Proceeds from investmer
Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Purchases of investmer
Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Repayment of lor-term debt
Payment of obligations under capital lea
Advances under receivable financing arrangem
Payment to acquire treasury stc
Payment of deferred offering co:
Proceeds from initial offering of common stock, ngbffering cost:
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for taxes, net of refur
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Equipment purchased under capital lez
Reversal of deferred stc-based compensation for cancellation of stock opt
Accrued costs for property, plant and equipmentipase:
Accrued offering cost
Changes in fair values of investme

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
$ 16,100 $ 2541¢ $ 19,33
3,65¢ 2,66¢ 1,64(
5,661 4,16¢ 2,43(
29¢ 334 24(
4,24¢ 5,631 4,40¢
1,45¢ 6,85( 5,62¢
40 17 16
— — (939
(1,007) (3,047 (3,217)
(755 (22,040  (15,82)
(5820  (25,76) (14,789
11€ 9 (86€)
(6,91 18,62 9,487
4,79: 1,23¢ 1,93¢
— — (575)
(872) 73€ 5,221
807 3,65¢ —
21,81 18,50: 14,98¢
(38) (1,67 (157)
94z 20,62¢ 14F
(3561 (16,08 (3,047)
(58) (22,480 (15,05
(2,715 (19,609 (18,109
2,057 2,93: 1,82¢
(307) (1,25¢) (7,687)
(57) (126) (210)
47 191 182
(2,030 — —
_ (20) _
— — 43,36
(290) 1,725 37,47t
18,81« 617 34,35¢
51,48 50,86 16,50¢
$ 70,29: $ 5148, $ 50,86
$ 93 $ 1,028 $ 1,33
$ 3,646 $ 13258 $ 11,27
$ — $ 132 $ 13¢
$ 3 $ 24 $ 164
$ 447 $ 88 $ 78
$ — $ — $ 317
$ (577 $ (749 $ —
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.  Organization

Super Micro Computer, Inc. (“Super Micro Computers incorporated in California on September 28318nd reincorporated in
Delaware on March 19, 2007. Super Micro Computeelips and provides high performance server saiatiased upon an innovative,
modular and open-standard architecture. Super Miamputer has whollpwned subsidiaries in the Netherlands, Taiwan, Gayhlands an
California, United States.

Note 2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements reflect tiresolidated balance sheets, results of operatiotisash flows of Super Micro
Computer, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiariedléctively, the “Company”). All intercompany acaus and transactions have been
eliminated.

Subsequent Event

The Company has evaluated subsequent events aisddtions for potential recognition or disclosuréhie financial statements through
August 31, 2009, the date the financial statemeste available to be issued. See Note 16 for amfditiinformation regarding subsequent
events.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of Americal{'S.
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates asuhgstions that affect the reported amounts of ass@t liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efitmancial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Such estimates include, but are not lunite allowances for doubtful accounts and salegms, cooperative marketing accruals,
inventory valuation, product warranty accrualscktbased compensation, impairment of short-termlang-term investments and income
taxes. Actual results could differ from those esti@s.

Reclassifications

The balance for other assets in the prior yearamtated statement of cash flows has been recledsid combine with prepaid expense
and other assets to conform with the current yessgmtation.

Fair Value Measurements

Effective July 1, 2008, the Company adopted cepadvisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrigtards (“SFAS”) No. 15Fair
Value Measuremen{sSFAS 157"), which the Financial Accounting StardieBoard (“FASB”) issued in September 2006. SFA3 1
establishes specific criteria for the fair valueasigrement of financial and nonfinancial assetsliabdities that are already subject to fair value
under current accounting rules. SFAS 157 also reguxpanded disclosures related to fair value areagents. In February 2008, the FASB
issued Staff Position (“FSP”) 157-2, which delayee effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinanciaka&ssnd nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2008, exceptdans that are recognized or disclosed at famean at least an annual basis.

Company elected to delay the adoption date foptrdons of SFAS 157 impacted by FSP 157-2, and, @sult, it adopted a portion of the
provisions of SFAS 157. The partial adoption of SFF67 was prospective and did not have a signifieffact on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations and financial condition. Twmpany is currently evaluating the impact of meaguthe remaining nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities under FSP No. 157-2itsrfinancial position, results of operations aagh flows.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

SFAS 157 clarifies that fair value is an exit pricgpresenting the amount that would be receivestlican asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants. SFAS 157 also requires that a fduevaneasurement reflect the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing an asséitbility based on the best information availabAssumptions include the risks inherent in a
particular valuation technique (such as a priciragled) and/or the risks inherent in the inputs ®ttodel.

SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy thatifizes the inputs to valuation techniques usetheasure fair value. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quotedegsiin active markets for identical assets orlités (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measuretsiehe three levels of the fair value hierarchger SFAS 157 are described below:

» Level - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thatacessible at the measurement date for identinegstricted assets
liabilities;

» Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are navadir financial instruments for which all signiiat inputs are observable, either
directly or indirectly; anc

» Level 3- Prices or valuations that require inputs that ath ignificant to the fair value measurement anobservable

A financial instrument’s level within the fair vathierarchy is based on the lowest level of anutitipat is significant to the fair value
measurement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentth an original maturity of three months or Iéssn the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarilgnohey market funds and certificate of deposits wititurities of less than three months.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist of a certificatdedosit with maturity of more than three monthslbas than a year and an auction rate
security. See Note 6 related to auction rate séesiriThe certificate of deposit is carried at atmed cost which approximates fair value.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-finst-out method) or market. Inventory consistsaf materials (principally components),
work in process (principally products being assedphnd finished goods. Market value representsaadizable value for finished goods and
work in process and replacement value of raw malteand parts. The Company evaluates inventoryquagerly basis for lower of cost or
market and excess and obsolescence and, as ngcegdas down the valuation of units to lower afst or market or for excess and
obsolescence calculated as the number of unitatbainlikely to be sold based upon estimated ddrfarthe following twelve months. This
evaluation takes into account matters includingeetgd demand, anticipated sales price, productedsnce and other factors. If actual future
demand for our products is less than currentlydaséed, additional inventory adjustments may baired. Once a reserve is established, it is
maintained until the product to which it relates@dd or scrapped. If a unit that has been writtewn is subsequently sold, the cost associated
with the revenue from this unit is reduced to tkeeet of the write down, resulting in an increas@ioss profit. The Company monitors the
extent to which previously written down inventosysiold at amounts greater or less than carryingeyaind based on this analysis, adjusts its
estimate for determining future write
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downs. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 200%itterical analysis of sales of previously writdmwn inventory was such that the Company
decreased its estimate for reserving excess aradeddsnventory through the application of the nesny rate in the reserve methodology. If in
future periods, the Company experiences or antiegpa change in recovery rate compared with itefiésl experience, its gross margin would
be affected. During fiscal years 2009, 2008 and72@e Company recorded a provision for excessolsdlete inventory totaling $1,459,000,
$6,850,000 and $5,629,000, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasabtlepreciated using the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the
related assets as follows:

Machinery and equipme! 1.5t0 7 year:

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Software 3 years

Buildings 39 years

Building improvement: 20 years

Leasehold improvemen shorter of lease term or estimated useful

For assets acquired and financed under capitadesize present value of the future minimum leasenents is recorded at the date of
acquisition as property and equipment with theesponding amount recorded as a capital lease tibligand the amortization is computed
a straight-line basis over the shorter of leasm t&r estimated useful life.

Restricted Assel

Restricted assets consist primarily of certificatbdeposits pledged as security for two irrevoedetters of credit of $121,000 and
$1,540,000 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008. In Feb2(418, the Company obtained an irrevocable statettsr of credit required by the
landlord of its office lease totaling $121,000 Miarch 2008, the Company posted a bond in the amafu$&,080,000 required by the Paris
Court of Appeals related to the Digitechnic lawga#e Note 13). The bond was collateralized byrawvacable standby letter of credit totaling
$1,540,000.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets foaimpent whenever events or changes in circumstandeaste that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whesutineof the undiscounted future net cash flows ebtgueto result from the use of the asset
and its eventual disposition is less than its égagyamount, an impairment loss would be measursddan the fair value of the asset compi
to the carrying amount. No impairment charge hanbrecorded in any of the periods presented.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company accounts for its revenue under theigioms of Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 10&Rkevenue Recognition in
Financial Statemeni. Under the provisions of SAB No. 104, the Compeagognizes revenue from sales of products, whesupsive
evidence of an arrangement exists, shipment hagectand title has transferred, the sales prifi@asl or determinable, collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured, arglglificant obligations have been met. Generdilly dccurs at the time of shipment when risk
of
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loss and title has passed to the customer. The Goygpstandard arrangement with its customers deda signed purchase order or contract,
free-on-board shipping point terms, 30 to 60 dapent terms, and no customer acceptance provistartain customers have free-on-board
destination terms and revenue is recognized whepthducts arrive at the destination. The Compamergally does not provide for non-
warranty rights of return except for products whitgtve “Out-of-box” failure, in which case customaray return these products for credit
within 30 days of receiving the items. Certain iigttors and original equipment manufacturers (OEMe also permitted to return products in
unopened boxes, limited to purchases over a spdgqiteriod of time, generally within 60 to 90 dayshe purchase, or to products in the
distributor’'s or OEM’s inventory at certain timesuth as the termination of the agreement or proolhsblescence). In addition, the Company
has a sales arrangement with an OEM under whictimepany sells its products with the OEM’s branthis OEM. The OEM has limited
product return rights. To estimate reserves farisales returns, the Company regularly reviesvkigttory of actual returns for each major
product line. The Company also communicates retyudth the relevant distributors to gather infortoa about end customer satisfaction,

to determine the volume of inventory in the chan&stimated reserves for future returns, whichracerded at the time the related revenue is
recognized, are adjusted as necessary, baseduonsrexperience, returns expectations and commtigricaith distributors.

In addition, certain customers have acceptanceigioms and revenue is deferred until the custorpergide the necessary acceptance. At
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company had defervedue of $599,000 and $2,961,000 and related @efemoduct costs of $421,000 and
$2,184,000, respectively, related to shipmentsisiamers pending acceptances.

Probability of collection is assessed on a custelyetustomer basis. Customers are subjected to a cexittv process that evaluates
customers’ financial position and ultimately thelnility to pay. If it is determined from the outsd#tan arrangement that collection is not
probable based upon the review process, the custaane required to pay cash in advance of shipniéret.Company also makes estimates of
the uncollectibility of accounts receivables, azalg accounts receivable and historical bad debitstomer concentrations, customer-credit-
worthiness, current economic trends and changesstomer payment terms to evaluate the adequatwe @fllowance for doubtful accounts.
On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates agetiin the accounts receivable aging report andges allowance in an amount the
Company deems adequate for doubtful accounts. iagement were to make different judgments or etitifferent estimates, material
differences in the amount of the Company’s repoojeerating expenses could result. The Company gesvior price protection to certain
distributors. Management assesses the market citimpetnd product technology obsolescence, and mpkee adjustments based on their
judgment. Upon each announcement of price redustitwe accrual for price protection is calculataddal on the distributc inventory on
hand. Such reserves are recorded as a reductiengnue at the time management reduces the prpdaes in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 01AZcounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©@wstomer (including a Reseller of the
Vendor’s Product$. Credits issued by the Company pursuant to thesdsions were $371,000, $283,000 and $182,00¢hfoyears ended
June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Thepaagndoes not commit to future price reduction$naity of its customers.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of the costs ofemals, contract manufacturing, in-bound shippioersonnel and related expenses,
equipment and facility expenses, warranty costspmadision for excess and obsolete inventory.
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Product Warranties

The Company provides warranties against any defegtioducts which range from 15 to 39 months. Tom@any accrues for estimated
returns of defective products at the time revesuedéognized, based on historical warranty expeei@md recent trends. The Company
monitors warranty obligations and may make revisitnits warranty reserve if actual costs of pradapair and replacement are significantly
higher or lower than estimated. Accruals for apttéed future warranty costs are charged to cosales and included in accrued liabilities. The
Company’s estimates and assumptions used havehisterically close to actual. If in future periodise Company experiences or anticipates
an increase or decrease in warranty claims asuét téshew product introductions or change in wutumes compared with its historical
experience, or if the cost of servicing warrangirdis is greater or lesser than expected, the Coyriptands to adjust its estimates
appropriately. The following table presents for ylears ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, theaiéaton of the changes in accrued
warranty costs (in thousands):

June 30,
2009 2008 2007
Balance, beginning of peric $2,92( $ 2,24z $ 1,462
Provision for warrant 6,70: 6,612 4,20z
Costs charged to accrt (6,299 (5,799 (3,42))
Change in estimated liability for f-existing warrantie 25E (137) —
Balance, end of peric $ 3,57¢ $ 2,92( $ 2,24

Software Development Cos

Software development costs are included in researdidevelopment and are expensed as incurredva8eftievelopment costs are
capitalized beginning when technological feasipitibs been established and ending when a prodactikble for general release to
customers. To date, the period between achievictgntdogical feasibility and the issuing of suchtaafre has been short and software
development costs qualifying for capitalization é&een insignificant.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expensed athend consist primarily of salaries, consultsegvices, other direct expenses and
other engineering expenses. The Company occasiaeakives funding from certain suppliers and custis towards its development efforts.
Such amounts are recorded as a reduction of résaattdevelopment expenses and were $2,716,0BB3%200 and $1,104,000 for the years
ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Cooperative Marketing Arrangements

The Company follows EITF Issue No. 01Ag;counting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©@wstomer (including a Reseller of the
Vendor’'s Products) The Company has arrangements with resellers gird@ducts to reimburse the resellers for cooperatiarketing costs
meeting specified criteria. The Company accruestioperative marketing costs based on these amarge and our estimate for resellers’
claims for marketing activities. In accordance VETF Issue No. 01-9, the Company records marketogis meeting such specified criteria
within sales and marketing expenses in the corsalgistatements of operations. For those marketistp that do not meet the criteria set fi
in EITF Issue No. 01-9, the amounts are recordelrasluction to sales in the consolidated statesrafraiperations.
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Total cooperative marketing costs charged to satdsmarketing expenses for the years ended Jurg939, 2008 and 2007, were
$1,355,000, $2,489,000 and $1,699,000, respectiVelyal amounts recorded as reductions to salethéoyears ended June 30, 2009, 2008 anc
2007, were $1,043,000, $643,000 and $622,000, ctsply.

Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Totzdraising and promotional expenses, including evafive marketing payments, were
$1,767,000, $3,290,000 and $2,426,000 for the yer@ded June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company adopted the fair value recognition isioms of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2008hare-Based PaymefiSFAS No. 123(R)),
effective July 1, 2006 using the prospective tridmsimethod, which establishes standards for tieewaating for transactions in which an entity
exchanges its equity instruments for goods or sesviprimarily focusing on accounting for transacsi where an entity obtains employee
services in share-based payment transactions. $f0A$23(R) requires enterprises to measure theof@stployee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments, indgdtock options, based on the grant-date fairevaf the award. That cost will be
recognized over the period during which an emplageequired to provide services in exchange feratvard, known as the requisite service
period (usually the vesting period). SFAS No. 123HRpersedes the Company’s previous accountingrukiéiB No. 25 for periods beginning
in fiscal year 2007.

Prior to July 1, 2006, the Company elected to felisccounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2&;counting for Stock Issued to
Employee(“APB 25”), and related interpretations in accouagtfor its employee stock options rather than ther@ative fair value accounting
provided for under SFAS No. 128¢counting for Stock-Based Compensatias amended by SFAS No. 148. Under APB 25, when th
exercise price of the Company’s employee and dirextbck options is equal to or greater than theketgrice of the underlying stock on the
date of grant, no compensation expense is recoginizee Company recognized deferred stock-based ensapion based on the excess of the
deemed fair value of the underlying stock overdtoek option exercise price at the date of grartmFSeptember 2004 through December
2005, the Company granted options with exercisgeprequal to the fair value of the common stockrdehed by the board of directors at the
time of the grants. The Company subsequently obtialuations from an unrelated valuation speditiist were used to establish retroacti
the fair value of its common stock. This retroaetfgir value exceeded the fair value establishethéyoard of directors at the time of the
grants. As a result, the Company recorded defestiek-based compensation for stock options graintea September 2004 to December
2005. The intrinsic value per share is being recmghas compensation expense over the applicabtenggoeriod (which equals the service
period).

Shipping and Handling Fee:

In accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-Agcounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Cp#te Company incurred shipping cost:
$576,000, $689,000 and $458,000 for the years edaieel 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, teat wcluded in sales and marketing
expenses.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under am asddiability approach. Deferred income taxesecfthe impact of temporary
differences between assets and liabilities recaghfar financial reporting
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purposes and such amounts recognized for incomeepexting purposes, net operating loss carryfodwand other tax credits measured by

applying currently enacted tax laws. Valuationwkmces are provided when necessary to reduce défexx assets to an amount that is more
likely than not to be realized.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company’s foreigbsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, remaasoent of foreign currency
accounts and foreign exchange transaction gaintoagsds, which have not been material, are refldot¢he consolidated statements of
operations.

Net Income Per Shar
Basic net income per share is computed by dividieigincome by the weighted average number of conshares outstanding for the
period.

Diluted net income per share is computed by digdhre net income for the period by the weightedaye number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding during thieghePotentially dilutive securities, comprisedinéremental common shares, issuable t
the exercise of stock options are included in ddutet income per share, using the treasury st@tkod, to the extent such shares are dilutive.

A reconciliation of shares used in the calculatibbasic and diluted net income per share is dgvisl (in thousands, except for per share
amounts):

Years Ended June 30

2009 2008 2007

Numerator:

Net income $16,107  $25,41¢  $19,33¢
Denominator

Basic weighte-average number of common shares outstar 34,21¢ 31,35¢ 24,15

Dilutive common stock optior 4,37¢ 7,48¢ 9,79:

Dilutive restricted stock awarc 56C — —

Diluted weighte-average number of common shares outstar 39,15¢ 38,84 33,94¢
Basic net income per she $ 047 $ 081 $ 0.8C
Diluted net income per sha $ 041 $ 06 $ 057

For the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 289T,dmpany had stock options outstanding that qoofientially dilute basic earnings
per share in the future, but were excluded fromcthraputation of diluted net income per share ingbegods presented, as their effect would
have been anti-dilutive. The shares of common siggikable upon exercise of such anti-dilutive @uding stock options were 4,679,000,
2,610,000 and 644,000 for the years ended Jun20B®9, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Comprehensive Income

The Company accounts for comprehensive income uhédgsrovisions SFAS No. 13Beporting Comprehensive Incoméjich
establishes standards for reporting and displag@mprehensive income and its components in thadiahstatements. Comprehensive
income, as defined, includes all changes in egliityng a period from non-owner sources. Accumulatibeér comprehensive loss at June 30,
2009 and 2008 is comprised solely of unrealizedden investments, net of taxes. The componemtsnoprehensive income, net of taxes,
as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Net income $16,10° $25,41¢ $19,33¢
Unrealized losses on investments, net of t (350 (451) —
Total comprehensive incon $15,75 $24,96¢ $19,33¢

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in the high technology inglesid is subject to a number of risks, some of thie beyond the Company’s
control, that could have a material adverse effedhe Company’s business, operating results, imaddial condition. These risks include
variability and uncertainty of revenues and operatesults; product obsolescence; geographic coratem; international operations;
dependence on key personnel; competition; intelidgiroperty/litigation; management of growth; dintited sources of supply.

Concentration of Supplier Risk

Certain of the raw materials used by the Comparniiénmanufacture of its products are available feolimited number of suppliers.
Shortages could occur in these essential matehiedso an interruption of supply or increased deriarthe industry. Two suppliers accounted
for 22.5% and 23.6%, 24.8% and 23.9%, and 30.8%Rar2Ps, of total purchases for the years ended 30n2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accpag&ble are carried at cost, which approximates/édue due to the short maturity of
these instruments. Short-term and long-term investmare carried at fair value. Long-term debtisied at amortized cost, which
approximates its fair value based on borrowingsraterently available to the Company for loans wgithilar terms.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentration of credit risk consigtnarily of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term and long-term investments and accoeutsivable. Deposits may exceed the amount of inserprovided on such deposits. No
single customer accounted for 10% or more of nesga fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007. No singktomer accounted for 10% or more of
accounts receivable as of June 30, 2009 and 2008.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
EITF 07-3

Effective July 1, 2008, the Company adopted EITEtdrt No. 07-3Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments fuwds or
Services Received for Use in Future Research amelbement Activitie§'EITF 07-3"). EITF 07-3 requires that nonrefundalsldvance
payments for goods or services that will be useendered for future research and developmentiieti\be deferred and capitalized and
recognized as an expense as the goods are delivetieel related services are performed. The adopglid not have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial position, results of operationgash flows.

SFAS No. 159

Effective July 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS1$8,The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities-
including an amendment of FASB Statement No("BIFAS 159”),which the FASB issued in February 2007. SFAS 158hegs the use of fe
value accounting but does not affect existing stathsl which require assets or liabilities to beiedrat fair value. Under SFAS 159, an entity
may elect to use fair value to measure certainbdigtems. The fair value option may be electedegelly on an instrument-bipstrument basi
as long as it is applied to the instrument in itBrety, even if an entity has similar instrumettat it elects not to measure based on fair value.
The Company has not elected to adopt the fair vaihiion on eligible items under SFAS 159.

FSP 15-3

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP 15D&germining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Wiilee Market for That Asset Is Not
Active(“FSP 157-3"). FSP 157-3 clarified the applicatmffSFAS 157. FSP 157-3 demonstrated how the fairevaf a financial asset is
determined when the market for that financial assitactive. FSP 157-3 was effective upon issuamoduding prior periods for which
financial statements had not been issued. The mmai¢ation of this standard did not have a matérighct on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

FSP FAS 11-2 / FAS124-2

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSRSPA5-2 and FAS 124-Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Tempprar
Impairments(“FSP FAS 115-2"). FSP FAS 115-2 amends the othantemporary impairment (“OTTI") guidance in UGAAP to make the
guidance more operational and to improve the ptatien of other-than-temporary impairments in timaficial statements. Prior to FSP FAS
1152, if OTTI was determined to exist, the Companygized an OTTI charge into earnings in an amoguakto the difference between
investment's amortized cost basis and its fair &as of the balance sheet date of the reportirigghddnder FSP 115-2, if OTTI has been
incurred, and it is more-likely-than-not that ther@pany will not sell or be required to sell thegstment security before the recovery of its
amortized cost basis, then the OTTI is separated(& the amount representing the credit loss(ethe amount related to all other factors.
The amount of the total OTTI related to the créalis is recognized in earnings. The amount ofdked OTTI related to other factors is
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive iec@AOCI"). The total OTTI, which includes both diéand non-credit losses, is
presented gross in the Company’s statements oatipes and is reduced by the non-credit loss amoiutite total OTTI that is recognized in
AOCI. There was no initial effect of adoption onrAd, 2009 as the Company determined that it ndi likely be required to sell the securities
before their anticipated recovery and the Compasythe intent to hold its investments until recgwarcost.
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FSP FAS15-4

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSRSR&7-4 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Levddaiivity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased dddntifying Transactions That Are Not Orde(“FSP FAS 157-4"). FSP FAS 157-4
provides additional guidance for estimating failueain accordance with SFAS 157 when the volumelewel of activity for an asset or
liability have significantly decreased. FSP FAS ¥bdlso includes guidance on identifying circumsemnthat indicate a transaction is not
orderly. The adoption of FSP FAS 157-4 did not harémpact on the Company'’s financial positionptesof operations or cash flows.

FSP FAS10-1

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSRSRA7-1 and APB 28-1nterim Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments(“FSP FAS 107-1"). FSP FAS 107-1 amends SFAS N@, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruntento require
disclosures about fair value of financial instruisein interim financial statements as well as inual financial statements and also amends
APB Opinion No. 28]nterim Financial Reporting to require those disclosures in all interim ficgh statements. The adoption of FSP FAS
107-1 did not have an impact on the Company’s fir@rposition, results of operations or cash flo&se Note 3 for additional disclosures
included in accordance with FSP FAS 107-1.

SFAS No.165

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASBt&ment No. 1655ubsequent Event$SFAS 165”). SFAS 165 establishes general
standards of accounting for and disclosure of evtvet occur after the balance sheet date butdéfancial statements are issued or are
available to be issued. It requires the disclosfithe date through which an entity has evaluatddaquent events and the basis for that date—
that is, whether that date represents the daténtéiecial statements were issued or were availabbe issued. This disclosure should alert all
users of financial statements that an entity hagwaluated subsequent events after that dateiaghof financial statements being presented.
Adoption of SFAS 165 did not have an impact onGloenpany’s financial position, results of operationgash flows.

Note 3.  Fair Value Disclosure

Certain financial assets of the Company are medstr&air value on a recurring basis and includghaquivalents, short-term and long-
term investments. The Company’s money market famd<lassified within Level 1 of the fair value fsiechy and certificates of deposits are
classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierayc The Company’s short-term and long-term auctaa security investments are classified
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. ReferNote 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Podist, in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the Comgaolicies regarding the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s caghiealents, short-term and long-term investmentsfakine 30, 2009 which are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis byl Mithin the fair value hierarchy. As required blfAS 157, these are classified based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement, (in thousands):

Asset at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Money market fund $54,27¢ $ — $ — $54,27¢
Certificates of deposit — 1,82¢ — 1,82¢
Auction rate securitie — — 14,64« 14,64
Total $54,27¢ $1,82¢ $14,64¢ $70,74¢

The above table excludes $16,014,000 of cash hyeldebCompany at June 30, 2009.

The Company’s Level 3 assets consist of short-eamchlong-term auction rate securities for which@wnpany used a discounted cash
flow model to value these investments (See Note 6).

The following table provides a reconciliation oét@ompany’s financial assets measured at fair vaiug recurring basis, consisting of
short-term and long-term auction rate securitismaisignificant unobservable inputs (Level 3)tfee year ended June 30, 2009 (in thousands)

Year Ended
June 30, 200
Balance as of beginning of peri $ 16,10¢
Total realized losses included in net incc —
Total unrealized losses included in other comprsivenincome (577)
Purchases, sales and settlements, net ¢ (885)
Transfers in and/or out of Level —
Balance as of end of perit $ 14,64«
The following is a summary of the Company’s shertst investments as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 ginstinds):
June 30, 2009
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized
Holding Holding
_ Cost__ Gains Losses Fair Value
Certificate of depos $ 58 $ — $ — $ 58
Auction rate securit 30C — (172) 28¢
Total $ 35¢ $ — $ (1)) $ 34i
June 30, 200¢
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized
Holding Holding
_ Cost__ Gains Losses Fair Value
Certificate of depos $ 57 $ — $ — $ 57
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The following is a summary of the Company’s long¥ténvestments as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (nstads):

June 30, 2009

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction rate securitie $ 15668 $ — $ (1,310 $ 14,35!
June 30, 2008
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auction rate securitie $ 1685 $ — $ (749 $ 16,10¢

The Company measures the fair value of outstandig for disclosure purposes on a recurring bamsista longterm debt of $9,994,0(
is reported at amortized cost. The fair value afjleerm debt is based on quoted market pricedifiutas debt (Level 2) which approximates its
fair value based on borrowing rates currently aldé to the Company for loans with similar terms.

Note 4. Accounts Receivable Allowance

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtitdants and an allowance for sales returns. Thavalice for doubtful accounts is
based upon the credit risk of specific customeasdptical trends related to past losses and o#devant factors. The Company also provides its
customers with product return rights. A provision $uch returns is provided for in the same pettiad the related sales are recorded based
upon contractual return rights and historical teeniccounts receivable allowances as of June 3I),28008 and 2007, consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Charged tc
Beginning
Cost and Ending
Balance Expenses Deductions Balance
Allowance for doubtful account
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 20¢ 24C (14¥9) $ 30C
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 30C 334 €) $ 601
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 601 29¢ (229) $ 671
Allowance for sales returr
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 328 4,40¢ (4,26)) $ 47C
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 47C 5,631 (5,529 $ 572
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 57z 4,24¢ (4,427) $ 397
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Note 5.  Inventory
Inventory as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consistéldeofollowing (in thousands):

June 30,
2009 2008
Finished good $60,012  $54,38¢
Work in proces: 794 64¢
Purchased parts and raw mater 29,23¢ 30,65(
Total inventory, ne $90,04«  $85,68:

Note 6.  Short-term and Long-term Investments

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company heldoappately $14,644,000 and $16,106,000, respectjwe#lguction-rate securities
(“auction rate securities”), net of unrealized Essrepresenting its interest in auction rate prefieshares in a closed end mutual fund invested
in municipal securities and student loans guarahbyethe Federal Family Education Loan Programhsugction rate securities were rated
AAA or BBB at June 30, 2009 and AAA at June 30, 20Dhese auction rate preferred shares have rexdstaturity date and the stated
maturity dates for these auction rate student loange from 2010 to 2040.

During February 2008, the auctions for these anatide securities began to fail to obtain suffitieids to establish a clearing rate and
securities were not saleable in the auction, theleting the short-term liquidity previously proed by the auction process. As a result, as of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, $14,355,000 and $16,106fab@se auction rate securities have been dledsif long-term available-for-sale
investments and the remaining $289,000 and $0 éars tlassified as a short-term availabledale investment, respectively, because the <
maturity for this security occurs in June 2010.

The Company has used a discounted cash flow moasitimate the fair value of the auction rate géearas of June 30, 2009 and 2008.
The material factors used in preparing the discadiotsh flow model are 1) the discount rate utllitepresent value the cash flows, 2) the
time period until redemption and 3) the estimateée of return. Management derives the estimatesbtaining input from market data on the
applicable discount rate, estimated time to matwauitd estimated rate of return. The changes invédire have been primarily due to changes in
the estimated rate of return and a change in tta&ed redemption period. Changes in these essratin the market conditions for these
investments are likely in the future based uporthiee current market conditions for these investsiand may affect the fair value of these
investments. Based on this assessment of fair yvileeCompany determined there was a temporaredserin fair value of its auction rate
securities of $577,000 and $744,000 during thesyeaded June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, anthalative total decline of $1,321,000
and $744,000 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, resplcti hat amount has been recorded as a compohettier comprehensive income. As of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company has recordedcamulated unrealized loss of $801,000 and $08]@et of deferred income taxes, on
both long-term and short-term auction rate seasitfihe Company deems this loss to be temporatydsnot likely be required to sell the
securities before their anticipated recovery amdGbmpany has the intent to hold its investmentit igcovery of cost.

Although the investment impairment is consideretdédemporary, these investments are not curréqtlid and in the event the
Company needs to access these funds, the Compimptie able to do so without a loss of princigdie Company plans to continue to
monitor the liquidity situation in the marketplaaed the creditworthiness of its holdings and wélifprm periodic impairment analysis. In July
and August 2009, approximately $3,175,000 of tleesztion rate securities were redeemed at par.
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Note 7.  Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2662808 consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,

2009 2008
Land $ 19,22( $ 19,22(
Buildings 19,10¢ 19,10¢
Building and leasehold improvemel 2,95¢ 3,06:
Machinery and equipmel 10,21¢ 8,42¢
Furniture and fixture 2,68¢ 2,212
Software 1,67¢ 1,20z
55,86¢ 53,23(
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (10,909 (7,628
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 44,96( $ 45,60:

The costs of assets under capital leases were@Xrand $411,000 as of June 30, 2009 and 200&athgply, and accumulated
amortization was $100,000 and $115,000, respeygtivel

Note 8.  Advances from Receivable Financing Arrangement

The Company has accounts receivable financing agrets with certain financing companies wherebyfithencing companies pay the
Company for sales transactions that have beengpeeed by these financing companies. The financorgpany then collects the receivable
from the customer. For the years ended June 3@®, 2008 and 2007, such sales transactions totalad@amately $22,422,000, $23,245,000
and $15,595,000, respectively. At June 30, 20092808, approximately $1,220,000 and $1,173,000easly, remained uncollected from
customers subject to these arrangements. Such asrtwane been recorded as advances from receivablecing arrangements as the Comy
has obligations to repurchase inventories seizethéyinancing companies from defaulting customiistorically, the Company has not been
required to repurchase inventories from the finag@ompanies. These financing arrangements beaesttat rates ranging from 11.10% to
14.76% and 11.70% to 21.48% per annum, dependitjeooustomers’ credit ratings, at June 30, 20@B2008, respectively.

Note 9.  Long-term Obligations
Long-term obligations as of June 30, 2009 and 2@08&isted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
2009 2008
Building loans $ 9,99 $10,30:
Capital lease 10¢€ 165
Total 10,10z 10,46¢
Current portior (367) (377
Long-term portion $ 9,741 $10,08¢
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In April 2004, the Company borrowed $4,275,000 fratmank to purchase a building in San Jose, CaldoiThe loan is secured by the
property purchased and principal and interest ayalple monthly through May 1, 2029. As of JuneZi9 and 2008, the total outstanding
borrowings were $3,826,000 and $3,912,000, respdygtiwith interest at 7.23% per annum through 20¢2 and then it is adjusted every five
years to equal the index c-Year United States Treasury Notes as publish inthaé Street Journal plus 2.75% per annum. In Aug@0€9, the
Company paid off the loan for $3,981,000 includéngre-payment penalty of $153,000.

In September 2005, the Company borrowed $6,9301000 a bank to purchase a building in San JosefdBaila. The loan is secured by
the property purchased. The loan is repayable iralegonthly installments through September 20250fAtune 30, 2009 and 2008, the total
outstanding borrowings were $6,168,000 and $6, 889 fspectively, with interest at 5.77% per antiaraugh September 2010, and then it is
adjusted every five years to equal the index oféafyUnited States Treasury Notes plus 1.65% parranm July 2009, the Company paid off
the loan for $6,191,000 without a pre-payment pgnal

As of June 30, 2009, the gross cost and net bolole\d the land, building and related improvemertitateralizing the borrowings were
approximately $17,126,000 and $16,153,000, resgdygtiAs of June 30, 2008, the gross cost and oek value of the land, building and
related improvements collateralizing the borrowingse approximately $17,111,000 and $16,375,0Gpewively.

The following table as of June 30, 2009, summariagge minimum principal payments on the Compamgbts excluding capital leases
(in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2010 $ 31¢
2011 33¢
2012 361
2013 38t
2014 41C
Thereaftel 8,18(
Total $9,99/

The loans were fully paid off in July and AugusD20

In February 2008, the Company obtained an irreviecstiandby letter of credit required by the landlof its office lease totaling
$121,000 that expires on September 1, 2009. Thep@nynexpects that this standby letter of credit belrenewed in September 2009 for
another year. As of June 30, 2009, the Companyahathused revolving line of credit totaling $5,@®®M that matures on December 1, 2009
with an interest rate at Prime Rate plus 0.5% paum. As of June 30, 2009, the Company was in ciamgd with the financial covenants
associated with the line of credit.

Note 10. Relatec-party and Other Transactions

Ablecom Technology Inc—Ablecom, a Taiwan corporation, together with itbsidiaries (“Ablecom”), is one of the Company’sjara
contract manufacturers. Ablecom'’s chief executiffeeer, Steve Liang, is the brother of Charles Igathe Company’s President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Bices, and owns approximately 2.5% of the Compaagtamon stock. Charles Liang
served as a Director of Ablecom during the Compsiffigcal 2006, but is no longer serving in suchacéy. In addition, Charles Liang
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and his wife, also an officer of the Company, adllely own approximately 30.7% of Ablecom and Y$hyan (Wally) Liaw, an officer and
director of the Company, and his spouse collectiogn approximately 5.2% of Ablecom, while Stevarg and other family members own
approximately 49.3% of Ablecom at June 30, 2009.

The Company has product design and manufacturimicss agreements (“product design and manufagwagreements”) and a
distribution agreement (“distribution agreementijhnAblecom.

Under the product design and manufacturing agretantiie Company outsources a portion of its dea@ivities and a significant part
its manufacturing of components such as serversghés Ablecom. Ablecom agrees to design produatsraing to the Company’s
specifications. Additionally, Ablecom agrees tolduhe tools needed to manufacture the productdebttne product design and manufactu
agreements, the Company commits to purchase a mwmiquantity over a set period. The purchase pffiteeoproducts manufactured by
Ablecom is negotiated on a purchase order by psebader basis at each purchase date. Howeveeddharge is added to the price of each
unit purchased until the agreed minimum numbemitsus purchased. In August 2007, the Companyredtimto a new product development,
manufacturing and service agreement with Ablecormdédd the new agreement, the Company has agreey topthe cost of blade server
tooling and engineering services and will pay farde items when the work has been completed. drctse no fixed charge is added to future
purchases for reimbursement of tooling costs. Thm@any made payments for tooling assets of $2800052,135,000 and engineering
services of $0 and $785,000 from Ablecom duringytsars ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Under the distribution agreement, Ablecom purchaseger products from the Company for distribuiioifaiwan. The Company
believes that the pricing and terms under theiligiion agreement are similar to the pricing amchieof distribution arrangements the
Company has with similar, third party distributors.

Ablecom’s net sales to the Company and its ness#léhe Company’s products to others comprisebatamtial majority of Ablecom’s
net sales. The Company purchased products fromcAbleotaling approximately $91,954,000, $105,980,80d $95,673,000, and sold
products to Ablecom totaling approximately $6,028,066,593,000 and $7,320,000, for the years edded 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Amounts owed to the Company by Ablecom as of JUneB809 and 2008, were approximately $280,000 &9@ $00, respectively.
Amounts owed to Ablecom by the Company as of JUhe809 and 2008, were approximately $21,455,000827,717,000, respectively.
Historically, the Company has paid Ablecom the migjmf invoiced dollars between 56 and 113 daymabice. For the years ended June 30,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company received $2,d3%,800 and $89,000, respectively, from Ableconpiemalty charges. For the year en
June 30, 2009, the Company paid approximately 808D in tooling assets and miscellaneous cosiédlecom which included the $28,000
tooling for the blade servers referred to above.tke year ended June 30, 2008, the Company pambémately $4,163,000 in tooling assets
and miscellaneous costs to Ablecom which includhed$2,135,000 of tooling and $785,000 of engineeservices for the blade servers
referred to above. For the years ended June 3@, 200 Company paid approximately $412,000 in t@phssets and miscellaneous costs to
Ablecom. Penalty charges are assessments relatigjdyed deliveries or quality issues.

The Company’s exposure to loss as a result ofiitslvement with Ablecom is limited to (a) potentiatses on its purchase orders in the
event of an unforeseen decline in the market mimior demand of the Company’s products such lea€ompany incurs a loss on the sale or
cannot sell the products and (b) potential lossesutstanding accounts receivable from Ableconihédvent of an unforeseen deterioration in
the
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financial condition of Ablecom such that Ableconfaléts on its payable to the Company. Outstandinglpase orders with Ablecom were
$21,578,000 and $27,999,000 at June 30, 2009 bR} 2Espectively, representing the maximum exposutess relating to (a) above. The
Company does not have any direct or indirect guaesnof losses of Ablecom.

Note 11. Stock-based Compensation and StockhotdeEquity
Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

On April 3, 2007, the Company completed the inipiablic offering (“IPQ”) of shares of its commorosk. On March 28, 2007, the SEC
declared the Company’s Registration Statement omFf$1 (File No. 333-138370) effective. The Regitstn Statement registered the sale of
an aggregate of 9,200,000 shares of the Compaogisnon stock, of which the Company sold 6,400,0@0et) and the selling stockholders
sold 2,800,000 shares (including 1,200,000 sharesmgirsuant to the underwriters’ over-allotmentiap). The underwriters exercised the
over-allotment option in full on April 3, 2007. Atpublic offering price of $8.00 per share, theraggte price of the shares sold by the
Company was $51,200,000, and the aggregate prite ahares sold by the selling stockholders w2s48®,000. The Company did not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares bygettiag stockholders. However, the Company reak$@0,000 from certain members of the
Company’s management as payment of the exercise pfitheir options to purchase an aggregate ofo®00shares of common stock, which
they sold in the over-allotment. The aggregate nmdeéng discounts and commissions for shares bglthoth the Company and the selling
stockholders were $5,152,000. The net proceedst@bmpany from the offering, after deducting $3,680 in underwriting discounts and
commissions and $4,635,000 of offering expensealgayy the Company, were $42,981,000.

Treasury Stock

In November 2008, the Board of Directors approvedagram to repurchase, from time to time, at manant’s discretion, shares of the
Company’s common stock. Under the plan, the Compeaasyauthorized to repurchase up to 2,000,006 afutstanding shares of common
stock in the open market or in private transactiunsng the period ended June 30, 2009 at preaitiarket prices in compliance with
applicable securities laws and other legal requerist Repurchases were made under the programthsi@ompany’s own cash resources.
The plan did not obligate the Company to acquinearticular amount of common stock and the plandbe suspended or discontinued at
any time. As of June 30, 2009, the Company hadrobsed 445,028 shares of the Company’s commok ataweighted average price of
$4.56 per share for approximately $2,030,000.

Repurchased shares of the Company’s common stedhkedd as treasury shares until they are reissuesgticed. When the Company
reissues treasury stock, if the proceeds fromdbheare more than the average price the Companytpaicquire the shares, the Company
records an increase in additional paid-in capBalnversely, if the proceeds from the sale aretlems the average price the Company paid to
acquire the shares, the Company records a dedreadditional paid-in capital to the extent of ieases previously recorded for similar
transactions and a decrease in retained earningsmjoremaining amount.

Stock Option Plan:

The 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan”) auttest the Board of Directors to grant options to &mees, directors and consultants
to purchase shares of the Company’s common stdek2J661,988 remaining shares of common stockveddor issuance under the 1998
Plan were cancelled upon the completion of the Gomis IPO.
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In August 2006, the Board of Directors approved28@6 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”) ardarved for issuance 4,000,000
shares of common stock for the granting of stodkoog, stock appreciation rights, restricted staalards, restricted stock units and other
equity-based awards. The number of shares resamtedatically increases on July 1 of each yeauind2016, by an amount equal to the
smaller of (a) three percent of the number of shafestock issued and outstanding on the immediatelceding June 30, or (b) a lesser am
determined by the Board of Directors. The 2006 Rtas approved by the stockholders of the Companjaonary 8, 2007. The exercise price
per share for options granted to employees anduttamés owning shares representing more than 10&teo€ompany at the time of grant
cannot be less than 110% of the fair value. Ingerdnd nonqualified stock options granted to dlkopersons shall be granted at a price not
less than 100% of the fair value. Options genemtyire ten years after the date of grant and opti@st over four years; 25% at the end of
year and one sixteenth per quarter thereafteistalfyears 2009 and 2008, the Company grante@® %82 and 1,749,546 options under
2006 Plan, respectively. At June 30, 2009, 900gt@ges of common stock are available for futuratgra

Outside the Stock Option Plans

In fiscal year 2001, the Company granted 1,480r@@®statutory stock options to key officers of @@mpany outside of the 1998 Stock
Option Plan. These options, which the Company &ssrved for separately, were granted at an exegudise of $1.25 per share, which was the
estimated fair value at the date of grant and ave fally vested.

In fiscal year 2003, the Company granted 200,000statutory stock options to an officer of the Camy outside the 1998 Stock Option
Plan. This option, which the Company has resereeddparately, was granted at an exercise pri¢d @5 per share, which was the estimated
fair value at the date of grant and are now fuligted.

In fiscal year 2006, the Company granted 64,800statutory stock options to an officer of the Compautside the 1998 Stock Option
Plan. This option, which the Company has resereeddparately and vests ratably over four years,granted at an exercise price of $3.50
share, which was the estimated fair value at the dfagrant.

Restricted Stock Award

Restricted stock awards are share awards thatgedle rights to a set number of shares of the @oxip stock on the grant date. In
August 2008, the Compensation Committee of the o&Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) epped the terms of an agreement
(the “Option Exercise Agreementiith Charles Liang, a director and President ang:fdExecutive Officer of the Company, pursuant toieh
Mr. Liang exercised a fully vested option previgugtanted to him for the purchase of 925,000 shdres option was exercised using a “net-
exercise” procedure in which he was issued a numbghares representing the spread between thenoptiercise price and the then current
market value of the shares subject to the opti®8,@5 shares based upon the market value as datheof exercise). The shares issued upon
exercise of the option are subject to vesting eviéve-year vesting period. Vesting of the shardgect to the award may accelerate in certain
circumstances pursuant to the terms of the Opti@rdise Agreement. The Company determined thagtisemo incremental fair value of the
option exchanged for the award.

In November 2008, the Committee approved the terfnag Option Exercise Agreement with Chiu-Chu Liaaglirector and Vice
President of Operations & Treasurer of the Company Shiow-Meei Liaw, Senior Warehouse Manager ef@bmpany, pursuant to which
they exercised fully vested options previously ¢edn
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to them for the purchase of 185,263 and 92,63leshagspectively. They exercised the options uaitiiet-exercise” procedure in which they
were issued a number of shares representing teadgpetween the option exercise price and thedheent market value of the shares subject
to the option (182,611 and 91,305 shares, resmdgtivased upon the market value as of the dageearcise). The shares issued upon exercise
of the options are subject to vesting over a twaryesting period. Vesting of the shares subjetitécawards may accelerate in certain
circumstances pursuant to the terms of the appgédaption Exercise Agreement. The Company deterdhihat there is no incremental fair
value of the option exchanged for the awards.

Stock-Based Compensation

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrsteiements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123{&9tive July 1, 2006 using the
prospective transition method. Prior to the adoptibSFAS No. 123(R), the Company accounted fostibsk options issued to employees in
accordance with APB 25, and related interpretatrattser than the alternative fair value accounfimgyvided for under SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatigras amended by SFAS No. 148. Under APB 25, wherxkercise price of the Company’s employee
and director stock options is equal to or gredtantthe market price of the underlying stock ondhie of grant, no compensation expense is
recognized.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation and amortization method—The Company estts the fair value of stock options granted usiegBlack-Scholes-option-
pricing formula and a single option award approddtis fair value is then amortized ratably over tbgquisite service periods of the awards,
which is generally the vesting period.

Expected Term—The Company’s expected term represkeatperiod that the Company’s stock-based avaslexpected to be
outstanding and was determined based on an analfyis relevant peer companies’ post-vest terranattes and the exercise factors.

Expected Volatility—Expected volatility is based arwombination of the implied and historical vdlgtifor its peer group.
Expected Dividend—The Company has no plans to pagiehds.

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The risk-free interest imteased on the U.S. Treasury zero coupon issueféect at the time of grant for
periods corresponding with the expected term oibopt

Estimated Forfeitures—The estimated forfeiture imteased on the Company'’s historical forfeitutesaand the estimate is revised in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffenirthe estimate.

The fair value of stock option grants for the yeamged June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 under SFAR)L22(s estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing maosigh the following assumptions:

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 1.42%— 3.09% 2.64%-— 4.58% 4.50%— 4.60%
Expected life 4.06- 10 year 4.32- 4.39 year 4.04- 4.38 year
Dividend yield — — —

Volatility 48.16%— 69.62% 43.03-48.43% 42.65-50.51%
Weighte(-average fair valu $2.81 $3.6( $4.8¢
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In March 2009, the Committee approved the gramagX,000 refresh non-statutory stock options unide2006 Plan to Charles Liang, a
director and President and Chief Executive Offafethe Company. This option, which vests ratablgrdour years, was granted at an exercise
price of $10.66 per share with a grant date fairketavalue of $4.96 per share. The fair value &f tption was estimated at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model whk following assumptions: risk-free interest rat8.61%, expected life of 10 years,
expected dividend yield of zero and expected dlatf 69.62%, resulting in a fair value of $3.p8r share.

The following table shows total stock-based comp#os expense included in the consolidated statesradroperations for the years
ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in thousands).

Years Ended June 30

2009 2008 2007
Cost of sale: $ 57¢ $ 522 $ 30C
Research and developmt 2,60¢ 1,817 1,05¢
Sales and marketir 82¢€ 641 362
General and administrati\ 1,64¢ 1,18 71C
Stoclk-based compensation expense before t 5,661 4,16¢ 2,43(
Income tax impac (570 (445) (365)
Stocl-based compensation expense, $5,091 $3,728 $2,06¢

SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resultiognfthe tax benefits for tax deductions resultirggrf the exercise of stock options in
excess of the compensation expense recorded fee thations (excess tax benefits) accounted forn®EAS No. 123(R) to be classified as
cash from financing activities. The Company hadreess tax benefits in the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 for options accounted
for under SFAS No. 123(R). Excess tax benefitsfock options accounted for under APB 25 contimmuleet classified as cash from operating
activities.

80



Table of Contents

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Stock Option Activity

The following table summarizes stock option acyivtiring the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 adid @dder all stock option plans:

Balance as of July 1, 2006 (12,133,060 shares isabie
at weighted average exercise price of $1.07 pee¥

Authorized

Granted (weighted average fair value of $4

Exercisec

Forfeited

Canceled 1998 Plan shai

Balance as of June 30, 2007 (11,756,367 sharesisaxiele
at weighted average exercise price of $1.49 peeyt

Authorized

Granted (weighted average fair value of $3

Exercisec

Forfeited

Balance as of June 30, 2008 (10,639,860 sharesisxile
at weighted average exercise price of $2.23 paej!

Authorized

Granted (weighted average fair value of $2

Exercisec

Exercised and exchanged for restricted stock aw

Forfeited

Balance as of June 30, 20

Options vested and expected to vest at June 3G,
Options vested at June 30, 2(

Weighted Weighted
Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Options Price per Intrinsic
Available Options Term Value
for Grant Outstanding Share (in Years) (in thousands
4,124,02: 14,351,16 $ 1.4C
4,000,00! —
(1,886,85)) 1,886,85! 11.1¢
— (1,631,001 1.1z
199,18: (256,95.) 7.21
(2,661,98) —
3,774,36! 14,350,06 2.61
906,15¢ —
(1,749,54) 1,749,54 8.6(
— (2,463,46) 1.1¢
175,77¢ (335,169 9.84
3,106,74 13,300,97 3.4¢
980,06: —
(3,442,65) 3,442,65. 7.05
— (2,549,55) 0.81
— (1,202,89) 0.2%
255,95: (318,53) 8.57
900,10¢ 12,672,64 $ 5.17 6.17 $ 40,76(
11,874,68 $ 5.0Z 5.9t $ 39,88
8,297,50! $ 3.8¢ 4.6( $ 36,43(

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 200%262516,000, $18,586,000 and
$13,814,000, respectively. Stock-based compensatipanse accounted for in accordance with SFASLRB(R) in the years ended June 30,
2009, 2008 and 2007 was $5,099,000, $3,364,00638/588,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2009CQbmpany’s total unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested stock-bmsadds granted since July 1, 2006 to employeesianegemployee directors was
$12,909,000, which will be recognized over a wetghéiverage vesting period of approximately 2.8%gea
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The weighted-average fair value per share of optgmanted during fiscal year 2005 and 2006, andwded for using the intrinsic value
measurement provisions of APB 25, was $4.58. Thsic value per share is being recognized as emsgtion expense over the applicable
vesting period (which equals the service periotie Tompany amortized $562,000, $801,000 and $89%08tockbased compensation in t
years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, resplgctht June 30, 2009, the Company had deferreck-based compensation under APB 25
of $110,000, which is comprised primarily of empeyand director stock option grants prior to JYl2d06 and is expected to be fully

amortized in fiscal year 2010.

Additional information regarding options outstargles of June 30, 2009, is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted- Weighted-
Average

Remaining Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding Term (Years) Price
$1.25 3,798,36. 2.2( $ 1.2t
1.55- 3.08 1,775,80: 5.0¢ 2.62
3.25-5.53 1,707,94. 8.31 4.5¢€
5.54-7.46 1,739,15 9.2¢ 6.4z
7.91-8.47 1,372,21. 8.3¢ 8.0¢
8.83-10.03 600,79¢ 8.21 9.5¢
10.19 191,67! 7.82 10.1¢
10.66 720,00( 9.6¢ 10.6¢
13.70 68,00( 6.7t 13.7(C
13.89 698,70( 7.3¢ 13.8¢
$1.25- $13.89 12,672,64 6.17 $ 5.17

Options Vested and Exercisabli

Weighted-
Average
Number Exercise
Exercisable Price
3,798,36. $ 1.2t
1,775,80: 2.62
678,30t 3.3¢
308,63° 6.9t
705,96 8.0¢
327,09¢ 9.4¢
95,80¢ 10.1¢
52,12¢ 13.7(C
555,40° 13.8¢
8,297,50! $ 3.8¢

The following table summarizes the Company'’s rettd stock award activity for the year ended Juhe2809:

Nonvested stock at July 1, 20
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested stock at June 30, 2(

Restricted Stock Awards

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Number Fair Value
of Shares Per Share
I $ —
1,172,12. 9.3¢

1,172,12. $ 9.3¢

None of the restricted stock awards vested in e gnded June 30, 2009. The total intrinsic vafitbe outstanding restricted stock
awards was $11,006,000 as of June 30, 2009. The@incremental fair value to be recognized imemtion with the restricted stock awards

of 1,172,121 shares.
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Note 12. Income Taxes
The components of income before income tax prowigi@ as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30

2009 2008 2007
United State: $21,67¢ $39,21¢  $27,91(
Foreign 1,12¢ 1,59( 1,42¢
Income before income tax provisii $22,79¢  $40,80¢  $29,33¢

The income tax provision for the years ended Jin€309, 2008 and 2007, consists of the followingl{ousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Current:
Federal $ 6,38¢ $15,46¢ $11,00:
State 98C 2,49¢ 1,74¢
Foreign 32€ 467 464
7,694 18,43: 13,21:
Deferred:
Federal (464) (2,676 (3,009
State (539) (371 (2949)
Foreign — — 90
(1,007 (3,049 (3,217
Income tax provisiol $ 6,692 $15,38¢ $ 9,99¢

The Company’s net deferred tax assets as of Jun20BO and 2008, consist of the following (in thauds):

June 30,
2009 2008

Warranty accrue $ 1,334 $ 1,08t
Marketing fund accrue 54¢ 951
Inventory valuatior 5,34: 5,37¢
Stock-based compensatic 1,64t 1,16(
Others 3,017 2,34t

Total deferred income tax ass 11,88: 10,91¢
Deferred tax liabilitie-depreciation and othu (1,32)) 1,317)
Deferred income tax ass-net $10,56! $ 9,60

Undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidianéapproximately $979,000 at June 30, 2009 areiderexd to be indefinitely reinvested
and accordingly, no provisions for federal andestatome taxes have been provided thereon. Uparibdion of those earnings in the form of
dividends or otherwise, the Company would be suligeboth U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustrfoe foreign tax credits) and
withholding taxes payable to various foreign coigstr
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Income tax benefits resulting from stock optioms@ctions accounted for under APB 25 of $5,306,88(820,000 and $1,532,000 were
credited to stockholders’ equity in the years endlate 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following is a reconciliation for the years eddJune 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, of the statuédeyto the Compang’effective federe
tax rate:

Years Ended June 30

2009 2008 2007
Tax at statutory rat 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income te-net of federal benef 5.2 2.9 2.9
Foreign losses not deductible and tax rate diffegs (0.5 0.3 (0.5
Foreign sales corporation tax ben — — (1.2
Research and development tax cr (12.9) (2.5 (2.2
Other _21 16 (©.9)
Effective tax rate 29.%% 37.1% 34.1%

Effective July 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASBrjiretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainties in Income Taxes—An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threkhand measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tatiposaken or expected to be taken in a tax retaliN.48 also provides guidance on
derecognition of tax benefits, classification oa Halance sheet, interest and penalties, accountingerim periods, disclosure, and transition.
As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, then@any increased the liability for net unrecogniredbenefits by $989,000, and accounted
for the reduction as a cumulative effect of a cteaimgaccounting principle that resulted in a desega retained earnings of $989,000. The total
amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as ofi#le of adoption was $3,861,000. The Companyfiisiity classified unrecognized tax
benefits in current taxes payable. As a resuldoiption of FIN 48, $3,604,000 of the unrecognizedlienefits were reclassified to long-term
FIN 48 liabilities (included in other longerm liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheatsl $257,000 of the unrecognized tax benefite
reclassified to current FIN 48 liabilities. Of t#8,861,000 total unrecognized tax benefits, $3@@bwould affect the effective tax rate if
realized, and $396,000 would affect the Compangfeided tax assets if realized.

The Company’s policy to include interest and peesltelated to unrecognized tax benefits withinghavision for taxes on the
consolidated statements of operations did not ahasg result of implementing the provisions of BB\ As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the
Company had accrued $468,000 and $545,000 forajmm@nt of interest and penalties relating to ungaczed tax benefits, respectively.
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A reconciliation of the change in the unrecognitgedbenefits balance from July 1, 2007 to June2809 is as follows (in thousands):

Gross*
Unrecognizec

Income Tax
Benefits
Balance at July 1, 20C $ 347¢
Gross increase
For current ye¢ s tax position: 1,13¢
For prior year’ tax positions 30¢
Gross decrease
Settlements and releases due to the lapse ofegtaifitimitations (252)
Balance at June 30, 20 4,66¢
Gross increase
For current ye¢ s tax position: 72€
For prior year' tax positions —
Gross decrease
Settlements and releases due to the lapse ofegaifitimitations (1,396
Balance at June 30, 20 $ 3,99¢

* excludes interest, penalties, federal benefit atesteserve

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefitsofiééderal benefit for the deduction of such iteamsnterest, that, if recognized would
affect the effective tax rate is approximately 42,800 as of June 30, 2009.

The Company files U.S. federal, U.S. state, andifprincome tax returns. The Company is generallionger subject to tax
examinations for years prior to the fiscal yearibeimg July 1, 2003.

In connection with the regular examination of tten@any’s California tax returns for the fiscal yeanded June 30, 2002 and 2003 the
Franchise Tax Board has presented certain adjussnethe amounts reflected by the Company on thetsens. The timing of the resolution
and/or closure on audits is expected to be initseduarter of fiscal year 2010. The Company duadelieve that its unrecognized tax ben
would materially change in the next 12 months.

Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation and Claims—The Company has been a defendant in a lawsuitighechnic, S.A. (“Digitechnic”), a former custam
before the Bobigny Commercial Court in Paris, Fearie which Digitechnic alleged that certain proguysurchased from the Company were
defective. In September 2003, the Bobigny ComméE@aairt found in favor of Digitechnic and awardeshthges totaling $1,178,000. The
Company accrued for these damages in its consetidatancial statements as of June 30, 2004, asesteestimate of its loss in this situation.
In February 2005, the Paris Court of Appeals resgithe trial court’s ruling, dismissed all of Digghnic’s claims and awarded $11,000 to the
Company for legal expenses. Accordingly, the Corgpamersed the $1,178,000 accrued in fiscal 200§itéxhnic has appealed the Paris
Court of Appeals decision to the French SupremeriGmd asked for $2,416,000 for damages. On Fepd®r2007, the French Supreme
Court reversed the decision of the Paris Courtmbeals, ordering a new hearing before a differanepof the Paris Court of Appeals. In
March 2008, the Company posted a bond in the anwfu$®,080,000 required by the
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court. The bond was collateralized by an irrevoeaandby letter of credit totaling $1,540,000.eMrhearing was conducted on June 15,
2009. Although the Company cannot predict withaiaty the final outcome of this litigation, it belies the claim to be without merit and
intends to continue to defend it vigorously. Managat believes that the ultimate resolution of thiter will not result in a material adverse
impact on the Company'’s results of operations, ¢asts or financial position.

In August, September and November 2006, the Compatered into settlement agreements regardingicettEms relating to the sale
its products in violation of export control laws. August 2006, the Company entered into a pleaeageat with the U.S. Department of Justice,
the principal terms of which included entering dltgwplea to one charge of violating federal exp@gulations and payment of approximately
$150,000 in fines. The plea agreement has beemegbby the U.S. District Court. The Company has aintered into a settlement agreement
with the Bureau of Industry and Security of the Brement of Commerce pursuant to which the Compasyatknowledged violations of the
Export Administration Regulations and agreed to @dipe of approximately $125,000. Finally, on Nmkzer 10, 2006, the Company entered
into a settlement agreement with the Office of kpréssets Control of the Department of the Treagt®@FAC”), pursuant to which the
Company made a payment of a fine of $179,000.

In addition to the above, the Company is involwedarious legal proceedings arising from the norooairse of business activities. In
management’s opinion, resolution of these matgermt expected to have a material adverse impattteo@ompany’s consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or the Company’s financifion. However, depending on the amount and tyném unfavorable resolution of a
matter could materially affect the Company’s futtgsults of operations, cash flows or financialipos in a particular period.

Lease Commitments-The Company leases offices and equipment undezammelable operating leases which expire at vadatess
through 2016. In addition, the Company leases iceofits equipment under capital leases. The fitamimum lease commitments under all
leases are as follows (in thousands):

As of June 30, 200!

Operating
Capital
Leases Leases
Year ending June 30, 20. $ 4t $ 2,311
Year ending June 30, 20 32 2,07¢
Year ending June 30, 20. 22 1,93¢
Year ending June 30, 20. 18 1,97(C
Year ending June 30, 20. — 1,997
Thereaftel — 2,47¢
Total minimum lease paymer 117 $12,76¢
Less amounts representing intel 9
Present value of minimum lease payme 10¢€
Less lon+term portion 66
Current portior $ 4

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2008,£2@D2007, was approximately $2,550,000, $1,4@8820@ $598,000, respectively.
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Note 14. Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) savings plan foibédid) S employees and their beneficiaries. Contidms by the Company are
discretionary, and no contributions have been niigdtae Company for the years ended June 30, 2@@8 and 2007.

Beginning in March 2003, employees of Super Micarputer, B.V. have the option to deduct a portibtheir gross wages and invest
the amount in a pension plan. The Company has @goematch 10% of the amount that is deducted nipffitbm employees’ wages. For the
years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the @g’s matching contribution was approximately $55,08,,000 and $3,000, respective

The Company maintains a defined benefit pension pf&Super Micro Computer, Taiwan that covers kidjilele employees within
Taiwan. Pension plan benefits are based primanilparticipants’ compensation and years of serviedited as specified under the terms of
Taiwan’s plan. The funding policy is consistent with tbedl requirements of Taiwan. Plan assets of thdddrdefined benefit pension plan
deposited into a government-managed account inhathie Company has no control over investment glyat€or the years ended June 30,
2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company’s contribution aygsoximately $219,000, $193,000 and $113,00@ects/ely.

Note 15. Segment Reporting

The Company operates in one operating segmendévaiops and provides high performance serverisakibased upon an innovative,
modular and open-standard architecture. The Conpahief operating decision maker is the Chief Exee Officer.

International net sales are based on the countmhtich the products were shipped. The following summary for the years ended
June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, of net sales by gpbgrregion (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007

Net sales
United State: $325,58: $326,60: $248,85:.
United Kingdom 19,98 22,08: 20,09:
Germany 25,83¢ 29,61« 28,82¢
China 19,94 34,73( 16,69¢
Rest of Europi 62,79( 69,81 48,64¢
Rest of Asie 36,87¢ 47,717 48,177
Other 14,60: 9,94¢ 9,101

$505,60¢ $540,50: $420,39:

The Company’s long-lived assets located outsidéJthieed States are not significant.
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The following is a summary of net sales by prodype (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2007
Percent o Percent o Percent o
Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales
Server system $196,65¢ 38.9% $209,13! 38.71% $152,47: 36.5%
Serverboards and other compon 308,95: 61.1% 331,36¢ 61.2% 267,92: 63.7%
Total $505,60¢ 100.(% $540,50: 100.(% $420,39: 100.(%

Serverboards and other components are comprissehedrboards, chassis and accessories. Servemsystastitute an assembly of
components done by the Company.

Note 16. Subsequent Events

On April 1, 2009, the Company adopted SFAS 165¢ctvinéquires an entity to evaluate subsequent eterasgh the date that the
financial statements are issued or are availabieetigsued and disclose in the notes the dateghravhich the entity has evaluated subsequent
events and whether the financial statements wetisor were available to be issued on the disdldate. SFAS 165 defines two types of
subsequent events, as follows: the first type stssif events or transactions that provide addilienidence about conditions that existed a
date of the balance sheet (that is, recognizecesulent events), and the second type consists afsgetransactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that did not exist atdée of the balance sheet but arose after that(tfedt is, nonrecognized subsequent events).

The Company has evaluated subsequent events thiugist 31, 2009, the date the financial statemargsvailable to be issued, and
has concluded that no recognized and nonrecogsizieskquent events have occurred subsequent igcis year ended June 30, 2009 except
for the redemption of auction rate security investts and building loan repayments discussed in Bated Note 9, respectively.

Note 17. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table presents the Company’s unaddifgarterly financial data. This information hagh@repared on a basis consistent
with that of its audited consolidated financialtetaents. The Company believes that all necessamgrialeadjustments, consisting of normal
recurring accruals and adjustments, have beendadlto present fairly the quarterly financial datae Company’s quarterly results of
operations for these periods are not necessadigative of future results of operations.

Three Months Ended

Sep. 30 Dec. 31, Mar. 31, Jun. 30,
2008 2008 2009 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net Sales $144,05. $128,56! $109,54( $ 123,45
Gross profil 27,83¢ 24,09: 16,32} 20,45
Net income $ 7,17 $ 5346 $ 1,231 $ 2,35¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 022 $ 01¢ $ 002 $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.1t $ 012 % 0.0: % 0.0¢
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Three Months Ended

Sep. 30 Dec. 31, Mar. 31, Jun. 30,
2007 2007 2008 2008
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net Sales $117,94¢ $136,93. $136,75' $ 148,86¢
Gross profil 23,04¢ 27,25¢ 24,82¢ 28,42°
Net income $ 5801 $ 7,740 $ 502« $ 6,84¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 01¢ $ 028 $ 01 $ 0.21
Diluted $ 0.1t % 020 $ 01z $ 0.1¢

(1) The sum of quarterly financial data and individpat share amounts may vary from the annual dataakginding.
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedure
Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclos€ontrols and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, éxated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as defined Ila R&a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange AcB8flas amended (the “Exchange Act”) as
of the end of the period covered by this Annuald&epn Form 10-K. In designing and evaluating tieeldsure controls and procedures,
management recognizes that any controls and proegdwo matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives. In additithe design of disclosure controls and procedomest reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints and that management is required to/aiggudgment in evaluating the benefits of poksitontrols and procedures relative to their
costs.

Based on our evaluation, our Chief Executive Offeed Chief Financial Officer concluded that, adwfie 30, 2009, our disclosure
controls and procedures were designed at a redsomsgurance level and were effective to providsoaable assurance that information we
are required to disclose in reports that we filsulmit under the Exchange Act is recorded, prezkssimmarized and reported within the
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionigules and forms, and that such informaticeccisumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allior timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportin

There were no changes in our internal control dwmancial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15¢Jd5d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) identified imeation with the evaluation described in this [t®fthat occurred during the fourth qua
of fiscal year 2009 that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, @uernal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securliieshange Act of 1934, as amended). Under the sigi@mand with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, we conducted an evabrabf the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framoek in Internal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, or COB&3ed on our evaluation, our management has coetlingt our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of June 3M20The effectiveness of our internal control diueancial reporting as of June 30, 2009 has
been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an indepenhdegistered public accounting firm, and theirropn is stated in their report which is
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Super Micro Computer, Inc.:

We have audited the internal control over finansgplorting of Super Micro Computer, Inc. and sulasids (the “Company”) as of
June 30, 2009, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s managemeasponsible for maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigiternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etestsig and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on that
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or gars performing similar functions, and effected g tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statein accordance with generally accepted acaogiptiinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiosg, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlan€ial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatketected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of June 30, 2009,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@inited States)the
consolidated financial statements as of and foly#e ended June 30, 2009 of the Company and partrdated August 31, 2009 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statememd mcluded an explanatory paragraph relatingdaificant related party transactions.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP
San Jose, California
August 31, 2009

Item 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae
Executive Officers and Directors
Our executive officers and their ages and theiitjpos as of August 18, 2009, are as follows:

Name Age  Position(s)

Charles Liang 51 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeubfficer
Howard Hideshimi 50 Chief Financial Office

Phidias Chot 51 Vice President, Worldwide Sal

Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang 47 Vice President of Operations, Treasurer and Dire
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw 54 Vice President of International Sales, Secretad/@inector
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai(1)(2)(3)(4 53 Director

Edward J. Hayes, Jr.(1)( 54 Director

Sherman Tuan(2)(3)( 55 Director

Gregory K. Hinckley(1)(4 62 Director

(1) Member of the Audit Committe

(2) Member of the Compensation Commit

(3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governanm@@ittee

(4) Determined by the Board of Directors to“independer” as defined by applicable listing standards of Tlheddqg Stock Marke

Executive Officers

Charles Liangounded Super Micro and has served as our Presi@aigf Executive Officer and Chairman of the Bosinte our
inception in September 1993. Mr. Liang has beereliging server system architectures and technadgrethe past two decades. From July
1991 to August 1993, Mr. Liang was President anefIbesign Engineer of Micro Center Computer lrechigh-end motherboard design and
manufacturing company. From January 1988 to A@81, Mr. Liang was Senior Design Engineer and Rtdjeader for Chips &
Technologies, Inc., a chipset technology compangl, 3untek Information International Group, a systerd software development company.
Mr. Liang has been granted many server technolaggmnts. Mr. Liang holds an M.S. in Electrical Eregning from the University of Texas at
Arlington and a B.S. in Electrical Engineering frddational Taiwan University of Science & TechnoldgyTaiwan.

Howard Hideshimdas served as our Chief Financial Officer since [a§6. From November 2005 to May 2006, Mr. Hideshinas
Vice President of Finance at Forcel0 Networks, lm@ietwork equipment company, and from July 2@0Mdvember 2005, he served as
Director of Finance for that company. From April0d0to June 2004, Mr. Hideshima was Chief Finar®idicer and Vice President of Finance
and Administration at Virtual Silicon Technologycl, a semiconductor intellectual property compdmgm January 2000 to March 2001, he
served as Chief Financial Officer at Internet Cogpion, an Internet services company. From Janli@®® to December 1999, he was Vice
President of Finance and from July 1997 to Decerib88 Chief Accounting Officer at ESS Technology.] a fabless semiconductor
company. Mr. Hideshima holds an M.B.A. from Sanr€iaco State University and a B.S. in Business Aidstriation from the University of
California at Berkeley.

Phidias Chothas served as our Vice President, Worldwide Sabegs September 2008. Mr. Chou served as our Viesiéent of Sales,
Regional and Strategic Account from July 2006 tgéat 2008 and served as our Senior Director ofsSaten August 2000 to July 2006. Fri
April 1996 to August 2000, Mr. Chou was General lsiger at US Sertek, a subsidiary of Acer, Inc., aR@€server company. From July 1992
to April 1996, he was Director of Sales and frontaber 1987 to July 1992, he was PC Product Mang&cer Taiwan.
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Mr. Chou received an M.B.A. from Chung Yuan ChéstiUniversity and a B.S. in Mechanical Engineefiogn National Chung Hsing
University.

Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liango-founded Super Micro and has served as Vice dRresdf Operations, Treasurer and a member of oarch
of directors since our inception in September 1$38m 1985 to 1993, Ms. Liang held finance and afienal positions for several companies,
including Micro Center Computer Inc. Ms. Liang el B.S. in Accounting from Providence UniversityTiaiwan. Ms. Liang is married to
Mr. Charles Liang, our Chairman, President and {Ohiecutive Officer.

Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liawo-founded Super Micro and has served as Vice d&asbf International Sales, Corporate Secretadyaan
member of our board of directors since our inceptinSeptember 1993. From 1988 to 1991, Mr. Liavs Wace President of Engineering at
Great Tek, a computer company. Mr. Liaw holds aB Nh Computer Engineering from University of Anieg an M.S. in Electrical
Engineering from Tatung Institute of Technologylmiwan, and a B.S. degree from Taiwan Provincidlgge of Marine and Oceanic
Technology.

Non-Management Directors

Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsahas been a member of our board of directors singugt 2006. Mr. Tsai has served as Executive Viesi@ent
of SinoPac Bancorp, a financial holding companyelas Los Angeles, California, since February 2@01d Chief Financial Officer of SinoF
Bancorp since August 2005. Since December 200Babealso served as Senior Executive Vice Presafdrar East National Bank, a
commercial bank that is held by SinoPac Bancorp.Tdai received a Master in Professional Accountiogh the University of Texas at Aus
and a B.A. in Accounting from National Taiwan Unisity in Taiwan.

Edward J. Hayes, Jhas been a member of our board of directors siebeuary 2007. Mr. Hayes has served as Chief Finhxficer of
Pillar Data Systems, Inc., a privately-held dataage company, since August 2006. From July 200¥utpust 2006, he served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of QuantCorporation, a data storage company publiclyetdeon NYSE. From March 2003 to
July 2004, Mr. Hayes was an independent consutiadtprivate investor. From April 2001 to March 2088 was President and Chief
Executive Officer of DirecTV Broadband, Inc., atemet service provider. From January 2000 to A2001, he served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Telocityc., an internet service provider which the mamaget team took public in March 2000.
Mr. Hayes is a director and chairperson of the AGdimmittee of publicly-traded Alaska Communicaid@ystems Group, Inc., a
telecommunications provider. Mr. Hayes holds a Rlégree from Colgate University and conducted haslgate studies in Accounting and
Finance at the New York University Graduate Scludd@usiness.

Sherman Tuahas been a member of our board of directors siebeuary 2007. Mr. Tuan is founder of PurpleComng, (doing
business as 9x9Network), a provider of new medianfiernet TV services, where he has served asf Eliecutive Officer since January 2005
and Chairman of the Board since June 2003. Hedragsd as Chief Executive Officer of Purple Commatians Limited, an investment
holding company since April 2002. From Septemb&91® May 2002, he was director of Metromedia Fildetwork, Inc., a fiber optical
networking infrastructure provider. Mr. Tuan wasfoander of AboveNet Communications, Inc., an ingtrconnectivity solutions provider,
where he served as President from March 1996 toadgri 998, Chief Executive Officer from March 198@May 2002 and director from
March 1996 to September 1999. Mr. Tuan receivedsa @egree in Electrical Engineering from Feng-Qhigversity in Taiwan.

Gregory K. Hinckleyhas been a member of our board of directors siagealy 2009. Mr. Hinckley is currently the Presidamd interim
Chief Financial Officer of Mentor Graphics Corpaoat a publicly traded provider of electronic desaguutomation solutions. He began at
Mentor Graphics in January 1997 as Executive ViesiBent, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Finah@fficer. In November 2000, he
became President and Chief Financial Officer. Iy 2007, his position became President and Chiedr@ng Officer. Prior to
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Mentor Graphics, he served as Chief Financial @fffor two other publicly traded companies—VLSI fieology, Inc. and Bio-Rad
Laboratories, Inc. Mr. Hinckley is a director ofegoft, Inc. (a privately-held provider of OEM mutiédia software and firmware), a director
and member of audit and compensation committeégt@fmec, Inc. (a publicly traded provider of autded identification and data collection
(AIDC) solutions), and is an advisory director afrtPand State University Engineering School. Mrnékiley holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
physics from Claremont McKenna College, a MasteB@énce degree in applied physics from Universitgalifornia, an MBA degree from
Harvard Business School, and was a Fullbright Setiolapplied mathematics at Nottingham UniversitiEngland. He is also a Certified
Public Accountant.

Composition of the Board

The authorized number of directors of the Comparseiven. There are currently seven directors. @@nded and restated certificate of
incorporation provides for a classified board o&diors divided into three classes. The membeesch class are elected to serve a three-year
term with the term of office for each class endimgonsecutive years. Vacancies may be filled byagority of the directors then in office,
although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaidirggtor. Alternatively, the board of directorsjta option, may reduce the number of
directors.

The current composition of the board is:

Class | Directori(terms expiring at the 2010 annual meeti Charles Liang
Sherman Tua

Class Il Directorgterms expiring at the 2011 annual meeting) Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw
Edward J. Hayes, Jr
Gregory K. Hinckley

Class Il Directors(terms expiring at the 2009 annual meeti Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsa
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted “Corporate Governance Guidelireebést ensure that the board of directors is inggget from management and that
the board of directors adequately performs its fioncas the overseer of management and to helpetisat the interests of the board of
directors and management align with the interefstseostockholders. The “Corporate Governance Gineg’ are available at
www.Supermicro.cofy first clicking on “About Us” and then “Invest&elations” and then “Corporate Governance,” ancaige available in
print to any stockholder who requests a copy.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a “Code of Business Conduct aridsEtimat is applicable to all directors and emp@ey and embodies our principles
and practices relating to the ethical conduct aflaisiness and our long-standing commitment to skynéair dealing and full compliance with
all laws affecting our business. The “Code of BassConduct and Ethics” is availablevatw.Supermicro.coroy first clicking on “About Us”
and then “Investor Relations” and then “Corporatev&nance,” and is also available in print withol&rge to any stockholder who requests it.
Any substantive amendment or waiver of the Codatired to executive officers or directors will be aezonly after approval by a committee
comprised of a majority of our independent direstand will be promptly disclosed on our websitenimitfour business days.

Director Independence

The board affirmatively determines the independexaach director in accordance with guidelindsag adopted, which include all
elements of independence set forth in applicabkedlq listing standards. Our director independetasedards are set forth in our “Corporate
Governance Guidelines” available at the websitedatbove.

Based on these standards, the board determinedthat than Charles Liang, Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liungiand Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw,
each of the members of the board is an indepertiesttor under the Nasdagq rules.

Executive Sessions

Non-management directors meet in executive sesgithiout management present each time the boarafitsldegularly scheduled
meetings.

Communications with the Board of Directors

The board of directors welcomes the submissiomgfamments or concerns from stockholders or dtiterested parties. If you wish to
send any communications to the board of directas,may use one of the following methods:

*  Write to the board at the following addre

Board of Directors

Super Micro Computer, Inc.

c/o Robert Aeschiman, General Counsel
980 Rock Avenue

San Jose, California 95131

* E-mail the board of directors BODInquiries@supermicro.col
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MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Board Meetings

Each director is expected to devote sufficient tiereergy and attention to ensure diligent perforreasf his or her duties and to attend
board and committee meetings. We encourage, boobticeequire, each board member to attend our ammaating of stockholders. The board
of directors held six meetings during fiscal ye@02, of which four were regularly scheduled meetingd acted by unanimous written consent
one time during fiscal year 2009. The independé@sttbrs met six times in executive sessions witlamy of our officers present. All directors
attended at least 75% of the meetings of the bofditectors and of the committees on which theyee during the time they served as a
director in fiscal year 2009.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The board has three standing committees to faeildad assist the board of directors in the exeoudf its responsibilities. The
committees are currently the Audit Committee, tlmenPensation Committee and the Nominating and Catpdeovernance Committee. In
accordance with applicable Nasdag listing standaitief the committees are comprised solely of-eamployee, independent directors.
Charters for each committee are availablenatv.Supermicro.cory first clinking on “About Us” and then “Invest&elations” and then
“Corporate Governance”, and is also available intgwithout charge to any stockholder who requésiBhe charter of each committee also is
available in print to any stockholder who requéstEhe following table shows the current membdrsarh of the standing board committees:

Nominating and

Audit Committee Compensation Committee Corporate Governance Committee
Edward J. Hayes, Jr.( Sherman Tuan(1 Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai(1
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsa Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsa Sherman Tua

Gregory K. Hinckley

(1) Committee Chairpersc

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has three members. The Audih@dtee met four times in fiscal 2009 for regulasisheduled quarterly meetings.
Our board has determined that each member of odit @ommittee meets the requirements for indepecel@nder the current requirements
Nasdaqg. Our Board has determined that Mr. Edwargesialr. is the audit committee financial expert@sently defined under applicable SI
rules.

As outlined more specifically in the Audit Comméteharter, the Audit Committee has, among othdesuthe following responsibilitie

» The appointment, compensation and retention ofralependent auditors and reviews and evaluatesuttigor? qualifications,
independence and performan

» Oversees the audit¢ audit work and reviews and j-approves all audit and n-audit services that may be performed by th
* Reviews and approves the planned scope of our handd;
* Monitors the rotation of partners of the independerditors on our engagement team as requiredvizy

» Reviews our financial statements and discussesméthagement and the independent auditors the sesfithe annual audit and t
review of our quarterly financial statemer

* Reviews our critical accounting policies and estesg
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* Oversees the adequacy of our accounting and fiabogintrols;
» Reviews annually the audit committee charter aedctimmitte’s performance
* Reviews and approves all rela-party transactions; ar

» Establishes and oversees procedures for the repeiphtion and treatment of complaints regardicgpanting, internal controls or
auditing matters and oversees enforcement, conggliand remedial measures under our Code of Bus@mssuct and Ethic:

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has two members angimgmes in fiscal year 2009 and acted by unansnatitten consent one time
during fiscal year 2009. The Compensation Commigemmprised solely of non-employee directors. Board has determined that each
member of our Compensation Committee meets thareegants for independence under the current reopgings of Nasdag.

As outlined more specifically in the Compensatiamn@nittee charter, the Compensation Committee lmasng other duties, the
following responsibilities:

* Reviews and approves corporate goals and objeategant to compensation of the chief executifieef and other executiv
officers;

» Evaluates the performance of the chief executifie@fand other executive officers in light of tleogoals and objective
» Sets compensation of the chief executive officet ather executive officer:
» Administers the issuance of stock options and cdinerds to executive officers and directors understock plans; an

* Reviews and evaluates, at least annually, the pedioce of the compensation committee and its mesnberuding compliance ¢
the compensation committee with its char

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ

The Governance Committee has two members and metifioes in fiscal year 2009. The Governance Comemits comprised solely of
non-employee directors. Our board has determingidetiich member of our Governance Committee meetetiuirements for independence
under the current requirements of Nasdaq.

As outlined more specifically in the Governance @uttee charter, the Governance Committee has, arotirey duties, the following

responsibilities:

» Identifies individuals qualified to become direst

» Recommends to our board of directors director nessrfor each election of directo

» Develops and recommends to our board of directitexia for selecting qualified director candidat

» Considers committee member qualifications, appoémtnand remova

* Recommends corporate governance guidelines apfditalis;

* Provides oversight in the evaluation of our bodrdigectors and each committe

* Review and monitor our Code of Business Conductkithits and review and approve any waivers of casteCof Business Condt
and Ethics; an

» Coordinate and review board and committee chaftersonsistency and adequacy under applicable,rates make
recommendations to the board for any proposed s
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The members of our board of directors, our exeeutificers of the Company and persons who hold rttaae 10% of our outstanding
common stock are subject to the reporting requirgmef Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, whichuregithem to file reports with respect to
their ownership of our common stock and their teatisns in our common stock. Based upon (i) thée=opf Section 16(a) reports that we
received from such persons for their fiscal yedd®fansactions in the common stock and their comstock holdings and (i) the written
representations received from one or more of secbgns that no annual Form 5 reports were reqtiréeé filed by them for fiscal year 2009,
we believe that all reporting requirements undeatie 16(a) were met in a timely manner by the pessvho were executive officers,
members of the board of directors or greater ti# &tockholders during such fiscal year other filangs required in connection with an
initial stock option grant made to Gregory HinckieyJanuary 2009, a stock option exercise madeharl€s Liang in connection with the
issuance of restricted stock awards in August 2808fresh stock option grant made to the spoudghehyan (Wally) Liaw in October 200
stock option exercises made by Chiu-Chu (Sara) lang and the spouse of Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw insémber 2008, a stock transfer by
Charles Liang to Green Earth Charitable OrganinaticDecember 2009 and automatic stock option graratde to the independent membe
our board of directors in February 2009.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Process Overvie

The Compensation Committee (for purposes of thidyais, the “Committee”) of the board of directdischarges the board of directors’
responsibilities relating to compensation of albaf executive officers. The Committee is comprieétivo non-employee directors, both of
whom are independent pursuant to the current nfléasdaq, Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, aatid 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code (“Code”).

The agenda for meetings is determined by the Gifidire Committee with the assistance of Charlesd i@mur President and Chief
Executive Officer, and Howard Hideshima, our Cligfancial Officer. Committee meetings are regulatignded by one or more of
Mr. Liang, Mr. Hideshima and Robert Aeschiman, General Counsel. However, Messrs. Liang and Hidestio not attend the portion of
meetings during which their own performance or cengation is being discussed. Mr. Liang, Mr. Hideshiand Mr. Aeschiman support the
Committee in its work by providing information réteg to our financial plans, performance assesssneihbur executive officers and other
personnel-related data. In addition, the Commitizethe authority under its charter to hire, teatérand approve fees for advisors, consultants
and agents as it deems necessary to assist inlttienent of its responsibilities. In August 2008s part of making an overall assessment of
each individual's role and performance and strulcguour compensation programs for fiscal year 2008 ,Committee reviewed
recommendations of management as well as pubhdilable peer group compensation data.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

It is the Compensation Committee’s philosophy i the named executive officers’ compensation tpa@te performance. The base
salary, quarterly bonuses and stock option gramtseonamed executive officers are determined nh ipathe Compensation Committee
reviewing data on prevailing compensation pract@fesomparable technology companies with whom wamete for executive talent, and
evaluating such information in connection with earporate goals and compensation practice.

The Committee considers various sources of conigetitata when determining executive compensatieal$encluding compensation
data from a sampling of public companies and putBimpensation surveys.
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For fiscal year 2009, the sample of companies steiof the following companies:

Argon ST, Inc. NetScout Systems, Ir
Brocade Communications Systems, | PAR Technology Cor
Extreme Networks Inc Rackable Systems In

F5 Networks Inc Secure Computing Cor
Foundry Networks, Inc Synaptics Inc

Juniper Networks, Inc Teledyne Technologies In
MICROS Systems, Inc VeriFone Holdings, Inc
NetApp, Inc.

In selecting the companies for inclusion in the giemthe following factors were considered: indystret revenues, operating income .
whether the company may compete against us foruéixedalent. These companies ranged in annuahtev&om approximately $169 million
to $3.3 billion. In addition to gathering data sifiedo the above listed companies, the Compensafiommittee also reviews public surveys of
compensation practices.

The Compensation Committee does not seek to spalbifbenchmark compensation based upon the sacopipanies reviewed nor dc
the Compensation Committee employ any other forioyeocess in making compensation decisions. Ratiee€ompensation Committee u
its subjective judgment based upon a review ahédirmation, including an annual review for eackiadr of his or her level of responsibility,
contributions to our financial results and our @lgperformance. The Compensation Committee malkgsnaralized assessment of these
factors and this information is not weighted in @pgcific manner.

We believe that our current compensation arrangesifenseveral of our executive officers, includimgr Chief Executive Officer, are
significantly below typical compensation levels familar positions at comparable companies. Thigiiscipally due to the high level of
Company stock ownership held by such persons. Asoménue to grow, we may need to increase ouuitieg of new executives from outs|
of the Company. This in turn may require us to pijer compensation closer to or in excess ofttital paid by comparable companies.

Finally, we believe that creating stockholder valequires not only managerial talent but activeip@ation by all employees. In
recognition of this, we try to minimize the numloércompensation arrangements that are distinckdusive to all of our executive officers.
We currently provide base salary, quarterly bonasekslong-term equity incentive compensation tomsaerable number of our domestic
employees and international employees beyond cesutive officers.

Role of Executive Officers in the Compensation Pess

Management provides recommendations to the Comfplens2ommittee on issues such as compensationgmogesign, and evaluations
of executive and Company performance. In fiscal @09, the Compensation Committee also had atoessmpetitive data gathered by
management. While the Compensation Committee direfonsiders all recommendations made by membiemsamagement, ultimate
authority for all compensation decisions regarding executive officers rests with the Compensaommittee.

Fiscal Year 2009 Executive Officer Compensation Quonents
For fiscal year 2009, the principal componentsarhpensation for our executive officers were:
» Base salary
* Quarterly bonus; an
» Equity-Based Incentive Compensati
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Base SalaryBase salaries for our executive officers other tih@nChief Executive Officer are determined annulyl the Compensation
Committee based upon recommendations by our ckéfutive officer, taking into account such factasssalary norms in comparable
companies and publicly available data regardingpemmation increases in the industry, a subjecggessment of the nature of the position
an annual review of the contribution and experiesfdde executive officer. For the Chief Execut®éicer, the Compensation Committee
considers substantially the same information a$ agethe size of the company and the chief exeewifficer's percentage ownership. During
fiscal year 2009, the Compensation Committee apgatancreases in base salaries for our executiveeo$f set forth below. The base salary
increases were comparable to the average percemtggesalary increases granted to our employeesajgn

Base Salan
2008 2009
Name Principal Position Salary Salary % Change
Charles Liang President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathe $272,30¢ $285,46( 5%
Board
Howard Hideshim: Chief Financial Office $239,63( $251,20! 5%
Phidias Chot Vice President, Worldwide Sal: $188,52: $199,98: 6%
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang Vice President of Operations, Treasurer, and Dore $158,49: $167,33! 6%
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw Vice President, International Sales, Corporate $159,24! $168,80( 6%
Secretary and Directt
Alex Hsu Former Chief Sales and Marketing Offic $248,72: $171,68(1) (31)%

(1) Mr. Hsu ceased to be an executive officer andtiimié employee on August 19, 20(

Quarterly BonusOur cash bonus program seeks to motivate execotiiers to work effectively to achieve our finaatperformance
objectives and to reward them when such objectivesnet. Quarterly bonuses for executive officeessabbject to approval by the Committee.
Bonuses are not awarded based upon any specifiopl@rmula, but are subjectively determined bageah our performance during the
guarter and the individual’s contributions. Histally these bonuses have ranged from zero to amiatnegual to two weeks of base salary. For
fiscal year 2009, aggregate quarterly bonusesxecgive officers averaged approximately 2% to 3%ase salary. Given our financial
performance during the year, bonuses were onlytgdafior the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Equity-Based Incentive Compensati8iock options are an important component of thal tmmpensation of executive officers. We
believe that stock options align the interestsaafheexecutive with those of the shareholders. By provide executive officers a significant,
long-term interest in our success and help retajndxecutive officers in a competitive market feeeutive talent. Our 2006 Equity Incentive
Plan authorizes the Compensation Committee to gtank options to executive officers. The numbestadres owned by, or subject to options
held by, each executive officer is periodicallyissved and additional awards are considered basewn ajgeneralized assessment of past
performance of the executive and the relative Ingigliof other executive officers. The option graggrerally utilize fouryear vesting periods
encourage executive officers to continue contrilmutd us, and they generally expire no later tlesnyears from the date of grant.

In August 2008, the Compensation Committee approlvederms of an agreement with Charles Liangrecthr and President and Chief
Executive Officer, pursuant to which Mr. Liang esised a fully vested option previously grantedita for the purchase of 925,000 shares.
The option was exercised using a “net-exerciset@tare in which he was issued a number of shapesgenting the spread between the
option exercise price and the then current maréktevof the shares subject to the option (898,2@%es based upon the market value as of the
date of exercise). The shares issued upon exartibe option are subject to vesting over a fivesyeesting period. Vesting of the shares
subject to the award may accelerate in certaiugistances pursuant to the terms of the agreementléférmined that there is no incremental
fair value of the option exchanged for the awatite Tompany benefited from this agreement as atreftile imposition of the additional
vesting and that absent the agreement, addititreaes would have been sold into the market to ctaeobligations.
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In November 2008, the Compensation Committee agardive terms of an agreement with Chiu-Chu Liardjrector and Vice President
of Operations & Treasurer and Shiow-Meei Liaw, $efM/arehouse Manager, pursuant to which they eseddiully vested options previously
granted to them for the purchase of 185,263 angi3d2shares, respectively. They exercised the optising a “net-exercise” procedure in
which they were issued a number of shares repiiegethie spread between the option exercise pridetmnthen current market value of the
shares subject to the option (182,611 and 91,38feshrespectively based upon the market valué the alate of exercise). The shares issued
upon exercise of the options are subject to vestiry a two-year vesting period. Vesting of thershaubject to the awards may accelerate in
certain circumstances pursuant to the terms odipdicable agreement. We determined that there iagremental fair value of the option
exchanged for the awards.

In March, and April 2009, the Compensation Commaitipproved grants of additional options to exeeutifficers as part of the
Compensation Committee’s review of all employeenglavels. The Compensation Committee granted ginropo Mr. Liang for 720,000
shares with an exercise price equal to $10.66 hpmes twice the closing price on the date of gréhe option vests over four years. The
Compensation Committee concluded that as Mr. Lizamnot received any additional equity for a numidfgrears, he should be provided with
an additional incentive, but that such incentivewdti not be realizable unless our stockholdersnlige benefit from a substantial increase in
our stock price.

Fiscal Year 2010 Executive Officer Compensation

For fiscal year 2010, the Compensation Committge=ets to make no changes to the base salariee ek#cutive officers until after the
December 31, 2009 at which time it will evaluateititompensation based on the performance of tlnep@oy, the industry and the economy.
Furthermore, the Compensation Committee desirbave the executive officers focused on the varialdements of their pay (bonus and eq
value).

Stock Ownership Guideline

We currently do not require our directors or exieubfficers to own a particular amount of our coomstock. The Committee is
satisfied that stock and option holdings amongdingctors and executive officers are sufficienthé time to provide motivation and to align
this group’s interests with those of our stockhadd®ur insider trading policy prohibits any of axecutive officers, employees or contractors
from engaging in any transactions in publicly-trédgtions, such as puts and calls, and other desévaecurities, including any hedging or
similar transaction, with respect to our commortiksto

Other Benefits
Health and Welfare Benefi

Our executive officers receive the same healthvegitire benefits offered to other employees incigdinedical, dental, vision, life,
accidental death and dismemberment, disabilityjlfle spending accounts and holiday pay. The samg&ibution amounts, percentages and
plan design provisions are applicable to all empésy

Retirement Prograr

Our executive officers may participate in the saaxequalified, employee-funded 401(k) plan offetedll other U.S. employees. We
currently have no Supplemental Executive Retirerféguh, or SERP, obligations. We do not offer anfingel benefit retirement plans to our
executive officers.

Perquisites

We do not provide special benefits or other peitpgdo any of our executive officers, with the egtion of an automobile allowance
provided to our Chief Executive Officer, as detdile the “Summary Compensation Table.”
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Employment Arrangements, Severance and Change afit@d Benefits

We have not entered into employment agreementsamighof our named executive officers. Mr. Hideshiia. Chou, Mr. Hsu and
Ms. Liang have signed offer letters which provide dt-will employment. The offer letters provide &alary, stock options and right to
participate in our employee benefit plans. We dblrawe any written employment arrangements withdvied iang and Liaw. We do not have
any arrangements with any of our executive offidket provide for any severance benefits in thenegétermination or change of control.

Tax and Accounting Treatment of Compensation

In our review and establishment of compensatiogms and payments, we consider, but do not plees gmphasis on, the anticipated
accounting and tax treatment of our compensatiograms on us and our executive officers. While ves ©onsider accounting and tax
treatment, these factors alone are not dispositineong other factors that receive greater constaerare the net costs to us and our ability to
effectively administer executive compensation i short and long-term interests of stockholdersetuadproposed compensation arrangement.

We monitor whether it might be in our best intetestomply with Section 162(m) of the Code, buteres the right to award future
compensation which would not comply with the Sattl®2(m) requirements for non-deductibility if tBemmittee concludes that it is in our
best interest to do so. We seek to maintain fléiftin compensating executive officers in a mandesigned to promote varying corporate
goals and therefore the Committee has not adoppetiey requiring all compensation to be deductifilee Committee will continue to assess
the impact of Section 162(m) on its compensati@tiices and determine what further action, if amgppropriate.

We account for equity compensation paid to our eyges under the rules of Financial Accounting StathdNo. 123R (“FAS 123(R)"),
which requires us to estimate and record an expensach award of equity compensation over theiceperiod of the award. Accounting
rules also require us to record cash compensasi@m &xpense at the time the obligation is accrued.

We intend that our plans, arrangements and agrésmdhbe structured and administered in a marhar complies with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code. Parttgpain, and compensation paid under our plangrg@ments and agreements may, in
certain instances, result in the deferral of conspéion that is subject to the requirements of 8actO9A. If our plans, arrangements and
agreements as administered fail to meet certamin@ments under Section 409A, compensation eahleréunder may be subject to immediate
taxation and tax penalties.

Summary

The Committee believes that our compensation pdyilbg and programs are designed to foster a perfurerariented culture that aligns
our executive officers’ interests with those of stockholders. The Committee also believes thattmepensation of our executive officers is
both appropriate and responsive to the goal of @avipg stockholder value.

Compensation Committee Report

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the Caapen Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A”) with the @pany’s management.
Based on this review and these discussions, thenGivee recommended to the board of directors tiet3D&A be included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

This report has been furnished by the Compens&immmittee.

Sherman Tuan, Chair
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes the compensatiod pabur Chief Executive Officer, our Chief FinaaoDfficer and to our other most
highly compensated executive officers who weredthlg executive officers whose total annual salarg Bonus exceeded $100,000 in fiscal
year 2009, for services rendered in all capacitiess during fiscal year 2009, 2008 and 2007. \er tte these officers in this Annual Rep
on Form 10-K as our “named executive officers.”

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Change in
Pension Value
and
Non-Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Plan Deferred
Stock Compensatior All Other
Awards  Option Compensatior Compensatior
Salary Bonus Awards Earnings Total

Name and Principal Position Year ($) ($)@) ($)(2) ($)(3) ($) ($)(4) ($) $)
Charles Lian¢ 200¢ $285,46( $ 5,381 — $210,45( — — $ 5,51)(5) $506,80:
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathef 200¢  $272,30t $23,17¢ — — — — $ 19,32¢6) $314,81(
Board 2007 $257,18¢ $21,04¢ — — — = $ 25,60¢7) $303,84(
Howard Hideshimi 200¢ $251,20¢ $ 4,73¢ — $279,17! — — $ 4,85((5) $539,96!
Chief Financial Officel 200¢ $239,63( $15,90¢ — $274,17 — — $ 4,61¢5) $534,33.
2007 $226,32! $16,34: — $154,94 — — ) $397,61:
Phidias Chot 200¢ $199,98: $ 6,101 — $ 2,48¢ — — $ 3,85¢5) $212,42:
Vice President, Worldwide Sales 200¢ $188,52: $12,46: — — — — $ 10,90¢5) $211,89:
2007 $174,88° $13,60¢ — —_ — — $ 10,105) $198,59:
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang 200¢ $167,33¢ $ 3,15: — $ 2,24: — = $ 3,23)(5) $175,96(
Vice President of Operations, Treasurer and Directo 200¢ $158,49. $10,07:¢ — — — — $ 9,23((5) $177,79¢
2007 $123,68: $ 8,93( — — — = $ 7,1445)  $139,75
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw 200¢  $168,80( $ 4,75¢ —  $ 48,93¢ — — 3 3,2615) $225,75
Vice President, International Sales, Corporate $tay 200¢ $159,24: $ 7,69:¢ — $ 8,581 — — $ 9,23((5) $184,74¢
and Director 2007 $141,70c $ 9,54¢ — —_ — — $ 8,1855) $159,43
Alex Hsu 200¢ $171,68! $ 4,70 — $153,70° — — = $330,09!
Former Chief Sales and Marketing Officer(8) 200€  $248,72: $16,50¢ —  $65,27¢ — — — $330,50¢
2007 $234,73. $16,96: — — — = $ 13,56¢5) $265,26:

(1) Amounts disclosed und“Bonus” reflect the cash bonuses earned by the named @eofficers.

(2) Restricted stock awards were issued to Chaitesy and Chiu-Chu Liu Liang to exchange their eisd options during fiscal year 2009. The Compaetgrmined that there is no
incremental fair value of the option exchangectfieraward

(3) The amount reported in the Option Awards colummesents the dollar amount recognized for finarsti@ement reporting purposes pursuant to FAS 128(B)r financial statemen
excluding the estimates of service-based forfestuféne assumptions used in the calculation ofatisunt are included in Item 8, Financial Statemants Supplementary Data, and
Note 11 of Notes to the Consolidated FinancialeBtants

(4) The Company does not have a defined benefit plannan-qualified deferred compensation pli

(5) Amount reflects vacation and sick pi

(6) Amount reflects a monthly automobile allowance 8f883 from July 1, 2007 to October 31, 2007 andhtian and sick pay of $15,74

(7) Amount reflects a monthly automobile allowance 0 %50 and vacation and sick pay of $14,¢

(8) Mr. Hsu ceased to be an executive officer andtiimé employee on August 19, 20(
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table provides information concernilfjplan-based awards granted during fiscal y@&92o our named executive
officers:

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

All Other
. . All Other Option
Estimated Possible Payouts Stock Awards:
Under Non-Equity Incentive Awards: Number of Grant
Plan Awards Number of Exercise Date Fair
Securities or Base Value of
Shares of Underlying Price of Stock and
Threshold Target Maximum Stock or Option Option
Units Options Awards Awards
Name Grant Date ($) ($) ($) #) (#) ($/Sh) [6]E)]
Charles Liang 8/26/200: — — —  898,2042) — $ — $9,574,86!
3/4/200¢ — — — — 720,00((3) $ 10.6¢ $2,364,46
Howard Hideshim: 4/29/200¢ — — — — 32,14(4) $ 55 $ 82,32¢
4/29/200! — — — — 19,85(5) $ 55 $ 50,84.
Phidias Chot 4/29/200¢ — — — — 22,50((4) $ 55 $ 57,62
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang 11/26/200: — — — 182,61(6) = $ — $ 956,88
4/29/200! — — — — 20,30((4) $ 55z $ 51,98
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw — — — — — — $ — 3 —
Alex Hsu — — — — — — $ — 3 =

(1) Represents the fair value of each stock optioneavetrd as of the date of grant, computed in accaelarth FAS 123(R)

(2) These restricted stock awards were issueddbasge 925,000 shares of exercised option andvesta five year vesting period, such
that the shares are fully vested on August 26, 20k8re is no incremental fair value of the optxehanged for the awar

(3) These no-qualified stock options vest at the rate of 25%Nmvember 1, 2009 and 1/t per quarter thereafter, such that the share
fully vested on November 1, 201

(4) These incentive stock options vest at the rates86 dn April 29, 2010 and 1/Ihper quarter thereafter, such that the shares Hye
vested on April 29, 201:

(5) These non-qualified stock options vest at #ie of 25% on April 29, 2010 and 1/%6 per quatteraafter, such that the shares are fully
vested on April 29, 201:

(6) These restricted stock awards were issueddbasge 185,263 shares of exercised option andvesta two year vesting period, such
that the shares are fully vested on November 280 20here is no incremental fair value of the aopxchanged for the awai
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2009

The following table provides information concerniihg outstanding equity-based awards as of Jun08®, and the option exercise

price and expiration dates for each award, helddnh of our named executive officers.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Market value
Securities Number of shares or units
Underlying Securities Option of shares or
Unexercisec Underlying Exercise of stock that units of stock
Unexercised Option have that have not
Options (#) Options (#) Price Expiration not vested vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (%) Date (#) ($)(Q)
Charles Liang 1,000,00(2) — $ 1.2¢ 6/30/201:
600,00((3) — $ 3.0¢ 12/28/201.
— 720,00((4) $10.6¢ 3/4/201¢
898,20:! $6,880,25!
Howard Hideshim: 14,39¢(5) 4,80((5) $13.8¢ 11/17/201
83,10%(5) 27,704(5) $13.8¢  11/17/201(
16,25((6) 16,25((6) $10.1¢ 4/26/201
— 19,85%(7) $ 5.5¢ 4/29/201¢
— 32,14%(7) $ 5.5¢ 4/29/201!
Phidias Chot 20,00((8) — $ 1.2t 6/30/201:
60,00((9) — $ 1.2t 6/30/201:
20,00((10) — $ 1.2t 12/23/201.
52,50((11) 3,50((11) $ 3.2¢ 9/30/201!
— 22,50((7) $ 5.5¢ 4/29/201!
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liant 240,00((12) — $ 1.2¢ 6/30/201:
200,00((13) — $ 128 12/23/201;
56,70((14) 8,10((14)  $ 3.5C  12/30/201!
— 20,30((7) $ 5.5¢ 4/29/201!
182,61: $1,398,80!
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw 240,00((15) — $ 1.2¢ 6/30/201:
90,00((16) — $ 257 3/31/201«
9,57(17) 21,065(17) $ 7.4¢€ 4/28/201¢
9,46((17) 20,81(17) $ 7.4€ 4/28/201
Alex Hsu 60,79¢(18) — $ 1.9¢ 8/31/201:
17,70419) 29,515(19) $ 8.47 1/28/201¢
29,48¢19) 23,28¢19)  $ 8.47 1/28/201¢

(1) Market value based upon the closing price of ommoon stock of $7.66 on June 30, 2009 multipliedHgynumber of restricted sto

awards.

(2) Options vested at the rate of 25% on November @1 20hd 1/1¢hper quarter thereafter, such that the shares wéyevested or

November 1, 200¢

(3) Options vested at the rate of 25% on Novemb&0@5 and 1/16 per quarter thereafter, such kieasthares were fully vested on

November 1, 200¢

(4) Options vest at the rate of 25% on Novembe@009 and 1/18 per quarter thereafter, such thashhees will be fully vested on

November 1, 201z

(5) Options vested at the rate of 25% on May 8, 20@r1dh6t per quarter thereafter, such that the shares witully vested on May ¢

2010.

(6) Options vested at the rate of 25% on April 26, 2808 1/1€hper quarter thereafter, such that the shares witlby vested on April 2€

2011.
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(7)
(8)
9)
(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)

(19)

Options vest at the rate of 25% on April 29, 20068 &/16% per quarter thereafter, such that the shares wifubly vested on April 29
2013.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on Augu200,1 and 1/1& per quarter thereafter, such thashhees were fully vested on August 1,
2004.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on June @02 2and 1/16 per quarter thereafter, such thaghbees were fully vested on June 30,
2005.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on August 1, 20@iL1/1€h per quarter thereafter, such that the shares wéyeviested on August :
2004.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on July 1, 20@bB1d16t per quarter thereafter, such that the shares wéyevested on July 1, 200
Options vested at the rate of 25% on Decerhbet 998 and 1/18 per quarter thereafter, suchttieashares were fully vested on
December 11, 200:

Options vested at the rate of 25% on December@d2 2nd 1/1thper quarter thereafter, such that the shares wéyevested or
December 11, 200!

Options vested at the rate of 25% on DecerhBeP006 and 1/18 per quarter thereafter, suchthieashares will be fully vested on
December 12, 200!

Options vested at the rate of 25% on March2801 and 1/1& per quarter thereafter, such tleasltlares were fully vested on March 30,
2004.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on March 30, 20@b1/1€hper quarter thereafter, such that the shares wéyevested on March 3(
2008.

Options vested at the rate of 25% on March 30, 20@P1/1€hper quarter thereafter, such that the shares witubly vested or

March 30, 2012

Options vested at the rate of 25% on OctodePQ04 and 1/16 per quarter thereafter, suchttigathares were fully vested on
October 24, 2007

Options vested at the rate of 25% on OctodePQ08 and 1/16 per quarter thereafter, suchttieeshares will be fully vested on
October 24, 2011

Option Exercises and Stock Vested During Fiscal Ye&2009

The following table sets forth the dollar amoumalized pursuant to the exercise or vesting oftgdpased awards by our named

executive officers during fiscal year 2009.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Value Realized ol Value Realized ol
Number of Shares Number of Shares

Name Acquired on Exercise (# Exercise ($)(1) Acquired on Vesting (# Vesting ($)(2)
Charles Liang 1,850,001 $ 14,980,97 — $ —
Howard Hideshim: — $ — — $ —
Phidias Chot — $ — — $ —
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang 320,00( $ 1,702,81 — $ —
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw 150,00( $ 1,005,00 — $ —
Alex Hsu — $ — — $ —
(1) Based on the difference between the closing pficpcommon stock on the date of exercise an@:xeecise price

(@)

The value is the closing price of our common stoekhe date of vesting, multiplied by the numbesludires veste:
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Director Compensation

Under our director compensation policy, we reimburen-employee directors for reasonable expensasninection with attendance at
board and committee meetings. Our reanployee directors receive an annual retainer 6fGBD, payable quarterly. In addition, the chaispe
of our audit committee receives an annual retadn&25,000, the chairperson of each of our comp@rsaommittee and nominating and
corporate governance committee receives an anetaher of $5,000 and each director serving inractmairperson capacity on our audit,
compensation or nominating and corporate governaogenittees receives an annual retainer of $2,80@@mmittee, payable quarterly.

Non-employee directors also are eligible to recsieek options under our 2006 Equity Incentive PMon-employee directors receive
nondiscretionary, automatic grants of nonstatusbogk options under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plamon-employee director is automatice
granted an initial option to purchase 18,000 shapes first becoming a member of our board of doe A non-employee director serving as
chairperson of the audit committee receives afalrgrant of an option to purchase 12,000 shares-&mployee directors serving as
chairperson of the compensation or nominating amgarate governance committee receive an initiahgof an option to purchase 2,000
shares. Each of these initial options vests andrbes exercisable over four years, with the fir#2¥ the shares subject to each initial option
vesting on the first anniversary of the date ohgyend the remainder vesting quarterly therealfitemediately after each of our annual meetings
of stockholders, each non-employee director israatially granted an option to purchase 4,500 shafeur common stock, the audit
committee chairperson is granted an annual optigrutchase 3,000 shares of our common stock anchtigoerson of each of the
compensation and nominating and corporate goveenemmmittees is granted an annual option to puecb@6 shares of our common stock.
These options will vest and become exercisablderfitst anniversary of the date of grant or imnagely prior to our annual meeting of
stockholders, if earlier.

The options granted to non-employee directors lagper share exercise price equal to 100% of therfarket value of the underlying
shares on the date of grant, and will become ftdlsted if we are subject to a change of controhush grants will be reduced proportionally if
the person did not serve in that capacity for theylear after the annual grant.

107



Table of Contents

The following table shows for the fiscal year endede 30, 2009 certain information with respe¢htocompensation of all of our non-
employee directors:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Change in
Pension Value
and
Fees Non-Equity Non-qualified
Earned Incentive Plan Deferred
or Paid in Stock Compensatior All Other
Awards Option Compensatior Compensatior
Cash Awards Earnings Total
Name ®@) (%) ) ) ) (%) (%)
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsa $37,50( — $47,15( — — = $84,65(
Edward J. Hayes, J $48,75( — $36,60¢ — — — $85,35¢
Sherman Tua $34,37¢ — $23,88¢ — — — $58,26(
Gregory K. Hinckley $21,25( — $24,14: — — — $45,39:

(1) This column represents annual director fees;employee committee chairman fees and other caenmihember fees earned in fiscal
year 2009

(2) The dollar amount in this column representsgiteant date fair value of each award calculateactordance with SFAS No. 123R,
excluding the estimates of service-based forfeitune using the Black Scholes option-pricing moAssumptions used in the calculation
of these amounts are included in Item 8, Finariatements and Supplementary Data, and Note 1btelsNo our audited Consolidated
Financial Statements for the fiscal year 2009 idetliin this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The tal#éoty sets forth the aggregate
number of option awards held by our -employee directors as of June 30, 2(

Name Option Awards
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsa 95,00(
Edward J. Hayes, J 45,00(
Sherman Tua 29,50(
Gregory K. Hinckley 22,50(

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

None of the members of the Compensation Commist@ecurrent or former officer or employee of therpany or had any relationship
with the Company requiring disclosure. In additidaring fiscal 2009, none of our executive officeesved as a member of the board of
directors or compensation committee of any othétyethat has one or more executive officers whwee on our board of directors or
Compensation Committee.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners alinagement and Related Stockholder Matt:
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement

The following table sets forth certain informatimown to us regarding beneficial ownership of cumemon stock as of August 18, 2009
by:
» each of the named executive office
» each of our directors; ar

» all directors and executive officers as a grc
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We do not know of any person or entity who benafigiowns more than 5% of our outstanding commaoglstis of August 18, 2009
except for the named executive officers and dimscto

Amount and Percent of

Nature of Common

Beneficial Stock
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(1 Ownership(2) Outstanding(3)
Executive Officers and Director
Charles Liang(4 10,518,53 27.€%
Howard Hideshima(5s 123,90¢ *
Phidias Chou(6 166,00( *
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liang(7 10,518,53 27.€%
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw(8 3,587,35! 9.9%
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai(9 472,81 1.3%
Edward J. Hayes, Jr.(1 26,25( *
Sherman Tuan(1! 16,37¢ *
Gregory K. Hinckley — *
All directors and executive officers as a group€®sons)(12 14,911,23 38.2%
* Represents beneficial ownership of less than omsepeof the outstanding shares of common st

(1) Except as otherwise indicated, the persons namtdsitable have sole voting and investment powigr respect to all shares
Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by tharmijext to applicable community property laws anth information contained
the footnotes to this tabl

(2) Inaccordance with SEC rules, includes sharesctrabe acquired within 60 days upon the exercisgptibns.

(3) Calculated on the basis of 35,987,109 shares off@mmStock outstanding as of August 18, 2009, pexvithat any additional shares
Common Stock that a stockholder has the right ¢uize within 60 days after August 18, 2009 andrietstd stock awards issued as of
August 18, 2009 are deemed to be outstanding éoptinposes of calculating that stockho’s percentage of beneficial ownerst

4) Includes 1,600,000 shares issuable upon thesiseeof options exercisable within 60 days aftegést 18, 2009. Also includes
1,200,000 shares jointly held by Mr. Charles Liamgl Ms. Liang, Mr. Charles Liang’s spouse, 200,§l0é@res held by Green Earth
Charitable Organization, for which Mr. and Ms. Ligserve as trustees, 150,000 shares held by Gee#im €haritable Trust, 512,611
shares held by Ms. Liang and 500,750 shares issugtun the exercise of options held by Ms. Liang) @xercisable within 60 days al
August 18, 2009. See footnote

(5 Includes 123,905 shares issuable upon the exastigations exercisable within 60 days after AugL&t2009.

(6) Includes 156,000 shares issuable upon the exastigations exercisable within 60 days after AugL&t2009.

@) Includes 500,750 shares issuable upon the exestiggtions exercisable within 60 days after Augl&t2009. Also includes 200,01
shares held by Green Earth Charitable Organizatis®,000 shares held by Green Earth Charitablet,T81855,173 shares held by
Mr. Liang, Ms. Sara Liang spouse, and 1,600,000 shares issuable uponehgsexof options held by Mr. Liang and exercisahbiiin
60 days after August 18, 2009. See footno!

(8) Includes 352,839 shares issuable upon the isgen€ options exercisable within 60 days after @stgl8, 2009. 2,945,965 shares held by
Liaw Family Trust, for which Mr. and Mrs. Liaw senas trustees, 91,305 shares held by Mrs. Liaw] Mw’s spouse and 47,250
shares issuable upon the exercise of options gtaatsirs. Liaw, exercisable within 60 days aftergist 18, 200¢

(9) Includes 82,812 shares issuable upon the eseeofioptions exercisable within 60 days after Aidi8, 2009. Also includes 350,000
shares held by Tsai Family Trust, for which Mrs-Jiuan Chi Tsai and Mr. Tsai serve as trust

(20) Includes 26,250 shares issuable upon the exertiggtions exercisable within 60 days after Augugt 2009.

(11) Includes 16,375 shares issuable upon the exertiggtions exercisable within 60 days after Augugt 2009.

(12) Includes 2,906,181 shares issuable upon the erastigptions exercisable within 60 days after Audi& 2009
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

We currently maintain two compensation plans tmavige for the issuance of our Common Stock toceffs and other employees,
directors and consultants. These consist of th& B38ck Option Plan and the 2006 Equity IncentilamPboth of which have been approvec
our stockholders. We no longer grant any optiordeutthe 1998 Stock Option Plan. The following ted#és forth information regarding
outstanding options and shares reserved and remgaaniailable for future issuance under the foregians as of June 30, 2009:

Number of securities

Number of shares remaining available
to be issued upon Weighted-average for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding options outstanding options compensation plans
(excluding shares
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in
column (a))
Plan Category @) (b) ©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérg 12,672,64 $ 5.17 900,10¢1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sec
holders — — —
Total 12,672,64 $ 5.17 900,10¢

(1) The number of shares that are reserved foaissiunder the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan are aatioally increases on July 1 of each
year through 2016 by a number of shares equaktsrifeller of (a) 3% of our outstanding shares dse€lose of business on t
immediately preceding June 30 or (b) a lesser aidetermined by the board of directc

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independenct

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Procedures for Approval of Related Person Transactins

Pursuant to our Audit Committee charter, the A@limmittee has the responsibility for the reviewprapal or ratification of any related
person transactions. In approving or rejectingappsed transaction, our Audit Committee will coesithe relevant facts and circumstances
available and deemed relevant, including, but imaitéd to the risks, costs and benefits to ust¢hms of the transaction, the availability of
other sources for comparable services or prodaots, if applicable, the impact on a director’s ipeledence. Our Audit Committee shall
approve only those transactions that, in lightrdWn circumstances are not inconsistent with osgt lmeerests, as our Audit Committee
determines in the good faith exercise of its disene In addition, we annually require each of directors and executive officers to complete a
directors’ and officers’ questionnaire that eligitformation about related party transactions afigarm is defined by SEC rules and
regulations. These procedures are intended tordeterwhether any such related party transactioraimghe independence of a director or
presents a conflict of interest on the part ofraator, employee or officer.

Transactions with Related Parties, Promoters and G#ain Control Persons
Director and Officer Indemnification

We have entered into agreements to indemnify aectbrs and executive officers to the fullest ekfgarmitted under Delaware law. In
addition, our certificate of incorporation contaprevisions limiting the liability of our directond our bylaws contain provisions requiring us
to indemnify our officers and directors.
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Stock Option Award:

Please see the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards” taiddethe “Director Compensatiotéble above for information on stock option grao
our directors and named executive officers in fi2€D9.

Director Independenct

The board affirmatively determines the independeriaach director and nominee for election as eattir in accordance with guidelines
it has adopted, which include all elements of iredefence set forth in applicable Nasdaq listingdstests. Our director independence standards
are set forth in our “Corporate Governance Guidsiravailable at the website noted above.

Based on these standards, the board determineathat than Charles Liang, Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liungiand Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw,
each of the members of the board is an indepertiesttor under the Nasdagq rules. In addition, eaember of our audit, compensation and
nominating and corporate governance committeesfigatithe independence requirements or membergchf@mmittees under applicable
Nasdaq and SEC rule

Transactions with Ablecom Technology Inc.

Ablecom Technology Inc—Ablecom, a Taiwan corporation, together with itbsidiaries (“Ablecom”), is one of our major comtra
manufacturers. Ablecom’s chief executive officeleV@ Liang, is the brother of Charles Liang, owediient, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors, and owns apijpnaxely 2.5% of our common stock. Charles Liangysdras a director of Ablecom during
our fiscal year 2006, but is no longer servinguntscapacity. In addition, Charles Liang and hifewéach of whom is our officer and director,
collectively own approximately 30.7% of Ablecom ariith-Shyan (Wally) Liaw, our officer and directand his spouse collectively own
approximately 5.2% of Ablecom, while Steve Lianglather family members owned approximately 49.3%lmecom at June 30, 2009.

We have product design and manufacturing servigesseanents (“product design and manufacturing ageetst) and a distribution
agreement (“distribution agreement”) with Ablecom.

Under the product design and manufacturing agretanem outsource a portion of our design activitied a significant part of our
manufacturing of components, such as server chassiblecom. Ablecom agrees to design productsmlicg to our specifications.
Additionally, Ablecom agrees to build the tools ded to manufacture the products. Under the prodiesign and manufacturing agreements,
we commit to purchase a minimum quantity over gseibd. The purchase price of the products matuifad by Ablecom is negotiated on a
purchase order by purchase order basis at eachgaedate. However, a fixed charge is added tpribe of each unit purchased until the
agreed minimum number of units is purchased. Inusu@007, we entered into a new product developnmeariufacturing and service
agreement with Ablecom. Under the new agreemenhave agreed to pay for the cost of blade sen@ingpand engineering services and \
pay for those items when the work has been complétethis case no fixed charge is added to fupurehases for reimbursement of tooling
costs. We made payments for tooling assets foil0$B8and $2,135,000 and engineering services fan®0$785,000 from Ablecom during
fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. Undedtbeibution agreement, Ablecom purchases frorsarser products for distribution in
Taiwan. The pricing and terms under the distribugreement are similar to the pricing and terndigifibution arrangements we have with
similar, third party distributors.

Ablecom’s net sales to us and its net sales opoadlucts to others comprise a substantial majofitkblecom’s net sales. We purchased
products from Ablecom totaling approximately $94@®0, $105,981,000 and $95,673,000, and sold ptsda Ablecom totaling
approximately $6,025,000, $6,593,000 and $7,320,fa00iscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respegtivel
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The amounts owed to us by Ablecom as of June 3I) 20d 2008, were approximately $280,000 and $092 @spectively. Amounts
owed to Ablecom by us as of June 30, 2009 and 2068; approximately $21,455,000 and $27,717,0Gpewively. Historically, we have
paid Ablecom the majority of invoiced dollars betmeb6 and 113 days of invoice. For fiscal year992@008 and 2007, we received $2,000,
$147,000 and $89,000, respectively, from Ableconpfenalty charges. For fiscal year 2009, we pamt@pmately $2,918,000 in tooling ass
and miscellaneous costs to Ablecom which included®28,000 of tooling for the blade servers retkteeabove. For fiscal year 2008, we paid
approximately $4,163,000 in tooling assets and eflsgeous costs to Ablecom which included the $,A30 of tooling and $785,000 of
engineering services for the blade servers reféoedove. For fiscal year 2007, we paid approxafya$412,000 in tooling assets and
miscellaneous costs to Ablecom. Penalty chargeassessments relating to delayed deliveries oitgusdues.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service
The Audit Committee appointed Deloitte & Touche La®our independent registered public accountimg fior the fiscal year 2009.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Feeand Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate afadis billed to us by our independent registeredipalocounting firm, Deloitte & Touck
LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsug their respective affiliates (collectively, “Déte”), and fees paid to Deloitte for
services in the fee categories indicated belowndyitie fiscal years 2009 and 2008. The Audit Cotemibas considered the scope and fee
arrangements for all services provided by Delottiking into account whether the provision of naiiaiservices is compatible with
maintaining Deloitte’s independence, and has ppramd 100% of the services described below.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2009 2008
Audit Fees(1 $ 1,098,001 $ 1,253,001
Audit-Related Fee — —
Tax Fees — —
All Other Fees — —
Total $ 1,098,001 $ 1,253,001

(1) Audit fees consist of the aggregate fees fofgasional services rendered for the audit of maaf 2009 and 2008 consolidated financial
statements and review of interim consolidated fomrstatements

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedurs

The Audit Committee’s policy on approval of sendqeerformed by the independent registered pubtiowating firm is to pre-approve
all audit and permissible naaudit services to be provided by the independagistered public accounting firm during the fiscaby. The Audi
Committee reviews each non-audit service to beigealvand assesses the impact of the service dirrtiis independence.
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PART IV

Iltem 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
(a) 1. Financial Statements
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementein B of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, whiclinsorporated herein by reference.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All other financial statement schedules have bemitted because they are either not applicable®required information is shown in 1
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index which follows the signatuag@ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which isdrporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules
See Item 15(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused
report to be signed on its behalf by the underslgtieereunto duly authorized.

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

Date: August 31, 2009 /s/ CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman othe Board
(Principal Executive Officer)
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pershose signature appears below constitutes anairgppCharles Liang
and Howard Hideshima, jointly and severally, histey-in-fact, each with the full power of substion, for such person, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments tohimual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the samigh&ll exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Semsiand Exchange Commission, granting unto saidregy-in-fact and agent full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimg) requisite and necessary to be done in commmettterewith, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he might do or could do in person keslfying and confirming all that each of saidoaiheys-in-fact and agents, or his substitute,
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated @ the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s| CHARLESL IANG President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairr August 31, 2009
Charles Liang of the Board (Principal Executive Office
/s/ HowARD H IDESHIMA Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and August 31, 2009
Howard Hideshima Accounting Officer)

/s/ CHIU-CHU (SARA) L UL IANG Vice President of Operations, Treasurer August 31, 200!
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang Director

/sl Y IH-SHYAN (W ALLY ) L 1aw Vice President of International Sales, Secre August 31, 200!

Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw and Directol
/s/ HWEI -M ING (F RED) T SAI Director August 31, 2009

Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai

/s/ EDWARD J. HAYES, JR Director August 31, 2009
Edward J. Hayes, Jr

/s/ SHERMAN T UAN Director August 31, 200!
Sherman Tuan

/s| GREGORYK. H INCKLEY Director August 31, 2009
Gregory K. Hinckley
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatio8uper Micro Computer, Inc.(:

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Super Micro Complrier(1)

Specimen stock certificate for shares of commoaokstd Super Micro Computer, Inc.(

1998 Stock Option Plan, as amende

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under 188&k Option Plan(1

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement und&8LStock Option Plan(:

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement outsfte1998 Stock Option Plan(

2006 Equity Incentive Plan(:

Form of Option Agreement under Super Micro Computer. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Super d@omputer, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plar

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under Siypiero Computer, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
Form of director’ and officer’ Indemnity Agreement(1

Promissory Note dated as of March 22, 2001, isfye8uper Micro Computer, Inc. to Bank of AmericaAN1)
Standing Loan Agreement dated March 22, 2001, biybetween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Bank okAioa, N.A.(1)

Product Manufacturing Agreement dated as of A@il2004 by and between Super Micro Compute, Ind.Tatung
Company(1

Promissory Note dated as of April 22, 2004, issoe&uper Micro Computer, Inc. to Wachovia Commengiartgage, Inc
)

Business Loan Agreement dated as of April 22, 2694nd between Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Waieh
Commercial Mortgage, Inc.(:

Promissory Note dated September 28, 2005, issu&upgr Micro Computer, Inc. to Citibank (West), RSE

Business Loan Agreement dated as of Septembel0R8, By and between Super Micro Computer, Inc.@itidank (West),
FSB(1)

Business Loan Agreement dated November 1, 200&8nbybetween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Far Basbnal Bank
@)
Promissory Note dated November 1, 2005, issuedupgiSMicro Computer, Inc. to Far East National B@l

Commercial Security Agreement dated November 15289 and between Super Micro Computer, Inc. arndaat Nation:
Bank(1)

Offer Letter for Chi-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang(1
Offer Letter for Alex Hsu(1
Offer Letter for Howard Hideshima(:

Director Compensation Policy(
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Exhibit
Number

10.24

10.25

10.26*
10.27*
10.28*
10.29
10.30*
10.31%
10.32*
211
23.1
24.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

(1)
()
3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Description

Product Manufacturing Agreement dated January 87 2@tween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Ableca@thhology Inc

1)
First Amendment to Product Manufacturing Agreemmitveen Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Tatung Complated as
of March 7, 2007(1

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under 2@$uity Incentive Plan(Zz

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock unde®@ Equity Incentive Plan(:

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Unitden 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(

Agreement of Purchase and Sale

Stock Option Exercise Notice and Restricted StagikcPase Agreeme—Charles Liang(4

Stock Option Exercise Notice and Restricted StasicPase Agreeme—Chiu-Chu Liang(5)

Stock Option Exercise Notice and Restricted StaglcPase Agreeme—Shiow-Meei Liaw(5)

Subsidiaries of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Power of Attorney (included in signature pac

Certification of Charles Liang, President and CE®sBant to Section 302 of the Sarb«Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Howard Hideshima, CFO and Secrefaursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Charles Liang, President and CE@®sBant to Section 906 of the Sarb~Oxley Act of 2002(6
Certification of Howard Hideshima, CFO and Secrefaursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002(6

Incorporated by reference to the same numbabgXiled with the Registrant’s Registration Statent on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 33:-138370), declared effective by the Securities axchBnge Commission on March 28, 20

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’s Registration Statement on For-8 (Commission File No. 3:-142404) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27,72

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 from @@mpan”s current report on Forrm-K (Commission File No. 0(-33383) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 29n2007

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s AshiReport on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 001-&3gfiled with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on September 2, Z

Incorporated by reference to the Company’sentrreport on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 001-83gfiled with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on December 2, 2

The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 an@ 3company the Annual Report on Forn-K pursuant to Section 906 of tl
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deéffiled” by Super Micro Computer, Inc. for purposesSection 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Management contract, or compensatory plan or amagt



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement No. 333-142404 on Form S-8ufreport dated August 31, 2009
relating to the consolidated financial statemefitSuper Micro Computer, Inc. and subsidiaries (fBempany”) (which report expresses an
unqualified opinion and includes explanatory paapds relating to the adoption of Financial Accougitbtandards Board Interpretation No.
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta—an interpretation of Statement of Financial Acding Standards No. 109effective July 1, 2007
and significant related party transactions) andreport dated August 31, 2009 relating to the éffeaess of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting, appearing in this AnnRalport on Form 10-K of the Company for the yeareghdlune 30, 2009.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Jose, California
August 31, 2009



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles Liang, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Super Micro Computer, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa
b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registré' s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant
b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: August 31, 200 /s/ CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING  OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Howard Hideshima, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Super Micro Computer, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registré' s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 31, 200 /s/  HOWARD H IDESHIMA

Howard Hideshima
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles Liang, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.t#er1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906eoStrbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report of Super Micro Computer, IncFamm 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2009, ag filith the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date thereof, fully complies wfita requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in such Annual Report on FA®rK fairly presents, in all material respect® fimancial condition and results of
operations of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Date: August 31, 2009 /s/ CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING  OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Howard Hideshima, certify pursuant to 18 U.SSgction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Super Micro Computer, e Form 10K for the year ended June 30, 2009, as filed withSecurities and Exchar
Commission on the date thereof, fully complies wfita requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in such Annual Report on FA®rK fairly presents, in all material respect® fimancial condition and results of
operations of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Date: August 31, 2009 /s/  HOwWARD H IDESHIMA
Howard Hideshima
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




SUPERMICR®

SuperBlade® Family
DatacenterBlade
TwinBlade 0.35U

GPU Supercomputing
Multi-TeraFLOPS Server
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f!-l i Hneegies 1
‘ﬁzl UIO (Universal 1/0)
3 Add-on Cards in 1U
SAS 2.0 and RAID

Twin Family
4 DP Nodes in 2U
6 HDDs per Node & per 1U

Datacenter-optimized Storage and Server Solutions

Twin Architecture

In 2009, Supermicro have expanded the Twin technology platforms we pioneered 3 years ago with the new 2U Twin? server
solution which offers even higher efficiency, maintainability, connectivity and capacity with lower cost. We have also intro-
duced the TwinBlade™ product that offers up to 20 DP nodes per 7U enclosure with the industry-leading Platinum-level (94%+)
power supplies, providing the best performance per watt per dollar.

GPU Solutions

Optimized for HPC and complex scientific imaging applications, Supermicro’s 1U GPU solution have been called the fastest
1U server on the planet, offering up to 2 TeraFLOPS of performance per system. Supermicro has also introduced 4U/Tower
and 2U GPU solutions for customers who is looking for ultra-high-end workstation solutions or computing clusters.

Storage and UIO

Supermicro recently developed the SC847 double-sided storage enclosure that was well-received by the storage market.
Supermicro have also introduced SBB (Storage Bridge Bay) solutions which enable a modular approach to build a highly
redundant, customizable multi I/O convergence in a single storage enclosure, providing maximum uptime, flexibility and
large data capacity for the datacenter managers.

Networking Products

Supermicro now offers switch products to address the connectivity needs of its customers. 48-port GbE, 10GbE, and QDR
InfiniBand switches are all ready to perform with the industry’s highest performance standard known for Supermicro server
products.
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APPLICATION-OPTIMIZED SERVER & WORKSTATION SOLUTIONS

Headquarters: European Branch: Asian Branch:

Super Micro Computer, Inc. Super Micro Computer, B.V. Super Micro Computer, Inc.

980 Rock Ave. Het Sterrenbeeld 28, 5215 ML, 4F, No 232-1, Liangcheng Rd., Chung-Ho
San Jose, CA 95131, USA ‘s-Hertogenbosch, The Netherlands 235, Taipei County, Taiwan ROC

Tel: +1-408-503-8000 Tel: +31-73-640-0390 Tel: +886-2-8226-3990

Fax: +1-408-503-8008 Fax: +31-73-641-6525 Fax: +886-2-8226-3991

E-mail: Marketing@Supermicro.com E-mail: Sales@Supermicro.nl E-mail: Support@supermicro.com.tw

www.supermicro.com

© Super Micro Computer, Inc. Specifications subject to change without notice. All other brands and names are the property of their respective owners. All logos, brand names, campaign staements and
product images contain herein are copyrighted and may not be reprinted and/or reproduced, in whole or in part, without express written permission by Supermicro Corporate Marketing.






